KERRVILLE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING, FEBRUARY 26, 2019, 6:00 PM
CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS
701 MAIN STREET, KERRVILLE, TEXAS

The facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for
accommodations or interpretive services must be made 48 hours prior to this event. Please
contact the City Secretary’s Office at 830-257-8000 for further information.

CALL TO ORDER:
Mayor Bill Blackburn

INVOCATION:
Offered by Councilmember Eychner

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG:
Led by Councilmember Eychner

1 ANNOUNCEMENTS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST:

Announcement of items of community interest, including expressions of thanks, congratulations,
or condolences; information regarding holiday schedules; honorary recognitions of city officials,
employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events sponsored by the city or other
entity that is scheduled to be aftended by city officials or employees; and announcements
involving imminent threats to the public health and safety of the city. No action will be taken.

2 VISITORS/CITIZENS FORUM:

Any citizen with business not scheduled on the agenda may speak to the City Council.Prior to
speaking, each speaker must fill out the speaker request form and give it to theCity Secretary.
City Council may not discuss or take any action on an item but may place the issue on a future

| hereby certify that this agenda was posted as notice of the meeting on the bulletin board at the City Hall of
the City of Kerrville, Texas, and on the City?s website on the following date and time: February 22, 2019 at
5:00 p.m. and remained posted continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of the
meeting.

Shelley McElhannon, City Secretary
City of Kerrville, Texas



agenda. The number of speakers will be limited to the first ten speakers and each speaker is
limited to four minutes.

3 PRESENTATIONS:

3.A. Proclamation: Kerrville Robotics Alliance
Attachments:
20190226 Proclamation Kerrville Robotics Alliance.pdf

3.B. Resolution of Commendation to Peter Lewis, for his service on the Zoning Board of
Adjustment.
Attachments:
20190226 Resolution of Commendation Peter Lewis ZBA.pdf

4 CONSENT AGENDA:

These items are considered routine and can be approved in one motion unless a
Councilmember asks for separate consideration of an item. It is recommended that the City
Council approve the following items which will grant the Mayor or City Manager the authority to
take all actions necessary for each approval:

4 A. Purchase of a Case Compact Wheel Loader for the Water Production Division
Attachments:
20190226 Contract Buy Board ASCO.pdf
20190226 Quote Case Wheel Loader.pdf

4.B. Resolution No. 07-2019 requesting financial assistance from the Texas Water Development
Board (Clean Water State Revolving Fund) to finance certain improvements to the City's water
system; authorizing the filing of an application for financial assistance; and making certain
findings in connection therewith.

Attachments:
20190226 Resolution 07-2019 Clean Water Fund Texas Water Development Board - Page.pdf

4.C. Resolution No. 08-2019 requesting financial assistance from the Texas Water Development
Board (Drinking Water State Revolving Fund) to finance certain improvements to the City's
water system; authorizing the filing of an application for financial assistance; and making
certain findings in connection therewith.

Attachments:
20190226 Resolution 08-2019 Drinking Water Fund Texas Water Development Board - Page.pdf

4.D. Minutes for the City Council workshop held on January 29, 2019.
Attachments:
20190226 Minutes Council workshop 1-29-19.pdf

4.E. Minutes for the Regular City Council meeting held on February 12, 2019.
Attachments:
20190226 Minutes Council meeting 2-12-19.pdf

4.F. Minutes for the City Council workshop held on February 19, 2019.
Attachments:


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/311156/20190226_Proclamation_Kerrville_Robotics_Alliance.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/311761/20190226_Resolution_of_Commendation_Peter_Lewis_ZBA.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/311088/20190226_Contract_Buy_Board_ASCO.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/311089/20190226_Quote_Case_Wheel_Loader.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/313253/20190226_Resolution_07-2019_Clean_Water_Fund_Texas_Water_Development_Board_-_Page.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/313255/20190226_Resolution_08-2019_Drinking_Water_Fund_Texas_Water_Development_Board_-_Page.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/310980/20190226_Minutes_Council_workshop_1-29-19.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/310981/20190226_Minutes_Council_meeting_2-12-19.pdf

20190226 Minutes Council workshop 2-19-19.pdf

END OF CONSENT AGENDA
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7.A.

ORDINANCES, SECOND READING:

Ordinance No. 2019-04 amending Chapter 58 "Health and Sanitation", Article Il "Food
Establishments" of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Kerrville, Texas, by repealing the
existing Article Il and adopting a new Article Il, which will adopt the Texas Food Establishment
Rules, adopt local amendments to said rules, and provide for the regulation of mobile food
units (food trucks); containing a cumulative clause; containing a savings and severability
clause; providing a penalty; and providing other matters relating to the subject.

Attachments:

20190226 Ordinance 2019-04 Food Truck revised 2-21-19 MH signed.pdf

20190226 Variance Texas Heath-Human Services Variance Packet-Mobile Food Trucks.pdf

CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:

Resolution No. 09-2019 amending the City of Kerrville Fee Schedule by adopting various fees
to be charged with respect to the permitting and operation of food establishments.
Attachments:

20190226 Resolution 09-2019 Fee Schedule Amendment Food Establishments 022119 MH signed.pdf
20190226 Exhibit A Fee Schedule Change effective 2-26-19.pdf

B. Authorize the execution of a construction contract with Dowtech Specialty Contractors, Inc. for

the Water Treatment Plant Trihalomethanes (THM) Control Facility project in the amount of
$4,001,801.

Attachments:

20190226 Bid Water Treatment Plant THM Control Facility - Dowtech Specialty Contractors.pdf
20190226 Letter Recommendation of Award - Dowtech Specialty Contractor.pdf

Presentation and acceptance of the City of Kerrville's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018.

Attachments:

20190226 Report 2018 CAFR Draft.pdf

20190226 Report CAFR Presentation.pdf

Chapter 380 Economic Development Agreement between the City of Kerrville, Texas, and
D&V Development, LLC., for the development of a Marriott Springhill Suites in the downtown
area located near Water Street and Spring Street.

Attachments:

20190226 Agreement DV Development LLC 022219 Draft.pdf

20190226 Consideration Marriott-Spring Hill Suites Incentives Comparison Chart.pdf

INFORMATION & DISCUSSION:

Information regarding the Kerrville Homeless Population.
Attachments:


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/312486/20190226_Minutes__Council_workshop_2-19-19.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/313014/20190226_Ordinance_2019-04_Food_Truck_revised_2-21-19_MH_signed.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/311175/20190226_Variance_Texas_Heath-Human_Services_Variance_Packet-Mobile_Food_Trucks.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/312989/20190226_Resolution_09-2019_Fee_Schedule_Amendment_Food_Establishments_022119_MH_signed.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/312709/20190226_Exhibit_A_Fee_Schedule_Change_effective_2-26-19.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/312693/20190226_Bid_Water_Treatment_Plant_THM_Control_Facility_-_Dowtech_Specialty_Contractors.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/312995/20190226_Letter_Recommendation_of_Award_-_Dowtech_Specialty_Contractor.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/313627/20190226_Report_2018_CAFR_Draft.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/313669/20190226_Report_CAFR_Presentation.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/314177/20190226_Agreement_DV_Development_LLC_022219_Draft.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/313356/20190226_Consideration_Marriott-Spring_Hill_Suites_Incentives_Comparison_Chart.pdf
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7.B. Selective Enforcement of Codes and Ordinances.
Attachments:

7.C. Financial update for the month ended January 31, 2019.
Attachments:
20190226 Presentation January 2019 financial summary v2.pdf
20190226 Presentation January 2019 financial presentation v2.pdf

7.D. Monthly Community Improvement Project (CIP) Report.

Attachments:
20190226 City Council CIP Project Update.pdf

8 BOARD APPOINTMENTS

8.A. Appointments to the Food Service Advisory Board.
Attachments:
20190226 Appomntment Food Service Advisory Board.pdf
20190226 Press Release Food Service Advisory Board Vacancies Applications.pdf

9 ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS:
City Council may suggest items or topics for future agendas.

10 EXECUTIVE SESSION:

City Council may, as permitted by law, adjourn into executive session at any time to discuss any
matter listed above including if they meet the qualifications in Sections 551.071 (consultation with
attorney), 5651.072 (deliberation regarding real property), 551.073 (deliberation regarding gifts),
551.074 (personnel/officers), 551.076 (deliberation regarding security devices), and 551.087
(deliberation regarding economic development negotiations) of Chapter 551 of the Texas
Government Code.

11 ACTION ON ITEMS DISCUSSED IN EXECUTIVE SESSION, IF ANY

ADJOURNMENT.



https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/314146/20190226_Presentation_January_2019_financial_summary_v2.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/314147/20190226_Presentation__January_2019_financial_presentation_v2.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/313357/20190226__City_Council_CIP_Project_Update.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/310979/20190226_Appointment_Food_Service_Advisory_Board.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/311157/20190226_Press_Release_Food_Service_Advisory_Board_Vacancies_Applications.pdf

TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

SUBJECT: Proclamation: Kerrville Robotics Alliance

AGENDA DATE OF: February 26,2019 DATE SUBMITTED: Feb 18,2019

SUBMITTED BY: Shelley McElhannon

EXHIBITS: 20190226 Proclamation_Kerrville Robotics Alliance.pdf

Expenditure Remaining Budget Amount Budgeted: Account Number:
Required: Balance in

Account:
$0 $0 $0 N/A

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO: N/A

Kerrville 2050 ltem? No

Key Priority Area N/A
Guiding Principle N/A
Action ltem N/A

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

Recognize and Proclaim March 1, 2019 as "Kerrville Robotics Alliance Day" in Kerrville,
Texas.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Present the Proclamation to the Kerrville Robotics Alliance



https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/311156/20190226_Proclamation_Kerrville_Robotics_Alliance.pdf

'PROCLAMATION

WHEREAS, The City of Kerrville recognizes Kerrville Robotics Alliance is a
nonprofit in Kerrville that supports Science, Technology,
Engineering, and Math (STEM) extra-curricular opportunities for
public school and homeschool students in Kerrville, Texas; and

WHEREAS, In partnership with Schreiner University, the organization
hosted Kerrville's first robotics qualifier competition, serving 140
elementary and middle school students from 14 schools; and

WHEREAS, Throughout the season, the Kerrville Robotics Alliance has
supported community teams with money and volunteers; and

WHEREAS, Two Kerrville Teams advanced from the Schreiner University
qualifier event: Boljago, a community team coached by Dan
Apel, and Mustang Robotics, a Kerrville Independent School
District team from Tom Daniels coached by Elizabeth Wrase.
Both teams will advance to the first Lego League regional
event to be held in San Antonio, Texas in March 2019; and

WHEREAS, In addition, the Alliance’s High School Team, Fellowship of the
Robot is the undefeated champions of the North San Antfonio
League, having won all 24 of their matches and all four of their
championship rounds. This team will advance fo the first Tech
Challenge Regional Event to be held in New Braunfels, Texas
in March 2019.

NOW, THEREFORE, | Bill Blackburn, Mayor of the City of Kerrville,
do proclaim Friday, March 1, 2019 as:

“Kerrville Robotics Alliance Day”

in Kerrville, Texas, and encourage all citizens to recognize the
' Kerrville Robotics Alliances’ Teams.

G
iy N
TN IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto
N\ set my hand and caused the Seal of
the City of Kerrville to be affixed

hereto, the 26 day of February, 2019.

Bill Blacklburn, Mayor




TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

SUBJECT: Resolution of Commendation to Peter Lewis, for his service on the Zoning
Board of Adjustment.

AGENDA DATE OF: February 26,2019 DATE SUBMITTED: Feb 19,2019

SUBMITTED BY: Cheryl Brown

EXHIBITS: 20190226 Resolution of Commendation_Peter Lewis_ZBA.pdf

Expenditure Remaining Budget Amount Budgeted: Account Number:
Required: Balance in

Account:
$0 $0 $0 N/A

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO: N/A

Kerrville 2050 ltem? No

Key Priority Area N/A
Guiding Principle N/A
Action ltem N/A

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Present Resolution of Commendation.



https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/311761/20190226_Resolution_of_Commendation_Peter_Lewis_ZBA.pdf

City of Kerrville

701 MAIN STREET e KERRVILLE, TEXAS 78028  830.257.8000  KERRVILLETX.GOV

RESOLUTION OF COMMENDATION

WHEREAS, PETER LEWIS has served as a member of the Zoning Board of
Adjustment with the date of service beginning December 9, 2014; and

WHEREAS, PETER LEWIS had served faithfully and dutifully on said board;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
KERRVILLE, KERR COUNTY, TEXAS:

That PETER LEWIS be recognized for outstanding service as a member
of the Zoning Board of Adjustment, and that on behalf of the citizens of

Kerrville, as well as for ourselves individually, we wish to express our
sincere appreciation for contributions to the city and the community.

PASSED AND APPROVED, this the day of , 2019.

s D Bk

€lley McElhahnon, City Secretary ckburn, Mayor

De ayleg \)mfn Mayor Pro Tem

Vincent Voelkel, Councilmember

Ay e

George Barbody, Councilmember

ol y £ hnn

(ﬂj&/ Eychner/Councilmember

ATTEST:




TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

SUBJECT: Purchase of a Case Compact Wheel Loader for the Water Production
Division
AGENDA DATE OF: February 26,2019 DATE SUBMITTED: Feb 13,2019

SUBMITTED BY: David Barrera

EXHIBITS: 20190226 _Contract_Buy Board ASCO.pdf
20190226 _Quote_Case Wheel Loader.pdf

Expenditure Remaining Budget Amount Budgeted: Account Number:
Required: Balance in

Account:
$72,650.00 $367,000.00 $80,000.00 19-1900-5300

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO:  Associated Supply Company

Kerrville 2050 Item? No

Key Priority Area N/A
Guiding Principle N/A
Action Iltem N/A

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

This equipment will be utilized for various tasks at the Water Treatment Plant. Tasks
include removing sludge from the facility and loading chemicals into second floor of the
membrane treatment plant. In addition, it will be used at other offsite locations within the
Water Production network.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Authorize the purchase of this budgeted equipment



https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/311088/20190226_Contract_Buy_Board_ASCO.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/311089/20190226_Quote_Case_Wheel_Loader.pdf

Index

Searches:

Search by Vendor

Browse Contracts

Search:

® Al
O Vendor Discounts Only
O Catalog Pricing Only

Refine Your Search:

Vendors

None Selected

Price Range

Show all prices

Cateqgory

None Selected

Contract

Construction, Road/Bridge,
Ditching, Trenching, Utility and
Other Equipment[X]

Additional Resources

https://app.buyboard.com/Search/Index?SearchTerm=&Contractld=674

Vendor Contract Information

Vendor Name:
Address:

Phone Number:

Email:

Website:

Federal ID:

Contact:

Accepts RFQs:

Minority Owned:

Women Owned:
Service-Disabled Veteran Owned:
EDGAR Forms Received:

No Israel Boycott Certificate:
No Excluded Foreign Terrorist Orgs:
Contract Name:

Contract#:

Effective Date:

Expiration Date:

Payment Terms:

Delivery Days:

Shipping Terms:

Freight Terms:

Ship Via:

Region Served:

States Served:

Additional Info:

Quote Reference Number:
Return Policy:
Additional Dealers:

Contract Documents

EDGAR Notice:
Proposal Documents:
Regulatory Notice:
Proposal Files:
Renewal Notice/Letter:

Additional Dealers/Distributors:

Administration RFQ ! Reports

Page 1 of 1

Phone: 800.695.2919
Email:
info@buyboard.com

Welcome David [ Log
Shopping Cart Help Off ]

Back l

Associated Supply Co. ASCO Equipment Co.
2102 E. Slaton Rd.

Lubbock, TX 79404-6800

(210) 333-8000

ccannon@ascoeq.com
http://www.ascoeq.com

75-1386410

Craig Cannon

Yes

No

No

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Construction, Road/Bridge, Ditching, Trenching, Utility and Other Equipment
515-16

12/01/2016

11/30/2019

Net 30 days

10

Pre-paid and added to invoice

FOB Destination

Common Carrier

Texas Regions 2, 3,4, 5, 6,7, 8,9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 20
Texas

EDGAR Vendor Certification Form (relating to 2 CFR Part 200 & Appendix II) it
Vendor response document, and can be found in the Vendor Proposal File link
page.

515-16

Returns are based on item sold, restocking fee may apply

See Additional Dealers/Distributors for dealer list.

Click to view EDGAR Notice

Click to view BuyBoard Proposal Documents

Click to view Bonding Regulatory Notice
Click to view Vendor Proposal Files Documents

Click to view Vendor Renewal Notice/Letter Documents

Click to view Vendor Additional Dealers/Distributors Documents

Contact us 800.695.2919

2/15/2019




BuyBoard Quote ASSOCIATED SUPPLY COMPANY, INC.

THE FOLLOWING DETAILS SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH ANY BUYBOARD PURCHASE ORDER (FAX PURCHASE ORDER TO 800-211-5454)

BuyBoard Vendor: Associated Supply Company, Inc. Prepared By: Lance Muennink
Mobile: 210-410-3879
Phone: Email: lance@ascoeq.com
Fax:
Date Prepared: 2/11/2019
Government Agency: City of Kerrville
Ship To: Bill To:
Contacts' Name: Shannon Flowers Phone:
Email: Fax:
Product Description: Case 21F Compact Wheel Loader BuyBoard Contract: 515-16
I. Price List Dated: 2/1/2019 Base Price: $ _ 88,000.00
1I: Base Bid Options (Itemized Below)
Enclosed delux luxury cab included 1.1yard bucket included
AM/FM Speaker included 335/80 R18 Dunlop Tires included
Air conditioner and Heater included Fork attachment S 900.00
2 Front and 2 Rear Work Lights included
Limited Slip differential axles included
Hydraulic skid steer compatible coupler included
Auto Ride control included
Fire Extinguisher included
Standard Auxillary included
Cloth Air Seat included
Reverse Alarm | ncluded
SUB-TOTAL: $ - SUB-TOTAL: $ 900.00
Options List Price Total: $ 900.00
11l. SUB-TOTALOF I & Il S 88,900.00
IV. BuyBoard Discount: 15.00% S 13,335.00 BUYBOARD CONTRACT PRICE: $ 75,565.00
V: NON-BASE OPTIONS Non-Base Options (%) = 0
3yr/3000hr premier warranty S -
(FREE travel and mileage) S -
$ -
SUB-TOTAL: _$ . SUB-TOTAL: _$ -
VI: UNPUBLISHED OPTIONS ADDED TO CONTRACT PRICE (SUBTOTAL OF COL1 & COL 2) S -
VII: TOTALIV + VI $  75,565.00
VIIl: QUANTITY ORDERED UNITS: 1 $  75,565.00
IX: TRADE-IN OR OTHER CREDIT(S): $ 2,915.00 One Time ASCO discount S 2,915.00
TOTAL: S 72,650.00

FAX ALL PURCHASE ORDERS TO BUYBOARD AT 800-211-5454



TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 07-2019 requesting financial assistance from the Texas
Water Development Board (Clean Water State Revolving Fund) to finance
certain improvements to the City's water system; authorizing the filing of an
application for financial assistance; and making certain findings in
connection therewith.

AGENDA DATE OF: February 26,2019 DATE SUBMITTED: Feb 19,2019

SUBMITTED BY: Amy Dozier

EXHIBITS: 20190226 Resolution 07-2019 Clean Water Fund Texas Water Development Board -

Page.pdf
Expenditure Remaining Budget Amount Budgeted: Account Number:
Required: Balance in
Account:
$0 $0 $0 N/A

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO: N/A

Kerrville 2050 ltem? No

Key Priority Area N/A
Guiding Principle N/A
Action ltem N/A

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

The City of Kerrville is currently in the process of removing pipe and steel structure debris
from the Guadalupe River following an October 2018 flooding event. Following the debris
removal, the City will begin to plan and design a permanent replacement for the pipes that
were damaged.

The City is continuing to pursue an insurance claim related to the flood. However, because
there are multiple insurance companies involved, the claim process is expected to be
lengthy. Accordingly, City staff investigated alternative funding sources. The Clean Water
State Revolving Fund and the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund of the Texas Water
Development Board (TWDB) both offer up to $500,000 in disaster recovery grant


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/313253/20190226_Resolution_07-2019_Clean_Water_Fund_Texas_Water_Development_Board_-_Page.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/313253/20190226_Resolution_07-2019_Clean_Water_Fund_Texas_Water_Development_Board_-_Page.pdf

assistance. The flooding event damaged both a reuse pipe and a potable water pipe.
Accordingly, the City plans to seek $500,000 in grant assistance from each state revolving
fund.

The City submitted a project information form to the TWDB to determine project eligibility.
TWDB accepted the City's project information form and invited the City to apply for the
grant funding. A funding resolution passed by City Council is required to complete the
grant application process.

If the resolution is passed, City staff anticipates completing the application in the next two
weeks. The TWDB application review and funding process usually takes 3 to 6 months
following completion of the application.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve Resolution No. 07-2019.




CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
RESOLUTION NO. 07-2019

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FROM THE TEXAS WATER DEVELOPMENT BOARD (CLEAN
WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND) TO FINANCE CERTAIN
IMPROVEMENTS TO THE CITY'S WATER SYSTEM;
AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF AN APPLICATION FOR
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE; AND MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS
IN CONNECTION THEREWITH

WHEREAS, the City of Kerrville, Texas (the “City”) in Kerr County, Texas, is
a political subdivision of the State of Texas operating as a home-rule municipality
pursuant to the Texas Local Government Code and its City Charter, which was
initially approved by the qualified voters of the City on February 24, 1942, and which
has been amended from time to time, with the most recent amendments being
approved by the qualified voters of the City on May 10, 2014; and

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby finds and determines that there is an
urgent need to make certain improvements to the City’s water system (the “Project”);
and

WHEREAS, it is hereby officially found and determined that public notice of
the time, place, and purpose of this meeting was given, all as required by Texas
Government Code, Chapter 551;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS:

SECTION ONE. REQUEST FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE; APPROVAL OF
APPLICATION. The Texas Water Development Board is hereby requested to grant
financial assistance through its Clean Water State Revolving Fund program in an
amount not to exceed $500,000.00, to provide for the costs of removing pipe and steel
support infrastructure from the Guadalupe River following an October 2018 flooding
event as well as the cost of planning and designing a permanent replacement for the
damaged infrastructure, all as further described in the application for financial
assistance related to the Project (the “Application”).

SECTION TWO. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES OF CIiTYy. The City
Manager, Deputy City Manager, Public Works Director, City Engineer, and Director
of Finance of the City each are hereby designated as an authorized representative of
the City for purposes of furnishing such information and executing such documents
as may be required in connection with the preparation and filing of the Application
for financial assistance and the rules of the Texas Water Development Board. The




City Manager, Deputy City Manager, Public Works Director, City Engineer, and
Director of Finance of the City, together with bond counsel, financial advisor, and
consulting engineers named in Section Three, below, are hereby authorized to appear
before the Texas Water Development Board in support of such Application and the
Project. The City Manager, Deputy City Manager, Public Works Director, City
Engineer, and Director of Finance of the City each are further specifically authorized
to make the required assurances to the Texas Water Development Board in
accordance with the rules, regulations, and policies of the Texas Water Development

Board.

SECTION THREE. APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONALS. The following firms
and individuals are hereby authorized and directed to aid and assist in the
preparation and submission of the Application and appear on behalf of and represent
the City before any hearing held by the Texas Water Development Board on the

Application, to-wit:

ENGINEER FINANCIAL ADVISOR BOND COUNSEL
John New Anne Burger Entrekin Thomas K. Spurgeon
Freese and Nichols, Inc. Hilltop Securities Inc. Orlando “Jay” Juarez
10431 Morado Circle., Ste. 300 | 70 NE Loop 410, Suite 710 McCall, Parkhurst & Horton
Austin, Texas 78759 San Antonio, Texas 78216 L.L.P.
700 N. St. Mary's, Suite 1525
San Antonio, Texas 78205

SECTION FOUR. INCLUSION OF RESOLUTION. A certified copy of this
Resolution shall be included with the Application herein authorized to be prepared
in final form and submitted to the Texas Water Development Board.

SECTION FIVE. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The City hereby finds
that the statements set forth in the recitals of this Resolution are true and correct,
and the City hereby incorporates such recitals as a part of this Resolution.

SECTION SIX. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall become effective
immediately after its adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED ON this the day of A.D.,

2019.

Reso. No. 07-2019




Bill Blackburn, Mayor

APPROjD AS TO FORM: ATTEST:

Mlchael C. Hayes, City Attorney Shelley McElhannon, City Secretary

T:\Legal \FINANCE\Reso\Requesting Financial Assistance_TWDB_Clean Water State Revolving Fund_022119.docx

Reso. No. 07-2019




CERTIFICATE FOR RESOLUTION

THE STATE OF TEXAS '
COUNTY OF KERR
CITY OF KERRVILLE !

I, the undersigned City Secretary of the CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS (the “City”),
hereby certify as follows:

1. The City Council of the City (the “City Council’) convened in Regular Meeting
on _, 2019 at the City Hall (the “Meeting”), and the roll was taken of the duly
constituted officers and members of the City Council, to wit:

Bill Blackburn, Mayor
Vincent C. Voelkel, Councilmember, Place 1
George Baroody, Councilmember, Place 2
Judy Eychner, Councilmember, Place 3
Delayne Sigerman, Councilmember, Place 4

and all of the officers and members of the City Council were present, except the following
absentees: : whereupon, among other business, the

following was transacted at the Meeting: a written Resolution No. entitled

RESOLUTION REQUESTING FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FROM THE
TEXAS WATER DEVELOPMENT BOARD (CLEAN WATER STATE
REVOLVING FUND) TO FINANCE CERTAIN IMPROVEMENTS TO
THE CITY’S WATER SYSTEM; AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF AN
APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE; AND MAKING
CERTAIN FINDINGS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH

(the “Resolution”) was duly introduced for the consideration of the City Council. It was
then duly moved and seconded that the Resolution be passed and, after due discussion, said
motion carrying with it the adoption of the Resolution, prevailed and carried by the following

vote:

AYES: NOES: ABSTENTIONS:

2. A true, full and correct copy of the Resolution adopted at the Meeting described in
the above and foregoing paragraph is attached to and follows this Certificate; the Resolution
has been duly recorded in the City Council’s minutes of the Meeting; the above and foregoing
paragraph is a true, full, and correct excerpt from the City Council’s minutes of the Meeting
pertaining to the passage of the Resolution; the persons named in the above and foregoing
paragraph are the duly chosen, qualified, and acting officers and members of the City Council
as indicated therein; each of the officers and members of the City Council was duly and
sufficiently notified officially and personally, in advance, of the time, place, and purpose of
the Meeting, and that the Resolution would be introduced and considered for passage at the
Meeting, and each of said officers and members consented, in advance, to the holding of the
Meeting for such purpose, and that the Meeting was open to the public and public notice of




the time, place and purpose of the Meeting was given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas
Government Code.

Signed and sealed the ___ day of , 2019.

(SEAL)
City Secretary




TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 08-2019 requesting financial assistance from the Texas
Water Development Board (Drinking Water State Revolving Fund) to finance
certain improvements to the City's water system; authorizing the filing of an
application for financial assistance; and making certain findings in
connection therewith.

AGENDA DATE OF: February 26,2019 DATE SUBMITTED: Feb 19,2019

SUBMITTED BY: Amy Dozier

EXHIBITS: 20190226 Resolution 08-2019 Drinking Water Fund Texas Water Development Board

- Page.pdf
Expenditure Remaining Budget Amount Budgeted: Account Number:
Required: Balance in
Account:
$0 $0 $0 N/A

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO: N/A

Kerrville 2050 ltem? No

Key Priority Area N/A
Guiding Principle N/A
Action ltem N/A

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

The City of Kerrville is currently in the process of removing pipe and steel structure debris
from the Guadalupe River following an October 2018 flooding event. Following the debris
removal, the City will begin to plan and design a permanent replacement for the pipes that
were damaged.

The City is continuing to pursue an insurance claim related to the flood. However, because
there are multiple insurance companies involved, the claim process is expected to be
lengthy. Accordingly, City staff investigated alternative funding sources. The Clean Water
State Revolving Fund and the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund of the Texas Water
Development Board (TWDB) both offer up to $500,000 in disaster recovery grant


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/313255/20190226_Resolution_08-2019_Drinking_Water_Fund_Texas_Water_Development_Board_-_Page.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/313255/20190226_Resolution_08-2019_Drinking_Water_Fund_Texas_Water_Development_Board_-_Page.pdf

assistance. The flooding event damaged both a reuse pipe and a potable water pipe.
Accordingly, the City plans to seek $500,000 in grant assistance from each state revolving
fund.

The City submitted a project information form to the TWDB to determine project eligibility.
TWDB accepted the City's project information form and invited the City to apply for the
grant funding. A funding resolution passed by City Council is required to complete the
grant application process.

If the resolution is passed, City staff anticipates completing the application in the next two
weeks. The TWDB application review and funding process usually takes 3 to 6 months
following completion of the application.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve Resolution No. 08-2019.




CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
RESOLUTION NO. 08-2019

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FROM THE TEXAS WATER DEVELOPMENT BOARD
(DRINKING WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND) TO FINANCE
CERTAIN IMPROVEMENTS TO THE CITY’S WATER SYSTEM;
AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF AN APPLICATION FOR
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE; AND MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS
IN CONNECTION THEREWITH

WHEREAS, the City of Kerrville, Texas (the “City”) in Kerr County, Texas, is
a political subdivision of the State of Texas operating as a home-rule municipality
pursuant to the Texas Local Government Code and its City Charter, which was
initially approved by the qualified voters of the City on February 24, 1942, and which
has been amended from time to time, with the most recent amendments being
approved by the qualified voters of the City on May 10, 2014; and

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby finds and determines that there is an
urgent need to make certain improvements to the City’s water system (the “Project”);
and

WHEREAS, it is hereby officially found and determined that public notice of
the time, place, and purpose of this meeting was given, all as required by Texas
Government Code, Chapter 551;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS:

SECTION ONE. REQUEST FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE; APPROVAL OF
APPLICATION. The Texas Water Development Board is hereby requested to grant
financial assistance through its Drinking Water State Revolving Fund program in an
amount not to exceed $500,000.00, to provide for the costs of removing pipe and steel
support infrastructure from the Guadalupe River following an October 2018 flooding
event as well as the cost of planning and designing a permanent replacement for the
damaged infrastructure, all as further described in the application for financial
assistance related to the Project (the “Application”).

SECTION TWO. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES OF CITY. The City
Manager, Deputy City Manager, Public Works Director, City Engineer, and Director
of Finance of the City each are hereby designated as an authorized representative of
the City for purposes of furnishing such information and executing such documents
as may be required in connection with the preparation and filing of the Application
for financial assistance and the rules of the Texas Water Development Board. The




City Manager, Deputy City Manager, Public Works Director, City Engineer, and
Director of Finance of the City, together with bond counsel, financial advisor, and
consulting engineers named in Section Three, below, are hereby authorized to appear
before the Texas Water Development Board in support of such Application and the
Project. The City Manager, Deputy City Manager, Public Works Director, City
Engineer, and Director of Finance of the City each are further specifically authorized
to make the required assurances to the Texas Water Development Board in
accordance with the rules, regulations, and policies of the Texas Water Development

Board.

SECTION THREE. APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONALS. The following firms
and individuals are hereby authorized and directed to aid and assist in the
preparation and submission of the Application and appear on behalf of and represent
the City before any hearing held by the Texas Water Development Board on the

Application, to-wit:

ENGINEER FINANCIAL ADVISOR BOND COUNSEL
John New Anne Burger Entrekin Thomas K. Spurgeon
Freese and Nichols, Inc. Hilltop Securities Inc. Orlando “Jay” Juarez
10431 Morado Circle., Ste. 300 | 70 NE Loop 410, Suite 710 McCall, Parkhurst & Horton
Austin, Texas 78759 San Antonio, Texas 78216 L.L.P.
700 N. St. Mary's, Suite 1525
San Antonio, Texas 78205

SECTION FOUR. INCLUSION OF RESOLUTION. A certified copy of this
Resolution shall be included with the Application herein authorized to be prepared
in final form and submitted to the Texas Water Development Board.

SECTION FIVE. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The City hereby finds
that the statements set forth in the recitals of this Resolution are true and correct,
and the City hereby incorporates such recitals as a part of this Resolution.

SECTION SIX. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall become effective
immediately after its adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED ON this the day of A.D.,

2019.

Reso. No. 08-2019




Bill Blackburn, Mayor

APPROVE TO FORM: ATTEST:
%/}u Cb—

Michael C. Hayes, City Attorney Shelley McElhannon, City Secretary

T:\Legal\FINANCE\Reso\Requesting Financial Assistance_TWDB_Drinnking Water State Revolving Fund_022119.doex

Reso. No. 08-2019




CERTIFICATE FOR RESOLUTION

THE STATE OF TEXAS '
COUNTY OF KERR !
CITY OF KERRVILLE '

I, the undersigned City Secretary of the CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS (the “City”),
hereby certify as follows:

1. The City Council of the City (the “City Council’) convened in Regular Meeting
on _, 2019 at the City Hall (the “Meeting”), and the roll was taken of the duly
constituted officers and members of the City Council, to wit:

Bill Blackburn, Mayor
Vincent C. Voelkel, Councilmember, Place 1
George Baroody, Councilmember, Place 2
Judy Eychner, Councilmember, Place 3
Delayne Sigerman, Councilmember, Place 4

and all of the officers and members of the City Council were present, except the following
absentees: ; whereupon, among other business, the

following was transacted at the Meeting: a written Resolution No. entitled

RESOLUTION REQUESTING FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FROM THE
TEXAS WATER DEVELOPMENT BOARD (DRINKING WATER STATE
REVOLVING FUND) TO FINANCE CERTAIN IMPROVEMENTS TO
THE CITY'S WATER SYSTEM; AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF AN
APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE; AND MAKING
CERTAIN FINDINGS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH

(the “Resolution”) was duly introduced for the consideration of the City Council. It was
then duly moved and seconded that the Resolution be passed and, after due discussion, said
motion carrying with it the adoption of the Resolution, prevailed and carried by the following
vote:

AYES: NOES: ABSTENTIONS:

2. A true, full and correct copy of the Resolution adopted at the Meeting described in
the above and foregoing paragraph is attached to and follows this Certificate; the Resolution
has been duly recorded in the City Council’s minutes of the Meeting; the above and foregoing
paragraph is a true, full, and correct excerpt from the City Council’s minutes of the Meeting
pertaining to the passage of the Resolution; the persons named in the above and foregoing
paragraph are the duly chosen, qualified, and acting officers and members of the City Council
as indicated therein; each of the officers and members of the City Council was duly and
sufficiently notified officially and personally, in advance, of the time, place, and purpose of
the Meeting, and that the Resolution would be introduced and considered for passage at the
Meeting, and each of said officers and members consented, in advance, to the holding of the
Meeting for such purpose, and that the Meeting was open to the public and public notice of




the time, place and purpose of the Meeting was given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas
Government Code.

Signed and sealed the ___ day of , 2019.

(SEAL)
City Secretary




TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

SUBJECT: Minutes for the City Council workshop held on January 29, 2019.

AGENDA DATE OF: February 26,2019 DATE SUBMITTED: Feb 15,2019

SUBMITTED BY: Shelley McElhannon

EXHIBITS: 20190226 _Minutes_Council workshop 1-29-19.pdf

Expenditure Remaining Budget Amount Budgeted: Account Number:
Required: Balance in

Account:
$0 $0 $0 N/A

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO: N/A

Kerrville 2050 ltem? No

Key Priority Area N/A
Guiding Principle N/A
Action ltem N/A

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

Minutes for the City Council workshop held on January 29, 2019 at the Peterson Home
Healthcare/Hospice Building, Conference 2, at 250 Cully Drive.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve minutes as presented.



https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/310980/20190226_Minutes_Council_workshop_1-29-19.pdf

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES KERRVILLE, TEXAS
WORKSHOP JANUARY 29, 2019

On January 29, 2019, the Kerrville City Council workshop was called to order at
10:05 a.m. by Mayor Blackburn in the Peterson Home Healthcare/Hospice
Building, Conference Room 2 at 250 Cully Drive.

COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT:

Bill Blackburn Mayor

Delayne Sigerman Mayor Pro Tem
Vincent C. Voelkel Councilmember
George Baroody Councilmember
Judy Eychner Councilmember

COUNCILMEMBER ABSENT: None

CITY STAFF PRESENT:

Mark McDaniel City Manager

E.A. Hoppe Deputy City Manager

Mike Hayes City Attorney

Amy Dozier Chief Financial Officer

Kim Meismer Executive Director for General Operations
Sherry Mosier Manager of Strategic Initiatives

Drew Paxton Executive Director for Development Services
Dannie Smith Fire Chief

Stuart Cunyus Public Information Officer

Shelley McElhannon City Secretary

VISITORS PRESENT: No visitors were present during the workshop.

1. DISCUSSION: COUNCIL PROCEDURAL RULES FOR MEETINGS

Process for Councilmembers to place an item on the agenda
Timeline for agenda packet/posting

Use of Granicus closed caption transcripts for certified minutes
Audio recording of executive sessions

2. DISCUSSION: COUNCIL GOALS AND PRIORITIES FOR 2019

The following were identified and ranked as priorities for 2019.
Housing

River Events

Downtown

Conservation and Water Resources

ADJOURNMENT. The meeting adjourned at 11:50 a.m.




APPROVED Bill Blackburn, Mayor

ATTEST:

Shelley McElhannon, City Secretary



TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

SUBJECT: Minutes for the Regular City Council meeting held on February 12, 2019.

AGENDA DATE OF: February 26,2019 DATE SUBMITTED: Feb 15,2019

SUBMITTED BY: Shelley McElhannon

EXHIBITS: 20190226 _Minutes_Council meeting 2-12-19.pdf

Expenditure Remaining Budget Amount Budgeted: Account Number:
Required: Balance in

Account:
$0 $0 $0 N/A

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO: N/A

Kerrville 2050 ltem? No

Key Priority Area N/A
Guiding Principle N/A
Action ltem N/A

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

Minutes for the City Council meeting held on February 12, 2019, at the Kerrville City Hall
Council Chambers, 701 Main Street.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the minutes as presented.



https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/310981/20190226_Minutes_Council_meeting_2-12-19.pdf

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES KERRVILLE, TEXAS
REGULAR MEETING FEBRUARY 12, 2019

On February 12, 2019, at 6:00 p.m. the meeting was called to order by Mayor Bill
Blackburn in the City Hall Council Chambers at 701 Main Street. The invocation was
offered by Councilmember George Baroody, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance led by
Mr. Baroody.

COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT:

Bill Blackburn Mayor

Delayne Sigerman Mayor Pro Tem
Vincent Voelkel Councilmember
George Baroody Councilmember
Judy Eychner Councilmember

COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: None

CITY EXECUTIVE STAFF PRESENT:

Mark McDaniel City Manager

E.A. Hoppe Deputy City Manager

Mike Hayes City Attorney

Stuart Cunyus Public Information Officer

Amy Dozier Director of Finance

Guillermo Garcia Executive Director for Strategic Initiatives
David Knight Police Chief

Shelley McElhannon City Secretary

Sherry Mosier Manager for Strategic Initiatives

Drew Paxton Executive Director of Development Services
Dannie Smith Fire Chief

VISITORS PRESENT: List on file in city secretary’s office for the required retention
period.

1. ANNOUNCEMENTS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST:

1A. Mr. Blackburn announced Agenda Item 5A will be pulled from the 2/12/19 agenda,
and will be scheduled for consideration at a later time; he reminded citizens who wish to
speak that a “speaker request form” must be completed and given to the City Secretary,
and he reviewed audience decorum during the Council meeting.

1B. Items of Interest to the Community were made by Stuart Cunyus, Councilmember
Judy Eychner, and Councilmember Delayne Sigerman.

2. VISITOR/CITIZENS FORUM:
2A. There were no visitor/citizen speakers.

3. PRESENTATIONS:




3A. Chief Dannie Smith presented citizen Madaline Munoz a Certificate of Recognition
for heroic actions.

3B. City Manager Mark McDaniel presented Matthew Zapata, Wastewater Collections
Superintendent, a Certificate of Recognition for obtaining a “Class A” Wastewater
Treatment Operator License.

3C. City Manager Mark McDaniel presented Rosa Ledesma, Parks and Recreation
Specialist, a Certificate of Recognition for receiving the Certified Festival and Event
Association certification.

4. CONSENT AGENDA:
Ms. Eychner moved to approve items on the Consent Agenda. Ms. Sigerman seconded,
and the motion passed 5-0.

4A. Purchase of new Vermeer vacuum trailer for Water Distribution Division.

4B. Compromise, Settlement, and Release Agreement between Kerrville Camp-Resort,
LLC and the City of Kerrville.

4C. Resolution 04-2019 supporting the application of Freedom’s Path Kerrville Il Limited
Partnership to construct affordable rental housing pursuant to the Low Income Housing
Tax Credit Program Administered by the Texas Department of Housing and Community
Affairs.

4D. Resolution 05-2019 supporting the application of Hillcrest Senior Village, LP, to
construct affordable rental housing pursuant to the Low Income Housing Tax Credit
Program Administered by the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs.

4E. Minutes for the regular City Council meeting held on January 08, 2019.

4F. Minutes for the regular City Council meeting held on January 22, 2019.
END OF CONSENT AGENDA.

5. PUBLIC HEARING AND ORDINANCES, FIRST READING:

5A. Resolution 03-2019 Granting a Conditional Use Permit for an approximate 1.166
acres, being a portion of lot 1, H.E.B. addition and portions of lots 300-302 and lots 348-
349, block 48 of the Schreiner 2" Addition, subdivisions within the City of Kerrville, Kerr
County, Texas; and more commonly known as the property located at 300 Main Street
(State Hwy. 27); said property is located within the Central Business District “CBD” by
permitting said property to be used for gasoline station (fuel sales) with car wash and
convenience store; and making said permit subject to certain conditions and restrictions
contained herein.

Resolution 03-2019 was pulled from the agenda, and deferred to April 23, 2019.



6. ORDINANCES, FIRST READING:

6A. Ordinance 2019-04 amending Chapter 58 “Health and Sanitation”, Article 1l “Food
Establishments” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Kerrville, Texas, by repealing
the existing Article 1l and adopting a new Article 1l, which will adopt the Texas Food
Establishment Rules, adopt local amendments to said rules, and provide for the regulation
of mobile food units (food trucks); containing a cumulative clause; containing a saving
and severability clause; providing a penalty; and providing other matters relating to the
subject.

Mr. Blackburn opened the public hearing at 6:17 p.m.
Mr. Blackburn closed the public hearing at 6:28 p.m.

Mr. Baroody moved to approve Ordinance 2019-04 first reading. Ms. Sigerman
seconded, and the motion passed 5-0.

7. ORDINANCES, SECOND READING:

7A. Ordinance 2019-05 Amending Chapter 2, "Administration”, Article IV "Boards and
Commissions”, Section 2-91 "Senior Services Advisory Committee" of the Code of
Ordinances of the City of Kerrville, Texas; By Amending Subsections (A)(1) and (A)(2) to
Increase the Membership of this Committee to 16 Members; Containing a Cumulative
Clause; Containing a Savings and Severability Clause; and Providing Other Matters
Relating to this Subject.

Mr. Blackburn opened the public hearing at 6:30 p.m.
Mr. Blackburn closed the public hearing at 6:31 p.m.

Ms. Sigerman moved to approve Ordinance 2019-05 second reading. Ms. Eychner
seconded, and the motion passed 5-0.

8. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:
8A. Operations agreement for the Kathleen C. Cailloux City Center for the Performing
Arts between the City of Kerrville, Texas, and Playhouse 2000, Inc.

Mr. Blackburn opened the public hearing at 6:32 p.m.
Mr. Blackburn closed the public hearing at 6:35 p.m.

Ms. Sigerman moved to approve that the City Manager finalize and execute the
Operations Agreement for the Kathleen C. Cailloux City Center for the Performing Arts.
Ms. Eychner seconded, and the motion passed 5-0.

8B. Application for Project Funding Request to the Kerrville Economic Improvement
Corporation regarding Downtown Parking Garage/Streetscape.

Mr. Blackburn opened the public hearing at 6:39 p.m.
Mr. Blackburn closed the public hearing at 6:44 p.m.



Ms. Eychner moved to approve and authorize staff to proceed with an application to the
Kerrville Economic Improvement Corporation. Ms. Sigerman seconded, and the motion
passed 5-0.

8C. Resolution 06-2019, granting a petition requesting the voluntary annexation of an
approximate 35.05 acre tract of land out of the S. Wallace Survey No. 114, Abstract No.
348, and the S. Wallace Survey No. 113, Abstract No. 347, said tract located within Kerr
County Texas, and the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Kerrville, Texas; consisting
of property lying adjacent to State Highway Loop 534; and ordering the preparation of an
annexation ordinance.

Mr. Blackburn opened the public hearing at 6:47 p.m.
Mr. Blackburn closed the public hearing at 6:49 p.m.

Mr. Baroody moved to approve Resolution 06-2019 to begin the annexation of the
property of the proposed Middle School. Ms. Eychner seconded, and the motion passed
5-0.

9. BOARD APPOINTMENTS:
9A. Appointment to the Zoning Board of Adjustment.

Ms. Sigerman moved to reappoint Danny Almond and Robert Irvin to the Zoning Board
of Adjustment, appoint Pablo Brinkman as a regular member to the Zoning Board of
Adjustment, and publically post and advertise for the two alternate vacancies. Ms.
Eychner seconded, and the motion passed 5-0.

9B. Appointment to the Senior Services Advisory Board.

Ms. Eychner moved to appoint Theresa Standage, Carla Weber, and Mike Wilson as
regular members of the Senior Services Advisory Board. Ms. Sigerman seconded, and
the motion passed 5-0.

ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS:
e The Homeless Population in Kerrville.
e Discussion of Selective Enforcement.

10. EXECUTIVE SESSION:

City Council may, as permitted by law, adjourn into executive session at any time to
discuss any matter listed above including if they meet the qualifications in Sections
551.071 (consultation with attorney), 551.072 (deliberation regarding real property),
551.073 (deliberation regarding gifts), 551.074 (personnel/officers), 551.076 (deliberation
regarding security devices), and 551.087 (deliberation regarding economic development
negotiations) of Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.




Mr. Baroody moved to go into executive session under Section 551.087 (deliberation
regarding economic development negotiations). Ms. Eychner seconded, and the motion
passed 5-0.

Council adjourned regular open session at 6:55 p.m.

10.A. Economic Development negotiations related to the construction of a Marriot
Springhill Suites in the downtown area located near Water Street and Spring Street.

11. ACTION ON ITEMS DISCUSSED IN EXECUTIVE SESSION, IF ANY
Council adjourned executive session at 7:16 p.m., and resumed regular open session at
7:16 p.m. Mr. Blackburn announced that Council took no action in executive session.

ADJOURNMENT.

The meeting was adjourned at 7:16 p.m.

APPROVED:
Bill Blackburn, Mayor

ATTEST:

Shelley McElhannon, City Secretary



TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

SUBJECT: Minutes for the City Council workshop held on February 19, 2019.

AGENDA DATE OF: February 26,2019 DATE SUBMITTED: Feb 20,2019

SUBMITTED BY: Shelley McElhannon

EXHIBITS: 20190226 _Minutes_ Council workshop 2-19-19.pdf

Expenditure Remaining Budget Amount Budgeted: Account Number:
Required: Balance in

Account:
$0 $0 $0 N/A

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO: N/A

Kerrville 2050 ltem? No

Key Priority Area N/A
Guiding Principle N/A
Action ltem N/A

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

Minutes from the February 19, 2019 City Council workshop held at City Hall Council
Chambers, 701 Main Street.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve minutes as presented.



https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/312486/20190226_Minutes__Council_workshop_2-19-19.pdf

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES KERRVILLE, TEXAS
WORKSHOP FEBRUARY 19, 2019

On February 19, 2019, the Kerrville City Council workshop was called to order at
10:03 a.m. by Mayor Blackburn in the City Hall Council Chambers at 701 Main
Street.

COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT:

Bill Blackburn Mayor

Delayne Sigerman Mayor Pro Tem
Vincent Voelkel Councilmember
George Baroody Councilmember

COUNCILMEMBER ABSENT:
Judy Eychner Councilmember

CITY STAFF PRESENT:

Mark McDaniel City Manager

E.A. Hoppe Deputy City Manager

Mike Hayes City Attorney

Stuart Barron Director of Public Works

Kyle Burow Director of Engineering

Amy Dozier Chief Financial Officer

David Knight Chief of Police

Shelley McElhannon City Secretary

Kim Meismer Executive Director for General Operations
Sherry Mosier Manager of Strategic Initiatives

Drew Paxton Executive Director for Development Services
Dannie Smith Fire Chief

VISITORS PRESENT: No visitors were present during the workshop.

1. DISCUSSION: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT NEEDS AND POSSIBLE
CAPITAL FUNDING OPTIONS

Public Safety Complex

Drainage and Streets

Park Improvement

Aquatics Center

ADJOURNMENT. The meeting adjourned at 10:50 a.m.

APPROVED: ATTEST:

Bill Blackburn, Mayor Shelley McElhannon, City Secretary



TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 2019-04 amending Chapter 58 "Health and Sanitation",
Article Il "Food Establishments" of the Code of Ordinances of the City of
Kerrville, Texas, by repealing the existing Article I and adopting a new
Article ll, which will adopt the Texas Food Establishment Rules, adopt local
amendments to said rules, and provide for the regulation of mobile food
units (food trucks); containing a cumulative clause; containing a savings and
severability clause; providing a penalty; and providing other matters relating
to the subject.

AGENDA DATE OF: February 26,2019 DATE SUBMITTED: Feb 18,2019

SUBMITTED BY: Trina Sanchez

EXHIBITS: 20190226 _Ordinance_2019-04 Food Truck revised 2-21-19 MH signed.pdf
20190226 Variance_Texas Heath-Human Services Variance Packet-Mobile Food

Trucks.pdf
Expenditure Remaining Budget Amount Budgeted: Account Number:
Required: Balance in
Account:
$0 N/A N/A N/A

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO: N/A

Kerrville 2050 Item? Yes
Key Priority Area D - Downtown Revitalization

Guiding Principle D4. Encourage and program Downtown public events and create
more gathering places that promote and enhance Downtown as
an arts, culture and music center

Action Iltem D4.15 - Enhance the viability of food trucks in the river parks

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

The Department of State Health Services adopted the new Texas Food Establishment
Rules (TFER) in October of 2015. Texas last updated its food code in 2006 which was
based on the 2001 FDA Food Code. The new TFER is closely aligned with the 2013 FDA
Model Food Code and brings Texas in line with current developments in food law, safety,
cooking, storage and other regulatory issues. The City of Kerrville has had a food



https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/313014/20190226_Ordinance_2019-04_Food_Truck_revised_2-21-19_MH_signed.pdf
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establishment ordinance for a number of years. The Code Enforcement and Environmental
Health Department wishes to adopt the TFER to simplify the Food Establishment rules,
with a few local amendments. The proposed ordinance will make it simple for staff and the
public since the regulations will be comprehensively handled through the Health and Safety
Code; and rules that are either preempted or no longer applicable will be removed.

In addition to adoption of the 2015 TFER, this updates the Mobile Food Unit (MFU) section
of the Code of Ordinances as it applies to the permitting and operation of food trucks
within the Kerrville city limits. Staff met with several mobile food vendors throughout the
ordinance drafting process. Comparisons were also made to several other cities across
the state. The updated requirements include improved yearly permitting, inspection
process, and requirements. The Food Service Advisory Board has also reviewed and
recommends the ordinance for adoption.

One of the major updates to the Mobile Food Unit section is a variance process for the
requirements of a Central Preparation Facility. According to the Texas Food
Establishment Rules (TFER) § 228.221 (b) (1). a mobile food unit must operate from a
licensed central preparation facility (CPF) or other approved retail food establishment.
The Texas Department of State Health Services has a variance request that waives the
requirement of a Central Preparation Facility. The updated mobile food unit section of the
Code of Ordinances would follow the same provisions of the Texas Department of State
Health Services. This waiver/variance would require the MFU operator to provide
information about the servicing operations, the location the MFU operator will use to fill
their potable water supply and the disposal of liquid waste. The servicing area must
comply with all requirements identified in TFER 228.221 (c) (1) (A)-(E).

Another updated section includes requirements from the Fire Department and Fire
Marshall's office. These requirements are in place for clear fire safety expectations until
the final adoption/update of the building and fire codes. These fire safety requirements are
similar to many cities across the state and are reflective of the Mobile Food Unit section in
the 2018 Fire Code.

Along with the updated food ordinance, there will be an update to the fee schedule for the
Mobile Food Units, lowering the overall fees for MFU's to obtain an annual permit. The
overall goal of this update, as discussed with the participating vendors and Food Service
Advisory Board, is to simplify the ordinance and increase the availability of the food truck
permits.

Following the first reading with City Council, there have been a few minor updates to the
ordinance, as discussed during the first reading.

In Section 58-32 Local Amendments, the items have been renumbered as suggested by
Councilman Baroody.

In 228.2(57) Food Establishment, we have revised to keep the following from the TFER
definition, "satellite feeding location, catering operation if the operation provides food



directly to a consumer or to a conveyance used to transport people". This section is still
amended from the original TFER, however this follows our current permitting operations.

Under the Mobile Food Unit section, a clarification was made to specify that a 5 pound
extinguisher is required. The previous draft did not include the required size.

For reference, a copy of the Texas Health and Human Services variance request packet is
attached. City of Kerrville Environmental Health is developing a similar packet for local
requests.

On February 12, 2019, City Council unanimously approved (5-0) the first reading of the
Ordinance No. 2019-04.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve Ordinance No. 2019-04 as presented.




CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
ORDINANCE NO. 2019-04

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 58 “HEALTH AND
SANITATION”, ARTICLE II “FOOD ESTABLISHMENTS” OF THE
CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS,
BY REPEALING THE EXISTING ARTICLE II AND ADOPTING A
NEW ARTICLE II, WHICH ADOPTS THE TEXAS FOOD
ESTABLISHMENT RULES, ADOPTS LOCAL AMENDMENTS TO
SAID RULES, AND PROVIDES FOR THE REGULATION OF
MOBILE FOOD UNITS (FOOD TRUCKS); CONTAINING A
CUMULATIVE CLAUSE; CONTAINING A SAVINGS AND
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A PENALTY; AND
PROVIDING OTHER MATTERS RELATING TO THE SUBJECT

WHEREAS, City Council finds that the regulations of the City of Kerrville
(“City”) governing the sale of food within its corporate limits should be amended to
establish updated standards for the preparation, handling, and serving of food; and

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the health, safety, and welfare of the public, the
City Council finds it is in the best interest of the City to revise Chapter 58, Article 11
“Food Establishments” of the City Code of Ordinances, to include adopting the most
recent edition of the Texas Food Establishment Rules (25 Texas Administrative Code,
Chapter 228) (“TFER”); :

WHEREAS, City Council, pursuant to Ordinance 2011-14, previously adopted
regulations applicable to the operation of a “mobile food establishment” within the City;
and

WHEREAS, such regulations are found within Chapter 58, Article II, Section
52-36 of the City’s Code of Ordinances; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of this article is to promote and strive for the sale of
only sound, properly labeled food through adoption and enforcement of state food
safety and sanitation standards, to promote education of food service workers with
the underlying purpose of preventing foodborne illness and protecting the public
health, and to establish standards for the issuance of a grading score which
represents the compliance by food establishments with this ordinance and state law;
and

WHEREAS, “mobile food establishments”, now referred to by the state as
“mobile food units” and more commonly known as “food trucks”, continue to increase
in number and popularity; and




WHEREAS, City Council now seeks to revise the City’s regulations applicable
to food handlers, the preparation of food, and food establishments, including food

trucks; and

WHEREAS, the City’s Food Advisory Board has considered the proposed
revisions during several meetings and voted unanimously to approve the changes to
the City’s Code of Ordinances as contemplated herein; and

WHEREAS, City Council finds it to be in the public interest to amend Chapter
58 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Kerrville, Texas, by to revise and replace
Article II as follows;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF KERRVILLE, KERR COUNTY, TEXAS:

SECTION ONE. Chapter 58 “Health and Sanitation”, Article II “Food
Establishments” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Kerrville, Texas, is amended
by repealing Sections 58-31, 58-32, 58-33, 58-34, 58-35, and 58-36 in their entirety, and
adopting the following new sections to Article I as indicated by the language that is
underlined (added) as follows:

“Sec. 58-31. — Adoption of state rules.

There is hereby adopted the “City of Kerrville Food and Food Handlers Code,” which

comprises the most recent version of the Texas Administrative Code, Title 25, Part 1,
Chapter 228, Texas Food Establishment Rules (TFER). The City shall maintain a copy

of the TFER in the office of the City Secretary and the Development Services
Department.

Sec. 58-32. — Local amendments.

(a) The Food and Food Handlers Code adopted by Section 58-31 is amended by
adding the following provisions to the Texas Administrative Code, Title 25, Part

1, Chapter 228:

1. 228.2(160) Code Enforcement/Health Officer -- the City’s Code
Enforcement and/or Health Officer(s), as designated by the City Manager
and assigned to inspect food establishments, educate food establishments’
employees and food employees on local and state statutory requirements
for health and safety in food service, and enforce all local and state health
and safety laws as permitted by law.
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228.2(161) Corn roaster -- a rotisserie type of oven mounted on a vehicle,
trailer, or pushcart that is designed to cook whole ears of corn with the

shucks in place.

228.2(162) Grade card -- a card indicating a letter grade that is posted at
the conclusion of an inspection which is based on the results from the
inspection report form.

228.2(163) Inspection report form -- the written report prepared by the
City following an inspection which indicates a numeric score to determine
compliance with this article as well as federal and state laws.

228.2(164) Reconstituted -- Food created or prepared by recombining

dehvdrated food products with water or other liquids.

228.2(165) Sanitation -- Effective bactericidal treatment process that
provides enough accumulative heat or concentration of chemicals for
enough time to reduce the bacterial count, including pathogens, to a safe
level on tableware, utensils, and equipment.

228.2(166) Route based vendor -- a restricted unit that travels from
location to location selling items.

228.2(170) Site based vendor -- a restricted or unrestricted unit that is
stationary.

228.2(171) Sticker -- a decal issued by the City that is numbered and has
the month and year of the expiration date of the food permit.

10.228.2(172) Supervisory personnel -- persons with supervisory training or

management responsibilities, as well as persons in charge of food
preparation or service.

11.228.2(173) Vehicle -- every device in, upon, or by which any food is or may

be transported, pushed, or drawn.

12.228.33(g) The certified food protection manager is considered in charge of

the permitted establishment and is required to remain on-site during food
preparation or where the business or operation is open to the public.

13.228.186(0)(2)(F) in areas that are not used for food preparation or storage,

a food establishment may, at the owner’s or manager’s discretion, allow
patrons to bring dogs on the premises after the food establishment (1) has
notified, in writing, the Code Enforcement/Health Officer that it intends
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to allow such action: and (2) posts notice of same in all areas where dogs
are allowed by the food establishment.

(b) The Food and Food Handlers Code adopted by Section 58-31 is revised by

adopting in place of the identically numbered provisions in the Texas

Administrative Code, Title 25, Part 1, Chapter 228, the following provisions:

1.

o

228.2(57) Food establishment -- Food establishment means an operation
that stores, prepares, packages, serves, vends, or otherwise provides food
for human consumption as follows:

a. A restaurant; retail food store; satellite feeding location, catering

operation if the operation provides food directly to a consumer or to a
conveyance used to transport people; market; self-service food market:
conveyance used to transport people; or institution, including any
establishment where prepackaged food and food products are offered for
sale to the ultimate consumer and intended for off premise consumption;

b. An establishment that relinquishes possession of food to a consumer
directly or indirectly through a delivery service such as home delivery of
grocery orders or restaurant takeout orders, or delivery service that is

provided by common carriers:;

c. Includes an element of the operation such as a transportation vehicle or
a central preparation facility that supplies a vending location or satellite
feeding location unless the vending or feeding location is permitted by the
regulatory authority and an operation that is conducted in a mobile,
stationary, temporary, or permanent facility or location; where
consumption is on or off the premises;

d. Food establishment does not include a produce stand that only offers
whole, uncut fresh fruits and vegetables; a food processing plant; a cottage
food industry; an area where cottage food is prepared, sold, or offered for
human consumption; a bed and breakfast; a food bank; or a private home
that receives catered or home-delivered food.

228.2(85) Mobile Food Unit (“MFU”) -- a vehicle mounted, self-, or
otherwise propelled, self-contained food service operation, designed to be
readily movable, including catering trucks, trailers, push carts, and
roadside vendors, and used to store, prepare, display. serve, or sell food.
A Mobile Food Unit must completely retain their mobility at all times. A
Mobile Food Unit does not include a stand or a booth. A roadside food
vendor is classified as a MFU.
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3. 228.2(116) Regulatory Authority -- the local, state, or federal enforcement
body or authorized representative having jurisdiction over a food
establishment, in most instances being the City and its Code
Enforcement/Health Officer. For purposes of this article and its
regulations, Regulatory  Authority, the City, and Code
Enforcement/Health Officer will be used at times interchangeably.

298.2(143) Temporary food establishment -- a food establishment that
operates a stand or booth for a period of no more than fourteen (14)

consecutive days in conjunction with a single event or celebration.

|

Sec. 58-33. - Inspections.

(a) The Code Enforcement/Health Officer, after proper identification, 1is
authorized and must be permitted to enter any food establishment at any
reasonable time to inspect for compliance with this article. The Code
Enforcement/Health Officer is authorized to examine the records of the
establishment to obtain information pertaining to food and supplies purchased,
received, or used, or to persons employed.

(b) The Code Enforcement/Health Officer shall inspect each food establishment
within the City at least once every six (6) months and shall make as many
additional inspections as are necessary for the enforcement of this article. The
Code Enforcement/Health Officer shall perform a follow-up inspection for any
establishment scoring seventy-five (75) or below on an inspection within ten
(10) days of the initial inspection. The food establishment shall pay a
reinspection fee prior to the follow up inspection. Failure to pay_the
reinspection fee or a second score of seventy-five (75) or below on an inspection
may result in an order to immediately cease all food service operations. Any
person, firm, or food establishment proven to have failed to immediately cease
all food service operations upon an order from the City may be deemed guilty
of a misdemeanor and shall, upon conviction by a court of competent
jurisdiction, be assessed fines or other punishment as provided by this article.

(c) If a food establishment is being inspected for the first time by a Code
Enforcement/Health Officer, the following additional requirements apply:

1. For a food establishment located on or within permanent premises, a
Code Enforcement/Health Officer will only conduct an inspection to
obtain a food service permit after the food establishment has passed
final inspections by the City’s Building Official and its Fire Marshal, or

designees.

2. For a food establishment operating as a Mobile Food Unit, a Code
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Enforcement/Health Officer will only conduct an inspection to obtain a

MFU permit after any other inspections required for the specific type of
MFU being operated have been completed and approval has been given.

3. A food establishment located on or within permanent premises may not
store any food defined as Time/temperature Control for Safety food
(“TCS”) at the premises until after the Code Enforcement/Health Officer
has completed the inspection and issued a permit. If a food
establishment is found to have TCS food on the premises at the time of
an initial health inspection, the Code Enforcement/Health Officer may
order the TCS food to be disposed of properly if it is found to have been
kept in unsafe conditions.

(d) Whenever an inspection of a food establishment is conducted, the findings
will be recorded in an inspection report and a copy of each inspection report
with number score and corresponding letter grade will be provided to the food
service manager or other person in charge of the establishment. The food
service manager shall post the letter grade corresponding to the food
establishment’s inspection report on an inside wall or window near the main
public entrance of the establishment in a location readily visible to customers.
Such letter grade may not be defaced or removed by any person except the Code
Enforcement/Health Officer. Any person, firm, or corporation who fails to
properly post the inspection report or the corresponding letter grade as
required may be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and shall, upon conviction
by a court of competent jurisdiction, be assessed fines or other punishment as
provided by this Code.

(e) In the case of a temporary food service establishment, all violations must

be corrected immediately. If a violation is not immediately corrected, a Code

Enforcement/Health Officer shall immediately suspend the permit. Any
person, firm, or establishment found to have failed to immediately cease
operations upon suspension of temporary food service permit may be deemed
guilty of a misdemeanor and shall, upon conviction by a court of competent
jurisdiction, be assessed fines or other punishment as provided by this Code.

Sec. 58-34. - Grease Traps.

The installation, operation, and maintenance of grease traps must comply with
the following regulations:

(a) When required. A food establishment, which generates grease or oil based
products which thus, may not be introduced into the publically owned
treatment works (“POTW”), otherwise known as the City’s wastewater system,
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as set forth in section Chapter 110 of the City’s Code, shall install a grease trap

in accordance with City-approved design specifications when:

8

2.

3.
4.

5.

The food establishment is initially constructed or permitted;

There is a change in ownership or in occupancy of the food
establishment;

There is a reconstruction of the premises;

A violation of Chapter 110 of the City’s Code has occurred; or

The food establishment has been determined by a Code

Enforcement/Health Officer to have no grease trap or to have a grease
trap which is insufficiently sized such that it is reasonable to expect that
the business or operation will discharge wastes into the wastewater
system in violation of Chapter 110 of the City’s Code if a sufficiently

sized grease trap is not installed.

(b) Deferral.

1

o

In limited situations as specified below, the holder of a food permit may
submit a written request to the City Manager, or designee, for a deferral
from the requirements of the applicable sections of Chapter 110 of the
City’s Code. The City will not grant a deferral until:

a. The City determines that the operation of the food establishment will

not result in the discharge of wastes into its wastewater system in
violation of Chapter 110 of the City’s Code: and

b. The permit holder has installed a sampling point (e.g., sample well)
accessible to the Code Enforcement/Health Officer, which allows for the
sampling of discharges from the food establishment into the City’s
wastewater system.

Once granted, a deferral will remain in effect until such time that the

Code Enforcement/Health Officer determines that test samples from the

sampling point indicate discharges from the food establishment violate
Chapter 110 of the City’s Code, or until federal, state, or local law
terminates such deferrals.

(c) Permittee liable. The holder of a food permit is at all times responsible for

the proper operation, cleaning, and maintenance of the grease trap connected
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to the wastewater system at the location to which the food establishment
permit was issued.

(d) Inspection by Code Enforcement/Health Officer. When conducting
inspections of a food service establishment, the Code Enforcement/Health
Officer shall conduct the following additional inspections:

1. A visual inspection of all grease traps installed at that location to
determine that the trap is being properly maintained and cleaned;

2. A review of the permit holder’s copy of the manifest of a liquid waste
transporter to determine the adequacy of cleaning of such traps in
accordance with Chapter 110 of the City’s Code; and

A visual inspection of the food establishment and the surrounding
premises to determine the reasonable likelihood that the operation of
the establishment will discharge wastes into the wastewater system in
violation of Chapter 110 of the City’s Code, if a sufficiently sized grease
trap is not installed.

&0

(e) Inspection report. The inspection report prepared by the Code
Enforcement/Health Officer pursuant to this section will include an evaluation
of the food establishment’s grease trap maintenance with a weighted score
noted for the level of compliance in the same manner as all other items

inspected.

() Maintenance of manifests. The holder of a food establishment permit must
keep and maintain on the premises of the food service establishment for a
period of five years after issuance, a copy of each manifest issued by a liquid
waste transporter for removal of waste from the grease trap of the food service
establishment in accordance with Chapter 110 of the City’s Code.

Sec. 58-35. — Permit required.

(a) It is unlawful for a person to operate a food establishment without a valid
permit issued by the Code Enforcement/Health Officer. Such permit is known as
a “food establishment permit’, a “temporary food establishment permit”, or a
“mobile food unit permit’; hereinafter collectively referred to as “permit(s)” or
“food permit(s)”. Only a person who complies with the requirements of this
article is entitled to receive or retain such a permit. A permit is not transferable
from one (1) person or place to another person or place. A valid permit must be
posted in view of the public in every food establishment. All food permits remain
the property of the City.
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(b) Any person desiring to obtain a food permit must apply for such permit on a
form provided by the City. Such application must include the applicant’s full
name and mailing address, the location of proposed food establishment, and the
signature of the applicant(s).

(c) Whenever a food establishment and/or retail food store is constructed or
remodeled, and whenever an existing structure is converted to use as a food
establishment and/or retail food store, properly prepared plans and specifications
for such construction, remodeling, or conversion must be submitted to the City
for review and approval before construction, remodeling, or conversion begins.
The plans and specifications must indicate the proposed layout, arrangement,
mechanical plans, construction materials of work areas, and the type and model
of proposed fixed equipment and facilities. The City shall approve the plans and
specifications if they meet the requirements of this article. It is unlawful for a
food establishment and/or retail food store to be constructed, remodeled. or
converted except in accordance with plans and specifications approved by the

City.

(d) Whenever plans and specifications are required to be submitted to the City,

the City shall inspect the food establishment prior to operation to determine

compliance with this article.

(e) Any person desiring to obtain a temporary food service permit must apply for
such permit on a form provided by the City. In addition to the information listed
in subsection (b) above, such application must include the inclusive dates of the
proposed operations: the name, address and telephone number of the owner(s) of
the property where the temporary food service establishment is to be located; and
a statement signed by the owner(s) of the property or authorized agent, stating
that arrangements have been made for the proper disposal of all rubbish, trash,
garbage, and for maintaining the property free from litter and nuisances during
the total period of operation up to and including any cleanup time required to
remove all rubbish, trash, garbage, and litter resulting from the food service. A
description of such arrangements must be included. A permit for a temporary
food establishment is limited to a time period that may not exceed fourteen (14)
consecutive days.

(f) Any person desiring to obtain a mobile food unit permit must apply for such
permit on a form provided by the City. In addition to the information listed in
subsection (b) above, such application shall include the physical address where
the mobile food unit is stationed when not in use; the business name and address
of the central preparation facility or other fixed food service establishment where
the potentially hazardous food supplies are obtained; the address of the servicing
area: a description of the mobile food unit which includes the manufacturer’s
make and model number.
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() A Code Enforcement/Health Officer shall issue the appropriate permit to the
applicant if the inspection reveals that the proposed food establishment complies
with the requirements of this article.

Sec. 58-36. — Mobile Food Units.

(a) Any person desiring to operate a mobile food unit (MFU) must obtain a permit
for each MFU from the Code Enforcement/Health Officer. A Code
Enforcement/Health Officer will issue each permit only after an inspection
reveals satisfactory compliance with state and local laws, including this article.
Such permit remains the property of the City.

(b) It is unlawful for a person to operate or cause to be operated any MFU, which
does not possess a valid permit issued by a Code Enforcement/Health Officer.
Any person, firm, or establishment who is found to have operated or caused to be
operated a MFU without a valid mobile food unit permit may be deemed guilty
of a misdemeanor and shall, upon conviction by a court of competent jurisdiction,
be assessed fines or other punishment as provided by this article. An MFU
operating within the City must have onsite at least one employee who possesses
a food manager certification.

(¢) The Fire Marshall shall inspect the mobile food unit as follows:

1. An operator of a MFU must possess a valid driver’s license. In addition,
the MFU must display valid license plates and a state registration sticker

and must be in good working order.

A mobile food unit must contain an “ABC” 5 pound sized extinguisher with
an annual inspection tag from a Texas licensed inspection company. If
frying media (grease) may occur, a class K extinguisher is required with
an annual inspection tag from a Texas licensed inspection company. An

MFU equipped with an automatic extinguishing system must have a

current (bi-annual) inspection tag from a Texas licensed inspection
company.

B2

An MFU must be parked or located in such a way as to maintain a

minimum of ten (10) foot clearance around the vehicle to allow for
emergency access. An MFU equipped with an automatic extinguishing
system must maintain a minimum of ten (10) foot clearance from all

combustible structures and other parked MFUs or unattended vehicles.
An MFU not equipped with an automatic extinguishing system but that

produces grease laden vapors must maintain a minimum of fifty (50) foot

distance from combustible structures or parked, unattended vehicles.

|*©
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All cooking appliances in the mobile food unit must be of an approved type.

listed, and labeled for the use intended. Appliances must be installed in
accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions. All cooking appliances
must have an approved, labeled, and listed on-off valve. Camp stoves or
the equivalent are prohibited.

All propane and natural gas appliances must be pressure tested annually
and contain only approved parts. Rubber hoses are prohibited. All piping
must comply with National Fire Protection Association 58 and be
protected from physical damage. Mounting and placement of containers
must comply with National Fire Protection Association 58 and Texas
Department of Transportation regulations. The capacity limit of propane
and natural gas containers or cylinders will be determined by the fire
marshal after consideration of features that secure and protect the
container. Upon request of the fire marshal, the owner/operator of the
MFU shall produce documentation illustrating that an annual gas test
was performed and passed by a licensed individual or firm.

Cooking surfaces in the mobile food unit must remain clean of grease
build-up. Trash containers and debris must be emptied regularly.
Appliances shall be plugged directly into electrical outlets and extension
cords may not be utilized for appliances.

The fire marshal is authorized to conduct periodic inspections as necessary
to determine the extent of compliance at any time.

(d) Such permit shall be affixed by the Code Enforcement/Health Officer on the

mobile food unit in a conspicuous place where it can be viewed by customers. A

permit will set forth the business name, license plate number, permit number

and expiration date.

(e) Every MFU must be readily identifiable by its business name and phone

number that are printed, permanently affixed, and prominently displayed on the

back of the unit and on the side of the unit from which food is served, in letters

not less than three (3) inches in height.

(f) A MFU must meet the following operational requirements and restrictions:

1.

It is unlawful for the operator of a MFU to remove any food from the MFU

to vend from a stand or other temporary structure located upon any public

street, sidewalk, right-of-way, or other adjacent public or private area Without

a permit as required by this article.
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2. It is unlawful to operate an MFU from the public right-of-way. The
operation of a mobile food unit near a street must not create a traffic hazard.

3. An MFU may apply for permission to operate within a City park subject
to applicable park regulations.

4. A MFU may operate on private property where the property is properly
zoned and the operator receives written permission from the property owner.

An operator is prohibited from parking and operating from an unimproved lot

as defined by the zoning code.

5. A MFU may not park in any location while operating and open for
business for more than 72 consecutive hours.

6. A MFU must completely retain its mobility at all times.

7. Unless written permission is granted by the appropriate school, it is
unlawful for a person to operate a MFU within 300 feet of the property line of
any public or private elementary, middle, or high school one hour before,
during, and after school hours.

8. No person shall operate a MFU within 50 feet of any residential zoning

district.

(g) According to TFER, a MFU must operate from a licensed central preparation

facility (CPF) or other approved retail food establishment. The City Manager, or
designee, may approve a variance to this requirement if the MFU meets all other
requirements set forth by the TFER and this article and the variance will not
create any health hazard or nuisance. An application for the variance must be
submitted on a form provided by the City and include: a statement of the
proposed variance that includes the section of the rule(s) related to the
modification: and, the rationale for how the potential public health hazards and
nuisances addressed by the relevant rule(s) will be alternatively addressed by
the proposed variance. In addition, an applicant may submit additional
documents and photographs that will help the City verify that a health hazard
or nuisance will not result from the variance. The City will provide a written
response to the applicant concerning the variance request. If the City grants a
variance, any deviation from the procedures is justification to rescind the
variance. Where the City grants a variance, the MFU must provide information
about the servicing operations, including the location the MFU operator will use
to acquire potable water and dispose of liquid waste.
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Sec. 58-37. — Fees.

Each application for a permit must be accompanied by the appropriate fee
established by City Council.

Sec. 58-38. — Permit valid for one year.

(a) Each permit is valid for twelve (12) months.

(b)  Anyone allowing a permit to expire without renewing, must pay a late fee
to renew a permit as established by City Council.

Sec. 58-39. — Grading of food establishment.

(a) The Code Enforcement/Health Officer shall inspect and issue a grade to
all food establishments in a uniform and consistent manner.

(b) The Code Enforcement/Health Officer, based upon a 100-point system,
shall determine the grade for each food establishment using the following

system:

“A” Card - a score of 90 or above, which indicates safe food handling practices
and designates a food establishment as meeting the provisions of this article.

“B” Card - a score between 80 and 89, which indicates that the food
establishment has met minimum health requirements but also was found to

have several violations of this article.

“C” Card - a score between 70 and 79, which indicates that a food
establishment was found to have several violations of this article which were
not immediately correctable.

(c) A food establishment that scores below 70 points shall immediately close to

the public and cease all food operations.

(d) Each food establishment shall post its grade card at or near each public
entrance or in similar conspicuous place. The grade card remains the property
of the City. No person shall move, remove, deface, camouflage, alter, or conceal
the grade card from public view. It is unlawful to remove a grade card or to
operate a food establishment unless the grade card is posted in the manner
requested herein. The grade card remains valid until the next routine inspection
of the food establishment.
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(e) Following an inspection by the Code Enforcement/Health Officer and the
issuance of a grade card, the permit holder for the food establishment may appeal

the grade as follows:

1. A permit holder must submit a written request for an appeal within five
business days to Development Services following the date of the

inspection.

The Code Enforcement/Health Officer shall schedule an appeal before the
City’s Food Service Advisory Board within twenty (20) business days
following the written appeal request. The board shall hear the appeal and
provide an opinion as to whether the grade was appropriate.

[

3. The previously issued grade card must remain posted through the appeal
process. Where a revised grade card is issued, the new grade card must
be posted in accordance with this section.

Sec. 58-40. — Suspension or revocation of permit.

(a) The Code Enforcement/Health Officer may suspend or revoke any permit
upon written notice as is reasonable under the circumstances, if the permit
holder does not comply with the requirements of this article, or if the operation
of the food establishment or MFU otherwise constitutes a substantial hazard to
public health. Suspension or revocation is effective upon service of notice as
required below. Where a permit is suspended or revoked, all food service

operations must immediately cease.

(b) Whenever a permit is suspended or revoked, notice must be given to the
permit holder or the person in charge of or responsible for the operation of the
food establishment or MFU. Such notice must include:

1. The specific condition(s) which are in violation of this article or the specific
conditions which constitute a substantial hazard to public health;

2. That the permit holder may file an appeal with the City’s Food Service
Advisory Board within three (3) business days after the permit is
suspended revoked, but that if the Code Enforcement/Health Officer
permits the food establishment to reopen before the appeal is held, the
appeal will be cancelled; and

3. That if an appeal is held, the permit holder must appear in person.

(c) Whenever a permit is suspended or revoked, the Code Enforcement/Health
Officer shall seize it.
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(d) The Food Service Advisory Board shall hear the appeal within fifteen (15)
business days of the City receiving an appeal of the permit holder. Upon setting
the appeal date and time, the City shall provide notice of such appeal to the
permit holder. If the permit holder fails to appear at the appeal before the Food
Service Advisory Board at the time, place, and date specified, the Food Service
Advisory Board may cancel the appeal.

(e) Where an appeal is held, the Food Service Advisory Board shall determine
whether the food establishment was, in fact, in violation of this article or that
it constituted a hazard to public health, and whether the permit should remain
suspended or revoked until all violations of this article are corrected and any
conditions constituting a hazard to public health are eliminated. A copy of the
Board’s decision shall be either given to the responsible party upon conclusion
of the appeal.

() Whenever the reasons for a suspension or revocation no longer exist, the
permit holder or the person in charge may notify the Code Enforcement/Health
Officer that the conditions under which the permit was suspended have been
corrected and that an inspection is requested. Upon receipt of request and
payment of a reinspection fee, the Code Enforcement/Health Officer shall
conduct such inspection as soon as possible and in no event, later than three
(3) regular working days after the receipt of the request for inspection.

(g) When a mobile food unit permit which has been suspended or revoked is
reinstated, a new permit shall be affixed to the mobile food unit. A reinstated
permit shall include all of the same information as that which appeared on the
permit which was suspended or revoked, and shall not be reinstated until a
reinspection has been completed and the reinspection fee(s) paid.

Sec. 58-41. - Food Service Advisory Board.

(a)  Appointment. The City has previously established and will continue to
maintain a Food Service Advisory Board (the “Board”), consisting of seven
members, each of whom is appointed by City Council. The Board is composed of
local certified food managers from the food service or food processing industry,
any person associated with a food establishment conducting business within the

City, and any Kerr County resident qualified by training and/or experience to

advise on the application of this article.

(b) Term of office. Board members serve for staggered terms of two years each
and no member of the Board may serve more than two consecutive terms.
Vacancies will be filled for an unexpired term in the manner in which the original
appointments are made.
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(c) Quorum. Four members of the Board constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business and a majority vote of the full membership is required to
effect an official action.

(d) Exofficio member; records. The Code Enforcement/Health Officer serves as
the officio member of the Board, without voting privileges. Such ex officio
member will act in an advisory capacity and secretary to the Board. The
secretary shall make a detailed record of all its proceedings, which shall set forth
the reasons for the Board’s decisions, the vote of each member participating
therein, the absence of a member, and any failure of a member to vote.

(e) Duties and powers.

1. Appeals.

a. The Board, when so appealed to in writing, may recommend to
the City a variance from any provision of this article to any
particular case when, in its opinion, the enforcement thereof
would do manifest injustice, and would be contrary to the spirit
and purpose of this article or public interest. The Board shall
develop the necessary policy that will establish the standards
regarding the granting of variance applications. However, it
shall be the duty and responsibility of the Code
Enforcement/Health Officer to make the final determination
regarding the grant of specific variance applications, and to
assure that the granting of the variance will not be detrimental
to the public health, safety, or welfare.

. A recommendation of the Board to vary the application of any

provision of this article shall specify in what manner such
variation or modification is made, the conditions upon which it
1s made, and the reasons therefor.

[=

Final recommendations of the Board must be in writing and

indicate the vote upon the decision. Every decision will be
promptly filed with the City Secretary and shall be open to
public inspection.

I

The Board shall, in every case, reach a decision without
unreasonable or unnecessary delay.

|~

The Code Enforcement/Health Officer shall take immediate
action after receiving the Board’s recommendation.

[E
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(2) Interpretations. The Board shall act upon requests for
interpretations of this article. The Board’s opinion on

interpretations shall be made in the form of a recommendation(s)

to the Code Enforcement/Health Officer. Requests for
interpretations may be made in writing by any person subject to
the application of this article.

(3) Aduisory matters.

a. The Board shall hear and review appeals relating to a
suspension or revocation of a food permit. The Board does not
have the authority to change or modify a decision by the Code
Enforcement/Health Officer.

b. Board may consider and make recommendations to the City

Council on any matter pertaining to this article.

Sec. 58-42. — Penalties.

(a) The provisions of this article are applicable to all food establishments unless
otherwise required by law.

(b) It is unlawful for any food establishment to operate within the City unless it
conforms to the provisions of this article.

(c) A permit holder shall ensure that the food establishment or mobile food unit
is in full compliance with this article at all times. The person in charge shall
ensure that the food establishment is operated in full compliance with this article
and that all food is stored, prepared, displayed and served in accordance with the
provisions of this article.

(d) Any person who violates any provision of this article is guilty of a

misdemeanor and upon conviction thereof shall be punished by a fine not
exceeding two thousand dollars ($2.000.00); provided, however, that no penalty
shall be greater than the penalty provided for the same or a similar offense under
the laws of the State of Texas. However, nothing in this article shall be construed
as requiring the Code Enforcement/Health Officer to report minor violations of

this article for prosecution whenever the Code Enforcement/Health Officer
believes the public interest will be adequately served in the circumstances by a

warning.”

SECTION TWO. The City Secretary is authorized and directed to submit this
amendment to the publisher of the City’s Code of Ordinances and the publisher is
authorized to amend said Code to reflect the amendment adopted herein and to correct
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typographical errors and to index, format, and number and letter paragraphs to the
existing Code, as appropriate.

SECTION THREE. The provisions of this Ordinance are to be cumulative of all
other Ordinances or parts of Ordinances governing or regulating the same subject
matter as that covered herein; provided, however, that all prior Ordinances or parts of
Ordinances inconsistent with or in conflict with any of the provisions of this Ordinance
are hereby expressly repealed to the extent of any such inconsistency or conflict.

SECTION FOUR. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of
this Ordinance is, for any reason, held to be unconstitutional or invalid, such holding
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. The City
Council of the City of Kerrville, Texas, declares that it would have passed this
Ordinance and each section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase hereof
irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses,
or phrases be declared unconstitutional or invalid.

SECTION FIVE. The penalty for violation of this Ordinance shall be in
accordance with the general penalty provisions contained in Section 1-7, Chapter 1 of
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Kerrville, Texas.

SECTION SIX. Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code §52.013(a) and
Section 3.07 of the City’s Charter, the City Secretary is authorized and directed to
publish the descriptive caption of this Ordinance in the manner and for the length of
time prescribed by the law as an alternative method of publication.

PASSED AND APPROVED ON FIRST READING, this the day of
_AD.,, 2019.

PASSED AND APPROVED ON SECOND AND FINAL READING, this
the day of ,A.D., 2019.

Bill Blackburn, Mayor

APPROVE TO FORM: ATTEST:
Michael C. Hayes, CityAttorney Shelley McElhannon, City Secretary
18
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Consumer Protection Division
Policy, Standards, And Quality Assurance Section
Public Sanitation and Retail Food Safety Unit

Texas Department of State
Health Services

Mobile Food Unit
Variance Request Template for a Central Preparation Facility (CPF)

Central Preparation Facility Required:
According to the Texas Food Establishment Rules (TFER) §228.221(b)(1), a

mobile food unit must operate from a licensed central preparation facility
(CPF) or other approved retail food establishment. The mobile food unit
should report to such location daily for supplies and for cleaning and
servicing operations. Servicing operations include the flushing and drainage
of liquid wastes and filling of potable water.

The mobile food unit operator must provide a signed letter of authorization
during the pre-licensing inspection if the establishment is not owned by the
operator. The most recent inspection for the CPF shall be maintained on
the MFU for review.

Servicing Area Required:
If a waiver is granted for a CPF, the MFU operator must provide information

about the servicing operations. This includes the location the MFU operator
will use to fill their potable water supply and the disposal of liquid waste. The
servicing area must comply with all requirements identified in TFER
228.221(c)(1)(A)-(E). If the servicing area is not owned by the operator, a
signed letter of authorization is required.

Variance Request Requirements:
Before a variance for operating a MFU without a Central Preparation Facility
is approved, the following information must be provided:

> A statement of the proposed variance that includes the section of the
rule(s) related to the modification.

> An analysis of the rationale for how the potential public health hazards
and nuisances addressed by the relevant rule sections will be
alternatively addressed by the proposal.

» A HACCP Plan may be required.

Public Sanitation and Retail Food Safety Unit ¢ PO Box 149347, Mail Code 1987 e Austin, Texas 78714-9347(512)
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If the variance request lacks “part or all” of the information, the variance will
not be approved. Please feel free to submit documents and photographs
that will help our department verify that a health hazard or nuisance will not
result from the variance. The department will provide a written response to
the requester concerning the outcome of the variance request.

If the department grants a variance, any deviation from the procedures is
justification to rescind the variance.

Public Sanitation and Retail Food Safety Unit ¢ PO Box 149347, Mail Code 1987 e Austin, Texas 78714-9347(512)
834-6753 e Facsimile: (512) 834-6683 e http://www.dshs.texas.gov/foodestablishments/
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Variance Request

Name of establishment: License number:

Mailing address:

I, , owner or authorized manager (circle
one), request a variance of rule §228.221(b)(1) concerning the requirement
for a Central Preparation Facility.

Signature of owner or authorized manager:

Date:

Public health rationale must be provided as justification for the variance.
You may provide the necessary rationale for your variance request by using
the attached checklist. Use additional pages or pictures for your
explanations. Submit your request by mail, fax, or email to:

Texas Department of State Health Services
PSQA - Public Sanitation and Retail Food Safety Unit
PO Box 149347 MC1987, Austin, Texas 78714-9347

Or Fax to
Texas Department of State Health Services
PSQA - Public Sanitation and Retail Food Safety Unit

Attention: Compliance Officer
(512) 834-6683

Or Email to

HaccpVarianceRequest@dshs.texas.gov

Public Sanitation and Retail Food Safety Unit ¢ PO Box 149347, Mail Code 1987 e Austin, Texas 78714-9347(512)
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Statement of Proposed Variance for Central Preparation Facility

In order to waive any requirements for a Central Preparation Facility, the
MFU owner/operator must demonstrate how the MFU meets the following
requirements:

Variance Request Rationale

Sufficient space is required for food storage, preparation, cooking, cooling or otherwise
handling food to prevent cross contamination and other health hazards.

Explain how your MFU meets the above requirements:

All food, food equipment, utensils and single service articles are required to be stored on the
MFU in a manner to avoid contamination as specified in TFER.

Explain how and where you will store the above equipment on the MFU:

The manual warewashing sink compartments are required to be large enough to immerse all
equipment and utensils on the unit to be properly washed, rinsed, and sanitized.

What is the largest piece of equipment or utensil you are using and how will it be
sanitized?

What is the capacity (size) of the three compartment sink?

Potable water is required to be obtained from an approved source.

Please specify how you will meet this requirement. Provide physical address of the
facility from where potable water will be obtained:

Public Sanitation and Retail Food Safety Unit ¢ PO Box 149347, Mail Code 1987 e Austin, Texas 78714-9347(512)
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Sewage and other liquid wastes shall be removed from a Mobile Food Unit at an approved
waste servicing area or by a sewage transport vehicle in such a way that a public health
hazard or nuisance is not created. MFU must have a permanently installed waste retention
tank.

Please specify how you will meet this requirement. Provide physical address of the
wastewater disposal facility:

All food handling preparation is required to take place inside the mobile food unit. No food
preparation, food storage, dry storage, etc. is allowed at a private residence.

Please specify how you meet the above requirement:

A Central Preparation Facility is required to be designed, constructed and operated as a
retail food service operation (i.e. walls, floors, ceiling, equipment, plumbing, etc.).

Please specify how your MFU meets these requirements:

The following documentations are required:
e Certified Food Manager Certificate
e Servicing area Authorization (please describe the facility)
e Menu of all food items to be sold.

Do you meet all of these requirements?

YES NO

Provide a copy of each of these documents in this request.

Failure to provide any of the requested information may cause a delay in
processing your variance request.

***NO FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS WILL OCCUR AT A PRIVATE RESIDENCE* **

Public Sanitation and Retail Food Safety Unit ¢ PO Box 149347, Mail Code 1987 e Austin, Texas 78714-9347(512)
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TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 09-2019 amending the City of Kerrville Fee Schedule by
adopting various fees to be charged with respect to the permitting and
operation of food establishments.

AGENDA DATE OF: February 26,2019 DATE SUBMITTED: Feb 01,2019

SUBMITTED BY: Amy Dozier

EXHIBITS: 20190226 Resolution_09-2019 Fee Schedule Amendment_Food
Establishments 022119 MH signed.pdf
20190226 Exhibit A_Fee Schedule Change effective 2-26-19.pdf

Expenditure Remaining Budget Amount Budgeted: Account Number:
Required: Balance in

Account:
$0 $0 $0 N/A

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO: N/A

Kerrville 2050 ltem? Yes
Key Priority Area D - Downtown Revitalization

Guiding Principle D4. Encourage and program Downtown public events and create
more gathering places that promote and enhance Downtown as
an arts, culture and music center

Action Item D4.15 - Enhance the viability of food trucks in the river parks

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

Ordinance No. 2019-04 was written to simplify the City's current policies and procedures
relating to food trucks, with the intention of increasing the availability of food truck permits.
The ordinance proposes lowering the overall fees for mobile food truck vendors to obtain a
permit. Currently, food truck vendors must pay $600 for an annual peddler's permit, plus
$150 per site for a mobile food establishment permit. Under the new structure, mobile
food trucks will pay $225 for one annual permit.

Even though fees are going down, staff expects revenue to go up. The City currently has
zero licensed food trucks under the old two permit structure. Staff expects multiple food
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truck vendors to request permits under the new structure.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve Resolution No. 09-2019.




CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
RESOLUTION NO. 09-2019

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE CITY OF KERRVILLE FEE
SCHEDULE BY ADOPTING VARIOUS FEES TO BE CHARGED
WITH RESPECT TO THE PERMITTING AND OPERATION OF
FOOD ESTABLISHMENTS

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Kerrville adopted a Fee Schedule
by Resolution No. 91-138 on September 24, 1991, and has amended said document on

a number of occasions; and

WHEREAS, as part of the City’s amendments to Chapter 58 “Health and
Sanitation”, Article IT “Food Establishments” of the City’s Code of Ordinances, which
adopts the Texas Food Establishments Rules, the Development Services Department
recommends amending the City’s Fee Schedule to adopt various fees applicable to the
operation of a “food establishment”, as defined by the Code;

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it is in the public interest of the
citizens of Kerrville to revise and set such fees as provided herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF KERRVILLE, KERR COUNTY, TEXAS:

The Fee Schedule of the City of Kerrville, Texas, is amended as set forth in
Exhibit A, as attached and incorporated herein by reference, such changes to be
effective immediately.

PASSED AND APPROVED ON this the day of AD.,
2019.

Bill Blackburn, Mayor

AP ROYED TO FORM: ATTEST:

Michael C. Hayes, City Attorney Shelley McElhannon, City Secretary
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City of Kerrville
Fee Schedule Change effective 2/26/19
HEALTH DEPARTMENT
HEALTH PERMIT - LATE FEE (after October 15 in addition to original permit):
LATE FEE - 15 days after expiration date, in addition to original permit fee:
applies to Health, Mobile Food Unit and Multi Event Temporary Permits

MOBILE FOOD ESTABLISHMENT PERMITS:

UNRESTRICTED Mobile Food Establishment (peddlers permit required also):

RESTRICTED Mobile Food Establishment (peddlers permit required also):
MOBILE FOOD UNIT PERMIT:

TEMPORARY FOOD ESTABLISHMENT - SPECIAL EVENT:
Multi Event Temporary
Single Event Temporary

Current Fee Schedule

Proposed Fee Schedule

[per permit | $50.00]  remove this line
[per permit [ $50.00|
remove this line

per unit $150.00 remove this line

per unit $50.00 remove this line
[annual permit | $225.00]

[14 day | $35.00]  remove fees from this line
annual permit $225.00
single event $45.00




TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

SUBJECT: Authorize the execution of a construction contract with Dowtech Specialty
Contractors, Inc. for the Water Treatment Plant Trihalomethanes (THM)
Control Facility project in the amount of $4,001,801.

AGENDA DATE OF: February 26,2019 DATE SUBMITTED: Feb 15,2019

SUBMITTED BY: Kyle Burow

EXHIBITS: 20190226_Bid_Water Treatment Plant THM Control Facility - Dowtech Specialty
Contractors.pdf
20190226 _Letter Recommendation of Award - Dowtech Specialty Contractor.pdf

Expenditure Remaining Budget Amount Budgeted: Account Number:
Required: Balance in

Account:
$4,001,801 $4,654,004 $5,000,000 71-7100-5500,

Project #71-17005

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO: Dowtech Specialty Contractors, Inc.

Kerrville 2050 ltem? No
Key Priority Area W - Water / Waste-Water / Drainage
Guiding Principle W3. Address water quality challenges with proven solutions

Action ltem Wa3.5 - Improve water quality by addressing Trihalomethane
(TTHM) contaminants

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

In April 2017, the City of Kerrville (City) contracted Freese and Nichols (FNI) to assist in
developing a project to bring the City into compliance with TCEQ and EPA revised
standards for trihalomethanes (THMs). The scope of the project was to compare two
possible engineering solutions. The first method was an alternative disinfection with the
use of chloramines and the second to analyze the use of Granular Activated Carbon (GAC)
filters. The City and FNI determined the most effective and efficient method for the City
water system is the addition of GAC filters at the Water Treatment Plant. In March 2018,
the City contracted to have a third party review to evaluate the GAC system on the City's
water system in addition to evaluation of the electrocoagulation process. In December
2018, City Council was presented with the findings of the study and the project was
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released for bidding.

Four bids were received February 15, 2019 for the THM Control Facility project with
Legion Development, LLC. as the apparent low bid. After review of qualifications, it was
determined by that Legion Development, LLC did not meet the qualification requirements
for the project. Staff analyzed the second lowest bid, Dowtech Specialty Contractors, Inc.,
and are recommending award of the contract to them for the THM Control Facility project.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Authorize the execution of a construction contract with Dowtech Specialty Contractors, Inc.




Project Name : WTP THM Control Facility
Engineering Number: PW#17-008

Bid Opening: February 15, 2019
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Practical results

F R E E s E Innovative approaches
(|
r. gm Ic HOLS Outstanding service

1251 Sadler Dr. Building 1, Suite 1150 * San Marcos, Texas 78666 * 512-213-3200 - (FAX) 512-312-3201 www.freese.com
February 19, 2019

City of Kerrville, Texas
City Hall

701 Main Street
Kerrville, Texas 78028

Attn:  Kyle Burow, P.E.
City Engineer

Re: Water Treatment Plant THM Control Facility
FNI Project No. KER17340
City of Kerrville Engineering No. C-2017-33
Recommendation of Award of Contract

Mr. Burow:

Bids were received on February 15, 2019 for the City of Kerrville’s Water Treatment Plant THM Control
Facility. A copy of the Bid Tabulation for this project has been completed by Freese and Nichols, Inc. (FNI)
and is attached for your use. Below is a summary of the bids:

Bidder Bid Amount

Legion Development, LLC $3,788,777.00
Dowtech Specialty Contractors, Inc. $4,001,801.00
Keystone Construction $4,049,000.00
Shannon-Monk, Inc. $4,244,081.00
Black Castle General Contractor $4,902,086.00

FNI’s estimate for the project was $4,391,000.00, including a twenty (20) percent contingency.

Upon review, it was identified that Legion Development, LLC, did not meet the project’s minimum
experience requirements per Section 0045 16 “Statement of Qualifications” and were deemed non-
responsive. Based on our review of the bid and verified references, we recommend the award of contract
for the Water Treatment Plant THM Control Facility to Dowtech Specialty Contractors, Inc. in the amount
of $4,001,801.00.

Substantial and Final Completion of the project is required to be achieved within 330 and 390 calendar
days, respectively, from the Notice to Proceed date.

If you have any questions or concerns, please call me at (512) 213-3206.

Sincerely,

%—M

Charles Kucherka, P.E.
Project Manager

Attachments
Bid Tabulation
T:\1.04 CORRESPONDENCE\Recommendation of Award Letter -- Dowtech Specialty Contractors.docx



TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

SUBJECT: Presentation and acceptance of the City of Kerrville's Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2018.

AGENDA DATE OF: February 26,2019 DATE SUBMITTED: Feb 19,2019

SUBMITTED BY: Amy Dozier

EXHIBITS: 20190226 Report_2018 CAFR Draft.pdf
20190226 Report_CAFR Presentation.pdf

Expenditure Remaining Budget Amount Budgeted: Account Number:
Required: Balance in

Account:
$0 $0 $0 N/A

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO: N/A

Kerrville 2050 tem? No

Key Priority Area N/A
Guiding Principle N/A
Action Item N/A

SUMMARY STATEMENT:
The City engaged BKD, LLP to perform the City's annual independent financial audit and
assist with preparing the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2018. A draft of the CAFR is attached. Kevin Kemp, Audit
Partner with BKD, will present financial highlights.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Accept the City of Kerrville's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2018.



https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/313627/20190226_Report_2018_CAFR_Draft.pdf
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City of Kerrville
701 MAIN STREET # KERRVILLE, TEXAS 780268 ® 830.257.8000 ® KERRVILLETX.GOV

Letter of Transmittal

February 26, 2019

Honorable Mayor and City Council,
and Citizens of Kerrville, Texas:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the City of Kerrville, Texas (the City or Kerrville) for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, is hereby submitted. This report was prepared through the
cooperative effort of the Finance Department and the City’s independent auditor, in accordance with
Section 103.001 of the Texas Local Government Code and Article VIII, Section 8.08 of the Charter of the
City of Kerrville. The purpose of the report is to provide the City Council, management, staff, the public
and other interested parties with detailed information reflecting the City’s financial condition.

The full responsibility for the accuracy and reliability of the data, as well as completeness and fairness of
this report, including all disclosures, rests with City management. The City has established and maintains
a system of internal accounting controls designed in part to provide a reasonable assurance that assets
are safeguarded against loss, theft, or unauthorized use, and that financial records can be relied upon to
produce financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAP). The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of maintaining
the system of internal accounting controls should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived. We believe
the data, as presented, is accurate in all material aspects; that it is presented in a manner designed to
fairly set forth the financial position and results of operations of the City as measured by the financial
activity of its various funds; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the maximum
understanding of the City’s financial affairs have been included. As management, we assert that, to the
best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

BKD, LLP, Certified Public Accountants, has issued unmodified opinions on the City’s financial
statements for the year ended September 30, 2018. The goal of the independent audit was to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2018, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a
reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion on the City’s financial statements for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2018, and that the financial statements are fairly presented in conformity with
GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of
this report.



Also included in the financial section is management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), which provides
users of the basic financial statements a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the basic
financial statements. The basic financial statements, including the accompanying notes, represent the
core of the financial section. These financial statements present the financial condition of the City as a
single entity, as well as the individual funds that account for the City’s various governmental and
business-type activities. This transmittal letter is designed to complement the MD&A, and should be read
in conjunction with it.

Profile of the Government

The City of Kerrville is the county seat and principal commercial center of Kerr County, Texas. It is
located approximately 65 miles northwest of San Antonio on U.S. Interstate 10. Principal industries in the
community include hospitality (made up of tourism, youth camps, retreat facilities, RV parks and
hunting), health care, jewelry, retail and manufacturing.

The City continues to experience steady increases in population. The official census populations for 2000
and 2010 were 20,425 and 22,347 respectively. The 2018 population estimate was 24,796, representing
an increase of 4,371 (21%) over 2000 and 2,449 (11%) increase since 2010.

For financial reporting purposes, the City is a primary government. As previously mentioned, the City’s
governing body is elected by the citizens of Kerrville. This report includes all organizations and activities
for which the elected officials exercise financial control. The City is legally responsible for the Kerrville
Economic Improvement Corporation (EIC), which is reported separately within the government wide
financial statements of the City along with the Kerrville Public Utility Board, for which the City appoints all
board members.

The City provides a full range of municipal services including general government, public safety (police
and fire), streets, parks and recreation, community development, planning and zoning, code enforcement,
a public library, emergency medical services and business-type activities, such as water and sewer
services and golf. Solid waste collection services are provided through private contractors; non-
residential customers contract with the collection firm of their choice, while residential customers contract
through the City with collection fees added to their municipal water and sewer bill.

The annual budget of the City serves as the foundation for its financial planning and control. The budget
is proposed by the City Manager and adopted by the City Council in accordance with policies and
procedures established by the City Charter, State Law, Council ordinances and policies. The budget is
prepared and presented by fund (e.g., general fund), department (e.g., police) or function (e.g., debt
service) and line items (e.g., salaries and wages). The fund level is the legal level of control for budget
expenditures. The budgetary process begins each year with budget priorities set by City Council. Next,
the City’s Finance Department prepares revenue estimates and budget instructions. Then, each City
department prepares expenditure estimates and requests.  Estimates and requests are reviewed by a
budget committee that includes the City Manager, and evaluated within the total financial framework of
the City. The City Manager makes final decisions as to what budget recommendations are submitted to
the City Council. The City Charter requires that a working copy of the budget be filed with the City
Secretary no later than July 31. The City Manager’s proposed budget is reviewed extensively by the City
Council, along with a final public review process, including required public hearings prior to budget
adoption. The City Charter requires adoption of the City budget no later than September 30.

Budgetary reporting is provided at the department level within the individual fund. Transfers of budget
appropriations within departments may occur with the approval of the City Manager provided there is not
an increase in overall expenditures. Transfers of budget appropriations between funds as well as any
increase in total appropriations require Council approval.



Budget to actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund for which
an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. For the general fund and major special revenue funds,
this comparison is presented as required in the required supplementary information section of this report.

Local Economy

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered
from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City operates. Several small
manufacturing firms are located in the Kerrville area, as well as a variety of commercial establishments,
restaurants, building supply stores, retail shops, banks and supermarkets. Sales tax revenues have
been steadily increasing since 2011. The unemployment rate of 3.3% continues to remain below state
and national averages.

Economic and recreation opportunities continue to expand in Kerrville. In addition to recently renovated
parks and a six mile long River Trail, the City opened a youth baseball and soccer complex in January
2018. In 2018, the Sports Complex hosted almost 600 tournament teams, resulting in significant impact
to the Kerrville area. Additionally, the City began pumping water from its new reuse pond in July 2018.
The reuse pond is a significant component of the City’s overall water plan. It allows the City to send
treated water from the Water Reclamation Plant into a holding pond, rather back into the Guadalupe
River. From there, the treated non-potable water is used to irrigate large areas such as golf courses and
schools, thereby reducing the demand for the valuable potable water supply. All of these projects were at
least partially funded by Kerrville’s EIC.

Representatives of the City along with other community leaders continue to encourage development of
this area to attract light, clean industry. The quality of life found in Kerrville is especially attractive to
retirees, who provide a strong, stable economic base and active community involvement. In recent years,
Kerrville has seen an increase in younger families moving into the community to fill jobs in Kerrville's
expanding service industry. These factors, along with a continuing effort to bolster our economic base,
are expected to result in continued economic improvement during the coming years.

Long-term Financial Planning

The City’s fund balance reserve policy sets the minimum reserve at 25% for each fund, which exceeds
the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) recommended
best practice minimum of 15%. GFOA recommends that “general-purpose governments, regardless of
size, maintain unassigned fund balance in their general fund of no less than two months of regular
general fund operating revenues or regular general fund operating expenditures.” This policy allows the
City to better weather economic downturns and strategically handle contingencies and unforeseen
emergencies. The City’'s General Fund’s unassigned fund balance is approximately $8.4 million or 31%
of General Fund operating expenditures as of September 30, 2018. In addition, the City uses a five-year
forecast in its budget process to guide decisions and assist in policy. The long range view allows the City
to plan appropriately for the future impact of current decisions.

The City maintains a ten year Community Investment Plan (CIP), with all planned capital projects
reviewed annually by the City staff and City Council. This annual review allows the City to change and
adjust priorities by responding to changing growth patterns, economic conditions, or federal and state
mandates. The CIP is used exclusively as a planning tool, and therefore does not commit the City to any
project or project funding. The intent of the CIP is for the City staff to identify specific capital
improvements needed and project affordability. The CIP is not a capital budget, and as such provides
only recommended projects and the means of financing the improvements. Recommended
improvements are not approved until official action has been taken by the City Council.



The CIP presented in the FY 2019 budget book identified approximately $67 million in projects during the
next ten years. This list focuses on water and sewer infrastructure improvements including the
construction of a new lift station and installation of a new water filtration system in FY 2019. General
Fund projects include the construction of a new public safety building. The City anticipates funding these
improvements with both cash and debt. Debt obligations include both self-supporting debt (e.g., water
and sewer improvements) and general obligation debt (e.g., public safety building). This CIP was
reviewed and updated in the FY 2019 budget process to ensure consistency with current economic trends
and City needs.

Awards and Acknowledgements

GFOA awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017, and a reproduction
of the certificate is included in this report. The City has received a Certificate of Achievement for thirty-
four consecutive fiscal years (FY 1984 through FY 2017).

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, the contents of which must conform to
program standards. Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for the period of one year only. We believe our current report
continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it to
the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation of this report could not be accomplished without the dedicated services of the entire staff
of the Finance Department. Many individuals devoted extra hours and exhibited dedicated effort in
ensuring the accuracy and timeliness of this report. Appreciation is expressed to the City employees
throughout the organization, especially those responsible for the maintenance of records upon which this
report is based.

Acknowledgment and appreciation is also given to representatives of BKD, LLP, Certified Public
Accountants, for their dedicated assistance and input into the preparation of this report.

Finally, our appreciation is extended to the Mayor and the members of the City Council for their interest
and support in planning and conducting the financial operations of the City in a responsible manner.

Respectfully submitted,

Mark McDaniel Amy Dozier
City Manager Chief Financial Officer
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

The Mayor and City Council
City of Kerrville, Texas

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Kerrville, Texas (City), as of and for the year ended September
30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the financial statements of the Kerrville-Kerr County Airport Board, a joint venture between the
City of Kerrville and Kerr County, which statements reflect total net position of $17,823,919 of which
50% ($8,911,960) is recorded in the statement of net position and represents 7.0% of the governmental
activities total assets. We also did not audit the financial statements of Kerrville Public Utility Board
(KPUB), a discretely presented component unit, which represents approximately 93%, 92% and 92%,
respectively, of the assets, net position and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component
units. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us,
and our opinions, insofar as they relate to the amounts included as equity in joint venture and the
aggregate discretely presented component units, are based solely on the reports of the other auditors. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. The financial statements of KPUB were not audited in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards.



The Mayor and City Council
City of Kerrville, Texas
Page 9

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of September 30, 2018, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2018 the City adopted GASB Statement No. 75,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Our opinions are
not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison, pension and other postemployment benefit information
and modified approach for capital assets as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory information, combining statements,
budgetary comparison schedules, financial statements of the Economic Improvement Corporation and
statistical section as listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining statements, budgetary comparison schedules and financial statements of the Economic
Improvement Corporation are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining statements,
budgetary comparison schedules and financial statements of the Economic Improvement Corporation are
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory information and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 26,
2019, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

Dallas, Texas
February 26, 2019
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended September 30, 2018

Introduction

As management of the City of Kerrville, Texas (City), we offer readers of the City’s financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2018. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction
with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on
pages 1 — 4 of this report.

Financial Highlights

Government-wide

e The City’s assets and deferred outflows exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows at the close of the
2018 fiscal year by $149,428,371. Of this amount, $30,039,882 (unrestricted net position) may be
used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors in accordance with the City’s
fund designation and fiscal policies as more fully described below.

e During 2018, the City’s total net position increased by $1,088,955 or 0.7%. The net position of
business-type activities increased by $2,039,837 or 4.0%. The net position of governmental activities
decreased by $950,882 or 1.0%. These changes include the impact resulting from implementation of
GASB No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions, which resulted in a restatement decreasing beginning net position by $955,943.

e Total expenses of all the City’s programs were $43,191,590 in 2018 as compared to $39,398,636 in
2017.

Fund Statements

o As of September 30, 2018, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$22,935,854. Of this total amount, $8,419,116 or approximately 36.7%, is unassigned and available
for use within the City’s designation and policies in the governmental funds.

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance in the General Fund was $8,419,116 or
31.5% of the General Fund expenditures.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial
statements. The City’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: (1) government-
wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements and (3) notes to the financial statements. This
report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements
themselves.
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(1) Government-wide Financial Statements

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City’s assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities and deferred inflows, with the difference between assets plus deferred outflows of
resources, less liabilities less deferred inflows reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases
in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial condition of the City is improving
or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g.,
uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety, public
works and culture and recreation. The business-type activities of the City include water and wastewater
services and the City’s public golf course.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself, but also a legally separate
electric utility, Kerrville Public Utility Board (KPUB), as well as the Economic Improvement Corporation
(EIC). Financial information for these component units is reported separately from the financial
information presented for the primary government itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 19 — 21 of this report.

(2) Fund Financial Statements

Fund Financial Statements — A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into two categories: governmental funds
and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near term inflows
and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of
the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near term financing
requirements.

Because the focus on governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.
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The City maintains twelve individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and in the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for the General Fund and the Governmental IP Fund, which
are considered to be major funds. Data from the other ten funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation. Individual funds data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the
form of combining statements in the combining statements section in the report.

The governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 22 — 25 of this report.

Proprietary Funds — The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The City maintains two enterprise funds. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its
water and wastewater services, and the City’s public golf course.

Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among
the City’s various functions. The City uses internal service funds to account for an automotive
maintenance facility and employees’ health insurance services. Because both of these services
predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included within
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Enterprise funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail. The enterprise fund financial statements provide information for the Water and Sewer
Fund and the Golf Course Fund. The Water and Sewer Fund is considered to be a major fund of the City
while the Golf Course Fund is presented in a single column as a nonmajor enterprise fund. The internal
service funds are also combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial
statements. Individual fund data for the nonmajor enterprise funds and internal service funds is provided
in the form of combining statements elsewhere in the report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 26 — 29 of this report.

(3) Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements. Each note is designed to give a more detailed
explanation of the figures, which are presented in summary form throughout the financial statements
section of the report.

The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 32 — 65 of this report.

Comparative Financial Information

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the City, assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by
$149,428,371 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

By far, the largest portion of the City’s net position (77.9%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g.,
land, buildings, infrastructure and system improvements), less any related debt used to acquire those
assets that is outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.
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Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities

Total

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Current and other assets $ 34,607,238 $ 36,144,638 $ 12,973,630 $ 22,950,556 $ 47,580,868 $ 59,095,194
Capital assets 92,168,392 92,308,217 83,808,592 75,723,522 175,976,984 168,031,739
Total assets 126,775,630 128,452,855 96,782,222 98,674,078 223,557,852 227,126,933
Deferred outflows of resources 2,474,938 5,076,759 727,788 1,103,620 3,202,726 6,180,379
Long-term liabilities 26,307,415 30,874,141 40,199,354 43,501,844 66,506,769 74,375,985
Other liabilities 4,364,967 4,688,714 4,578,170 5,903,197 8,943,137 10,591,911
Total liabilities 30,672,382 35,562,855 44,777,524 49,405,041 75,449,906 84,967,896
Deferred inflows of resources 1,562,309 - 319,992 - 1,882,301 -
Net position
Net investment in capital assets 71,381,407 69,695,250 45,057,360 37,218,598 116,438,767 106,913,848
Restricted for debt service 1,144,467 1,138,463 1,805,255 1,805,255 2,949,722 2,943,718
Unrestricted 24,490,003 27,133,046 5,549,879 11,348,804 30,039,882 38,481,850
Total net position $ 97,015,877 $ 97,966,759 $ 52,412,494 $ 50,372,657 $ 149,428,371 $ 148,339,416

During 2018, the water and sewer system utilized bond proceeds for significant capital items which
caused a decrease in current and other assets and an increase in capital assets. Both governmental

activities and business-type activities saw a decrease in long-term liabilities due to a debt refinancing

and a reduction in net pension liability.

An additional portion of the City’s net position represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position may be used to
meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in each category of net

position for the government as a whole.

The City’s net position increased during the current fiscal year. The increase is primarily attributable to

business-type activities as shown in the following table:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Rewenue

Programrevenue
Charges for services $ 6,375,410 $ 6,490,553 $ 12,740,076 $ 12,748,271 $ 19,115,486 $ 19,238,824
Operating grants and contributions 272,964 348,256 - - 272,964 348,256
Capital grants and contributions 1,314,445 2,594,597 1,500,000 1,500,000 2,814,445 4,094,597

General revenue
Property tax 10,990,038 10,768,613 - - 10,990,038 10,768,613
Sales tax 6,899,129 6,721,841 - - 6,899,129 6,721,841
Hotel occupancy tax 1,333,802 1,218,988 - - 1,333,802 1,218,988
Franchise tax 1,950,886 1,733,644 - - 1,950,886 1,733,644
Alcoholic beverage tax 87,059 72,427 - - 87,059 72,427
Unrestricted investment earnings 391,070 243,925 228,855 222,091 619,925 466,016
Miscellaneous revenue 1,152,754 2,064,119 - - 1,152,754 2,064,119
Total revenue 30,767,557 32,256,963 14,468,931 14,470,362 45,236,488 46,727,325

Expenses

General government $ 6,988,212 5,804,497 - - 6,988,212 5,804,497
Public safety 14,242,578 14,239,827 - - 14,242,578 14,239,827
Cultural and recreation 5,111,916 4,542,728 - - 5,111,916 4,542,728
Public works 5,617,405 4,002,088 - - 5,617,405 4,002,088
Interest on long-termdebt 605,985 722,457 - - 605,985 722,457
Water and sewer operations - - 9,579,018 8,997,499 9,579,018 8,997,499
Golf course - - 1,046,476 1,089,540 1,046,476 1,089,540
Total expenses 32,566,096 29,311,597 10,625,494 10,087,039 43,191,590 39,398,636
Excess (deficiencies) before transfers (1,798,539) 2,945,366 3,843,437 4,383,323 2,044,898 7,328,689
Transfers 1,641,090 3,934,338 (1,641,090) (3,934,338) - -
Changes in Net Position (157,449) 6,879,704 2,202,347 448,985 2,044,898 7,328,689
Net Position, Beginning of Year, as adjusted* 97,173,326 91,087,055 50,210,147 49,923,672 147,383,473 141,010,727
Net Position, End of Year $ 97,015,877 $ 97,966,759 $ 52,412,494 $ 50,372,657 $ 149,428,371 $ 148,339,416

*Net position was adjusted for adoption of GASB No. 75 for 2018. 2017 has not been adjusted for GASB No. 75.
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Overall Financial Position and Results of Operations

Governmental Activities

Governmental activities operations decreased the City’s net position by $157,449. The total decrease of
$950,882 was primarily due to implementation of GASB 75 which resulted in a decrease in net position of
$793,433. In fiscal year 2017, the City received miscellaneous revenue related to the sale of property that
formerly housed City Hall and insurance proceeds to cover extensive damage from a hail storm. These
miscellaneous revenue items did not occur in fiscal year 2018. General government expense increased from
fiscal year 2017 for several reasons including expenditures for the Kerrville 2050 Comprehensive Plan,
additional landfill permitting, downtown parking garage repairs and merit increases for General Government
employees. Public works increased significantly in fiscal year 2018 primarily due to additional street
maintenance expense incurred by outsourcing several large projects. The City saved funds for several years
in order to pay cash for the outsourced projects.

Business-type Activities

Business-type activities operations increased its net position by $2,039,837 ($2,202,347 from operations less
$162,510 for implementation of GASB 75) primarily due to a capital contribution from the Economic
Improvement Corporation (EIC) of $1,500,000 for the construction of reuse water distribution lines and
reduced debt service cost due to a debt refinancing in December 2017.

Individual Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near term inflows, outflows and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s
net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $22,935,854, a decrease of $375,784 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately
36.7% of total fund balance or $8,419,116 constitutes unassigned General Fund’s fund balance, which is
available for spending at the government’s discretion. The remainder of fund balance is nonspendable,
restricted, committed or assigned to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has been
committed for restricted purposes (debt service, capital projects).

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned
fund balance of the General Fund was $8,419,116. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may
be useful to compare unassigned fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance
represents 31.5% or more than three months of total General Fund expenditures.

The fund balance of the City’s General Fund increased by $1,608,231 during the current fiscal year. Key
factors are as follows:

e EIC contributions of $950,000 for capital projects
e $382,892 donation from a private foundation for the Kerrville Sports Complex
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The Governmental IP Fund’s fund balance decreased approximately $2.4 million in fiscal year 2018 due
primarily to projects that were funded in previous years, but completed in 2018. The projects included
the Kerrville Sports Complex, an extension of the River Trail and several large street maintenance
projects.

Proprietary Funds

The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the proprietary funds at the end of the year amounted to $5,549,879 with
unrestricted net position of the Water and Sewer Fund at the end of the year amounting to $5,649,283.

Overall, Water and Sewer Fund net position increased from operations by $2,113,687 compared to an
increase of $674,837 in fiscal year 2017. The increase is due to a capital contribution of $1,500,000 from
the EIC as earlier discussed.

General Fund Budgetary Analysis

In fiscal year 2018, fund balance increased by $1,608,231, which is $1,475,942 higher than budgeted. This is
due to higher than anticipated revenues combined with lower than anticipated expenditures.

Actual revenues exceeded budget by $649,456, primarily due to better than forecast charges for service
revenue because of $254,041 payment received from the Ambulance Supplemental Payment Program and
higher than budgeted investment income due to rising interest rates during fiscal year 2018.

Actual expenditures were $826,485 less than budgeted, due primarily to lower than anticipated capital outlays
and staffing vacancies in the Police department.

Capital Asset and Long-term Debt Administration

Major Capital Additions

In fiscal year 2018, the City recognized asset additions for a River Trail extension, and the Kerrville
Sports Complex. In addition, the Water and Sewer Fund recorded assets related to the reuse pond, Legion
Lift Station and a new water filtration system.

Capital Assets

As of September 30, 2018, total capital assets of the City’s governmental and business-type amount to
$175,976,984 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land,
buildings and improvements, infrastructure and system improvements (including streets and drainage
infrastructure) and machinery and equipment.

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Land $ 7,535,757 $ 7,535,757 $ 488,831 $ 488,831 $ 8,024,588 $ 8,024,588
Construction in progress 1,584,053 13,118,424 684,570 10,591,376 2,268,623 23,709,800
Streets 34,425,208 34,425,208 - - 34,425,208 34,425,208
Buildings 13,265,236 11,893,012 2,303,767 1,677,479 15,569,003 13,570,491
Improvements other than buildings 31,123,008 20,951,223 79,071,442 61,434,325 110,194,450 82,385,548
Vehicles 2,367,302 2,425,968 414,090 492,100 2,781,392 2,918,068
Machinery and equipment 1,604,318 1,702,008 840,870 1,033,654 2,445,188 2,735,662
Office equipment 263,510 256,617 5,022 5,757 268,532 262,374
Total $ 92,168,392 $ 92,308,217 $ 83,808,592 $ 75723522 $ 175,976,984 $ 168,031,739

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 4 on pages 44 — 46 of this report.
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Long-term Debt

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City has total governmental activities net bonded debt
outstanding of $20,145,408, which the City expects to retire through the Debt Service Fund. The City
also has business activity net bonded debt outstanding of $34,528,255 at September 30, 2018. The City’s
net bonded debt decreased by approximately $4,300,000 during the current fiscal year due to scheduled
debt service payments and a debt refinancing in December 2017.

The City’s financial policies limit Water and Sewer Fund debt service to no more than 35% of total water
and sewer revenues. The City’s debt service remained below that level in fiscal year 2018 and the City
intends to comply with that policy with any future debt issuances.

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Gross Bonded Debt
General obligation $ 6,060,000 $ 2,523,000 $ 10,465,000 $ 3,147,000 $ 16,525,000 $ 5,670,000
Certificates of obligation 13,430,000 18,890,000 22,810,000 33,335,000 36,240,000 52,225,000
Total bonded debt 19,490,000 21,413,000 33,275,000 36,482,000 52,765,000 57,895,000
Bond premium/discount 655,408 333,479 1,253,255 720,704 1,908,663 1,054,183
Net bonded debt 20,145,408 21,746,479 34,528,255 37,202,704 54,673,663 58,949,183

Other Long-term Debt

Cailloux Foundation promissory note 279,881 529,881 - - 279,881 529,881
Kerrville Public Utility Board note - 7,500,000 7,500,000 7,500,000 7,500,000
State infrastructure bank loan 42,320 150,472 34,626 123,114 76,946 273,586
Compensated absences 1,022,058 873,172 190,291 168,380 1,212,349 1,041,552
Net pension liability 3,232,952 6,686,021 662,171 1,369,426 3,895,123 8,055,447
Total OPEB liability 934,521 - 191,409 - 1,125,930 -
Landfill closure and post-closure costs 3,361,624 3,357,569 - 3,361,624 3,357,569

Total $ 29,018,764 $ 33343594 $ 43,106,752 $ 46,363,624 $ 72125516 $ 79,707,218

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 6 on pages 48 — 51 of this
report.

The City’s ten-year Community Investment Plan identified almost $67 million of capital improvements
through 2028. The City plans to use a combination of debt, cash and grant/donation funding to pay for
the projects. In January 2018, Standard & Poor’s confirmed the City’s general obligation bond rating of
an AA.

Modified Approach for Capital Assets

The City has adopted the modified approach for its streets system of capital assets. As a result, the City
has made a commitment to preserve and maintain its streets system at certain condition levels determined
by the City. No depreciation expense is reported for such assets, nor are amounts capitalized in
connection with improvements that lengthen the lives of such assets, unless the improvements also
increase their service potential. The City maintains an inventory of the streets system and performs
periodic condition assessments to establish that the predetermined condition level is being maintained.
The City’s policy is to maintain a targeted overall weighted-average Condition Index rating of 75 (fair
condition). The City’s engineers estimate the current pavement condition of the City’s streets to be at a
Condition Index rating of 80 (fair condition).
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The City makes annual estimates of the amounts that must be expended to preserve and maintain the
streets system at the predetermined condition level. To preserve the City’s streets system at the targeted
Condition Index rating level of 75, the City’s actual expenditures for 2018 were $2,547,431. In 2015, the
City engaged an outside firm to complete a comprehensive study of the City’s roads and their conditions.
Results of this study have been used to develop a prioritized list of maintenance activities.

For historical information, please see page 75.

Items That Will Have a Significant Financial Impact

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The City has adopted an ad valorem tax rate of $0.5514 per $100 value for fiscal year 2019, which is the
same rate as fiscal year 2018.

Sales tax revenue in fiscal year 2018 was 2.6% higher than fiscal year 2017. The City budgeted a 2.2%
increase in for the 2019 budget year.

Due to a small rate increase, water revenue is budgeted to increase slightly in fiscal year 2019. However,
record rainfall in the first quarter of the fiscal year has caused revenues to decrease significantly despite
the rate increase.

Hotel/motel occupancy tax revenue in fiscal year 2018 was $1,333,802, up 9.4% over the prior year. The
City anticipates revenues to remain strong in fiscal year 2019.

R/
0.0

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those with an
interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Chief Financial Officer,
City of Kerrville, 701 Main Street, Kerrville, Texas 78028, or you may call (830) 258-1121.
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2018

Exhibit A-1
Primary Government
Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,151,757 $ 1,956,160 $ 14,107,917 $ 4,657,302
Investments 10,015,506 1,550,518 11,566,024 15,117,412
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles)
Taxes 371,861 - 371,861 -
Accounts 695,022 1,370,478 2,065,500 5,244,505
Other 260,263 - 260,263 -
Due fromother governments 1,403,685 - 1,403,685 561,499
Internal balances 39,273 (39,306) (33) -
Inventories 33,487 535,197 568,684 1,159,338
Restricted assets
Cash and cash equivalents 398,415 4,180,321 4,578,736 -
Investments 325,976 3,420,262 3,746,238 4,491,340
Equity in joint venture 8,911,960 - 8,911,960 -
Advance to the City of Kerrville - - - 7,500,000
Capital assets (net of accumulated
depreciation, where applicable)
Depreciable 48,623,374 82,635,191 131,258,565 8,164,399
Non-depreciable 43,545,018 1,173,401 44,718,419 35,922,881
Total assets 126,775,597 96,782,222 223,557,819 82,818,676
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows — pensions 2,256,453 461,589 2,718,042 1,116,243
Deferred outflows — OPEB 80,020 16,391 96,411 15,661
Deferred outflows — loss on refunding 138,465 249,808 388,273 -
Total deferred outflows of resources 2,474,938 727,788 3,202,726 1,131,904
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,584,914 1,410,841 2,995,755 5,004,450
Customer deposits 68,671 180,481 249,152 517,523
Unearned revenue - 79,450 79,450 -
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year
Bonds and notes payable 2,085,766 2,832,704 4,918,470 385,000
Compensated absences 625,583 74,694 700,277 -
Due in more than one year
Bonds and notes payable 18,381,843 39,230,177 57,612,020 4,473,000
Net pension liability 3,232,952 662,171 3,895,123 1,072,533
Total OPEB liability 934,521 191,409 1,125,930 236,491
Compensated absences 396,475 115,597 512,072 -
Landfill closure and post-closure costs 3,361,624 - 3,361,624 -
Total liabilities 30,672,349 44,777,524 75,449,873 11,688,997
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows — pensions 1,562,309 319,992 1,882,301 1,521,303
Total deferred inflows of resources 1,562,309 319,992 1,882,301 1,521,303
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 71,381,407 45,057,360 116,438,767 39,229,280
Restricted for
Debt service 1,144,467 1,805,255 2,949,722 398,560
Capital projects - - - 2,100,001
Unrestricted 24,490,003 5,549,879 30,039,882 29,012,439
Total net position $ 97,015,877 $ 52,412,494 $ 149,428,371 $ 70,740,280

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements 19



City of Kerrville, Texas
Statement of Activities
Year Ended September 30, 2018

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary Government
Gowernmental Activities
General government $ 6,988,212 $ 1,047 $ - $ -
Public safety 14,242,578 4,233,332 70,692 28,304
Culture and recreation 5,111,916 612,818 185,430 336,141
Public works 5,617,405 1,528,213 16,842 950,000
Interest on long-term debt 605,985 - - -
Total expenses 32,566,096 6,375,410 272,964 1,314,445
Business-type Activities
Water and sewer 9,579,018 11,884,940 - 1,500,000
Golf course 1,046,476 855,136 - -
Total business-type activities 10,625,494 12,740,076 - 1,500,000
Total primary government $ 43,191,590 $ 19115486 $ 272,964 $ 2,814,445
Component Units
Economic Improvement Corporation $ 3,799,174 $ - $ - $ -
Kerrville Public Utility Board 41,725,625 42,167,402 - 111,326
Total component units $  45524,799 $ 42,167,402 $ - $ 111,326

General Rewvenues
Property taxes
Sales and use taxes
Hotel occupancy taxes
Franchise taxes
Alcoholic beverage taxes
Unrestricted investment earnings
Miscellaneous income
Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position
Net Position, Beginning of Year, As Previously Reported
Adjustment for Adoption of GASB 75
Net Position, Beginning of Year, As Adjusted

Net Position, End of Year

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements 20



Exhibit A-2

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

$  (6,987,165) $ - $ (6,987,165)
(9,910,250) - (9,910,250)
(3,977,527) - (3,977,527)
(3,122,350) - (3,122,350)
(605,985) - (605,985)
(24,603,277) - (24,603,277)
- 3,805,922 3,805,922
- (191,340) (191,340)
- 3,614,582 3,614,582
(24,603,277) 3,614,582 (20,988,695)

$  (3,799,174)

553,103

(3,246,071)
10,990,038 - 10,990,038 -
6,899,129 - 6,899,129 3,449,171
1,333,802 - 1,333,802 -
1,950,886 - 1,950,886 -
87,059 - 87,059 -
391,070 228,855 619,925 627,137
1,152,754 - 1,152,754 40,825
1,641,090 (1,641,090) - -
24,445 828 (1,412,235) 23,033,593 4117133
(157,449) 2,202,347 2,044,898 871,062
97,966,759 50,372,657 148,339,416 70,624,109
(793,433) (162,510) (955,943) (754,891)
97,173,326 50,210,147 147,383 473 69,869,218

$ 97,015877 $  52/412,494 $ 149,428,371 $ 70,740,280
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds
September 30, 2018

Exhibit A-3
Other Total
General Governmental Governmental Governmental
Fund IP Fund Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,521,504 $ 2,696,193 $ 2111915 $ 12,329,612
Investments 6,547,923 2,033,971 1,593,200 10,175,094
Receivables, net
Taxes 310,271 - 61,590 371,861
Accounts 695,022 - - 695,022
Other 260,263 - - 260,263
Due from other funds 42,610 - - 42,610
Due from other governments 1,403,685 - - 1,403,685
Inventories 12,311 - - 12,311
Total assets $ 16,793,589 $ 4,730,164 $ 3,766,705 $ 25,290,458
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 936,910 $ 528,938 $ 32,526 $ 1498374
Customer deposits 68,671 - - 68,671
Total liabilities 1,005,581 528,938 32,526 1,567,045
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue 739,287 - 48,272 787,559
Fund Balances
Nonspendable 12,311 - - 12,311
Restricted
Landfill 2,818,791 - - 2,818,791
Debt service - - 1,144,467 1,144,467
Tourism - - 1,561,638 1,561,638
Grants - - 3,117 3,117
Cailloux Theater 682,618 - - 682,618
Police - - 60,978 60,978
PEG - - 51,595 51,595
Municipal court - - 79,021 79,021
Committed
Park improvements - - 154,226 154,226
History center - - 199,146 199,146
Library - - 431,719 431,719
Insurance reserve 246,310 - - 246,310
Capital improvements 2,869,575 4,201,226 - 7,070,801
Unassigned 8,419,116 - - 8,419,116
Total fund balances 15,048,721 4,201,226 3,685,907 22,935,854
Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources and fund balances $ 16,793,589 $ 4,730,164 $ 3,766,705 $ 25,290,458
See Notes to Basic Financial Statements 22



City of Kerrville, Texas

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

to the Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2018

Total fund balances — governmental funds balance sheet

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
are different because

Receivable balances unavailable to pay for current period expenditures are
unavailable in the funds. Unavailable revenues at year-end consist of:
Property taxes
Ambulance fees
Court fines

Capital assets used in governmental activities, excluding the internal
service funds, are not reported in the funds.

The assets and liabilities of internal service funds are included in governmental
activities in the statement of net position.

The equity in a joint venture is not reported in the funds.

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources represent flows
of resources which relate to future periods and, therefore, are not reported
in the fund financial statements. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources at year-end, excluding internal service funds, consist of:
Deferred outflows - pensions
Deferred outflows - OPEB
Deferred outflows - loss on refunding
Deferred inflows - pensions

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and payable in
the current period and therefore are not reported in the fund financial statements.
Long-term liabilities, excluding internal service funds, at year-end consist of:

Principal outstanding

Bond premiums

Land closure/post-closure costs
Net pension liability

Total OPEB liability
Compensated absences

Interest payable on long-term debt does not require current financial resources,
therefore interest payable is not reported as a liability in the governmental
funds balance sheet.

Net position of governmental activities

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Exhibit A-4
$ 22935854
367,018
358,222
62,319 787,559
92,161,610
340,896
8,911,960
2,229,301
79,057
138,465
(1,543,486) 903,337
(19,812,201)
(655,408)
(3,361,624)
(3,194,001)
(923,263)
(1,006,368) (28,952,865)
(72,474)
S 97015877
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City of Kerrville, Texas

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Rewvenues
Taxes and penalties
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Grants
Fines and forfeitures
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures

Current
General government
Public safety
Culture and recreation
Public works

Capital outlay

Debt service
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of long-term debt
Premium on issuance of debt
Payment to the refunded bond escrow agent
Transfers in
Transfers out
Net other financing sources
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, End of Year

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Exhibit A-5
Other Total
General Governmental Governmental Governmental
Fund IP Fund Funds Funds
$ 18,300,673 $ - $ 2,851,786 $ 21,152,459
581,014 - 46,096 627,110
1,372,133 1,278,892 - 2,651,025
4,158,789 - 54,723 4,213,512
123,353 - 135,650 259,003
612,061 - - 612,061
246,697 82,130 61,843 390,670
295,976 - 1,156,938 1,452,914
25,690,696 1,361,022 4,307,036 31,358,754
5,186,707 769,774 54,351 6,010,832
13,100,154 23,947 - 13,124,101
3,435,179 - 1,110,216 4,545,395
4,161,108 1,044,974 - 5,206,082
865,542 990,087 73,212 1,928,841
- - 2,018,177 2,018,177
- - 617,818 617,818
26,748,690 2,828,782 3,873,774 33,451,246
(1,057,994) (1,467,760) 433,262 (2,092,492)
- - 6,750,000 6,750,000
- - 458,915 458,915
- - (7,133,297) (7,133,297)
3,187,170 225,000 32,000 3,444,170
(520,945) (1,200,000) (82,135) (1,803,080)
2,666,225 (975,000) 25,483 1,716,708
1,608,231 (2,442,760) 458,745 (375,784)
13,440,490 6,643,986 3,227,162 23,311,638
$ 15,048,721 $ 4,201,226 $ 3,685,907 $ 22,935,854
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City of Kerrville, Texas

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities

Year Ended September 30, 2018
Exhibit A-6

Net change in fund balances — total governmental funds $ (375,784)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount of capital assets recorded in the
current period. 1,899,721

Governmental funds do not recognize contributed capital assets. However, in the
statement of activities the acquisition value of those assets is recognized as revenue,
then allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 52,584

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the statement of activities but does
not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, depreciation expense is
not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. (1,988,357)

The issuance of long-term debt (bonds and related premium and capital leases) provides
current financial resources to governmental funds, but has no effect on net position.

The repayment of the principal of long-termdebt, including amounts provided to bond
escrow agent, consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds, but has
no effect on net position. 1,942,559

Current year changes in joint venture equity are not reported in the governmental fund
statements. (226,511)

Amortization of bond premiums and effect of losses on refundings is reported in the statement of activities
but is not recognized in the governmental funds. 88,832

Current year change in long-term liability for compensated absences do not require the use of
current financial resources; therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. (150,769)

Current year changes in accrued interest payable do not require the use of current financial
resources; therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 19,663

Current year pension & OPEB expenditures are reported on the fiscal year basis on the governmental
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance and as actuarially
determined in the government-wide statement of activities. These differences are
reflected in deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflow of resources balances. (913,632)

Current year changes in landfill post-closure costs do not require the use of current financial
resources; therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. (4,055)

Internal service funds are used by management to share the costs of certain activities including
self-insurance and fleet maintenance to individual funds. This is a net loss for the year. (219,513)

In the governmental fund financial statements the proceeds fromsale of assets are shown as

an increase in financial resources. In the government-wide financial statements, the gain or

loss is calculated and reported. This difference is the net book value of disposed assets. (104,338)
Certain revenues in the government-wide statement of activities that do not provide current

financial resources are not reported as revenue in the governmental funds. This is the net

change in these revenues for the year. (177,849)

Change in net position of governmental activities $ (157,449)

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements 25



City of Kerrville, Texas
Statement of Net Position — Proprietary Funds

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Governmental
Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds Activities
Nonmajor Total Internal
Water and Golf Course Enterprise Service
Sewer Fund Funds Funds
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,895,077 $ 61,083 $ 1,956,160 $ 220,560
Investments 1,550,518 1,550,518 166,388
Receivables (net of allowances for
uncollectibles) 1,370,478 - 1,370,478 -
Inventories 455,241 79,956 535,197 21,176
Total current assets 5,271,314 141,039 5,412,353 408,124
Noncurrent Assets
Restricted assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,180,321 - 4,180,321 -
Investments 3,420,262 - 3,420,262 -
Total restricted assets 7,600,583 - 7,600,583 -
Capital assets
Land 488,831 - 488,831 -
Buildings 3,784,733 374,668 4,159,401 159,000
Improvements other than buildings 113,661,997 2,488,855 116,150,852 -
Vehicles 1,522,943 22,300 1,545,243 34,130
Machinery and equipment 3,040,405 443,397 3,483,802 40,388
Office equipment 118,248 - 118,248 -
Construction in progress 684,570 - 684,570 -
Accumulated depreciation (40,649,408) (2,172,947) (42,822,355) (226,736)
Net capital assets 82,652,319 1,156,273 83,808,592 6,782
Total noncurrent assets 90,252,902 1,156,273 91,409,175 6,782
Total assets 95,524,216 1,297,312 96,821,528 414,906
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows - pension 380,133 81,456 461,589 27,152
Deferred outflows - OPEB 13,497 2,894 16,391 963
Deferred charges for refunding 249,808 - 249,808 -
Total deferred outflows of resources $ 643,438 $ 84,350 $ 727,788 $ 28,115
See Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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Exhibit A-7

Governmental
Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds Activities
Nonmajor Total Internal
Water and Golf Course Enterprise Service
Sewer Fund Funds Funds
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 1,381,720 $ 29,121 $ 1410841 $ 14,099
Unearned revenue 30,958 48,492 79,450 -
Compensated absences — current 61,586 13,108 74,694 -
Due to other funds 32,622 6,684 39,306 3,304
Customer deposits 180,481 - 180,481 -
Bonds and notes — current 2,832,704 - 2,832,704 -
Total current liabilities 4,520,071 97,405 4,617,476 17,403
Noncurrent Liabilities
Net pension liability 545,317 116,854 662,171 38,951
Total OPEB liability 157,630 33,779 191,409 11,258
Bonds and notes — noncurrent 39,230,177 - 39,230,177 -
Compensated absences — noncurrent 95,311 20,286 115,597 15,690
Total noncurrent liabilities 40,028,435 170,919 40,199,354 65,899
Total liabilities 44,548,506 268,324 44,816,830 83,302
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows - pension 263,523 56,469 319,992 18,823
Total deferred inflows of resources 263,523 56,469 319,992 18,823
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 43,901,087 1,156,273 45,057,360 6,782
Restricted for debt service 1,805,255 - 1,805,255 -
Unrestricted 5,649,283 (99,404) 5,549,879 334,114
Total net position $ 51,355,625 $ 1,056,869 $ 52,412,494 $ 340,896

27



City of Kerrville, Texas

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes
in Net Position — Proprietary Funds

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Exhibit A-8
Governmental
Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds Activities
Nonmajor Total Internal
Water and Golf Course Enterprise Service
Sewer Fund Funds Funds
Operating Revenues
Charges for services $ 11,743,309 $ 855,014 $ 12,598,323 $ 3198779
Miscellaneous 141,631 122 141,753 -
Total operating revenues 11,884,940 855,136 12,740,076 3,198,779
Operating Expenses
Personnel services 3,159,323 575,797 3,735,120 304,144
Repairs and maintenance 1,103,162 31,950 1,135,112 22,397
Supplies and materials 640,631 150,237 790,868 28,624
Utilities 602,562 72,284 674,846 5,170
Depreciation 2,564,681 72,883 2,637,564 2,947
General administration 481,682 143,325 625,007 3,599
Premiums and other charges - - - 3,051,411
Total operating expenses 8,552,041 1,046,476 9,598,517 3,418,292
Operating income (loss) 3,332,899 (191,340) 3,141,559 (219,513)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment income 228,855 - 228,855 -
Interest expense (1,026,977) - (1,026,977) -
Net nonoperating expenses (798,122) - (798,122) -
Net income (loss) before contributions
and transfers 2,534,777 (191,340 2,343,437 (219,513
Capital Contributions and Transfers
Capital contributions 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 -
Transfers in 19,649 280,000 299,649 -
Transfers out (1,940,739) - (1,940,739) -
Net transfers (421,090) 280,000 (141,090) -
Change in Net Position 2,113,687 88,660 2,202,347 (219,513)
Net Position, Beginning of Year, As Previously Reported 49,375,770 996,887 50,372,657 569,968
Adjustment for Adoption of GASB 75 (133,832) (28,678) (162,510) (9,559)
Net Position, Beginning of Year, As Adjusted 49,241,938 968,209 50,210,147 560,409
Net Position, End of Year $ 51,355,625 $ 1,056,869 $ 52,412,494 $ 340,896

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements 28



City of Kerrville, Texas

Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Funds

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Exhibit A-9
Governmental
Business-Type Activities — Enterprise Funds Activities
Nonmajor Total Internal
Water and Golf Course Enterprise Service
Sewer Fund Funds Funds
Operating Activities
Cash received from customers $ 11,728,981 $ 855,014 $ 12,583,995 $ 3,198,779
Cash payments to employees (2,980,833) (542,485) (3,523,318) (294,857)
Cash payments to other suppliers for goods and services (4,209,078) (396,028) (4,605,106) (3,087,301)
Other operating activities 178,645 (135,418) 43,227 -
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 4,717,715 (218,917) 4,498,798 (183,379)
Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers from other funds 19,649 280,000 299,649 -
Transfers to other funds (1,940,739) - (1,940,739) -
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities (1,921,090 280,000 (1,641,090) -
Capital and Related Financing Activities
Capital contributions 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 -
Principal and interest paid (3,962,337) - (3,962,337) -
Acquisition or construction of capital assets (10,722,633) - (10,722,633) (8,609)
Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related
financing activities (13,184,970) - (13,184,970) (8,609)
Inwvesting Activities
Investment income 228,855 - 228,855 (13,490)
Sale of investments 16,020,000 - 16,020,000 96,044
Purchase of investments (11,872,343) - (11,872,343) -
Net cash provided by investing activities 4,376,512 - 4,376,512 82,554
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (6,011,833) 61,083 (5,950,750) (109,434)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 12,087,231 - 12,087,231 329,994
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 6075398 $ 61,083 $ 6136481 $ 220,560
Reconciliation to the Statement of Net Position
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1895077 $ 61,083 $ 1,956,160 $ 220,560
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 4,180,321 - 4,180,321 -
$ 6,075,398 $ 61,083 $ 6136481 $ 220,560
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities
Operating income (loss) $ 3332899 $ (191,340) $ 3141559 $ (219,513)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities
Depreciation 2,564,681 72,883 2,637,564 2,947
Change in assets and deferred outflows
(Increase) decrease in receivables (14,328) - (14,328) -
(Increase) decrease in inventories 25,851 (4,418) 21,433 16,854
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses - 3,250 3,250 -
(Increase) decrease in deferred pension outflows 465,002 99,644 564,646 33,214
(Increase) decrease in deferred OPEB outflows (10,376) (2,225) (12,601) (740)
Change in liabilities and deferred inflows
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (1,432,246) 2,936 (1,429,310) 7,046
Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated absences 78,422 2,153 80,575 (1,883)
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 6,056 (137,892) (131,836) -
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability (582,446) (124,809) (707,255) (41,603)
Increase (decrease) in total OPEB liability 20,677 4,432 25,109 1,476
Increase (decrease) in deferred pension inflows 263,523 56,469 319,992 18,823
Total adjustments 1,384,816 (27,577) 1,357,239 36,134
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 4717715 $ (218,917) $ 4,498,798 $ (183,379)
See Notes to Basic Financial Statements 29



City of Kerrville, Texas
Statements of Net Position — Component Units

September 30, 2018

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectible)
Due from other governments
Inventories
Restricted assets
Investments
Advance to City of Kerrville
Capital assets nondepreciable
Land
Construction in progress
Depreciable (net of accumulated depreciation)
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Vehicles
Machinery and equipment

Total assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred outflows — pensions
Deferred outflows — OPEB

Total deferred outflows of resources

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Payable from restricted assets
Customer deposits
Bonds payable, current

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability
Bonds payable, net of current portion

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows — pensions

Total deferred inflows of resources

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for
Debt service
Capital projects
Unrestricted

Total net position

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Exhibit A-10

EIC KPUB Total
4,092,649 564,653 $ 4,657,302
- 15,117,412 15,117,412
- 5,244,505 5,244,505
561,499 - 561,499
- 1,159,338 1,159,338
- 4,491,340 4,491,340
- 7,500,000 7,500,000
1,138,436 233,398 1,371,834
- 6,792,565 6,792,565
- 1,933,464 1,933,464
- 31,852,945 31,852,945
- 1,453,473 1,453,473
- 682,999 682,999
5,792,584 77,026,092 82,818,676
- 1,116,243 1,116,243
- 15,661 15,661
- 1,131,904 1,131,904
- 5,004,450 5,004,450
- 517,523 517,523
- 385,000 385,000
- 5,906,973 5,906,973
- 1,072,533 1,072,533
- 236,491 236,491
- 4,473,000 4,473,000
- 5,782,024 5,782,024
- 11,688,997 11,688,997
- 1,521,303 1,521,303
- 1,521,303 1,521,303
1,138,436 38,090,844 39,229,280
- 398,560 398,560
2,100,001 - 2,100,001
2,554,147 26,458,292 29,012,439
5,792,584 64,947,696 $ 70,740,280
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City of Kerrville, Texas

Statements of Activities — Component Units

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Program Revenues

Exhibit A-11

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Capital
Charges for Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions EIC KPUB Total
Kerrville Economic Incentive Corporation
General government $ 3,799,174 $ - $ - $ (3,799,174) $ - $ (3,799,174)
Total EIC 3,799,174 - - (3,799,174) - (3,799,174)
Kerrville Public Utility Board
Purchased power 28,918,468 42,167,402 111,326 - 13,360,260 13,360,260
Distribution 2,568,044 - - - (2,568,044) (2,568,044)
Administration and other 6,247,628 - - - (6,247,628) (6,247,628)
Depreciation and amortization 3,991,485 - - - (3,991,485) (3,991,485)
Total KPUB 41,725,625 42,167,402 111,326 - 553,103 553,103
Total Component Units $ 45,524,799 $ 42,167,402 $ 111,326 (3,799,174) 553,103 (3,246,071)
General Revenues

Sales taxes 3,449,171 - 3,449,171
Unrestricted investment earnings 76,844 550,293 627,137
Miscellaneous income - 40,825 40,825
Total general revenues 3,526,015 591,118 4,117,133
Change in Net Position (273,159) 1,144,221 871,062
Net Position, Beginning of Year, As Previously Reported 6,065,743 64,558,366 70,624,109
Adjustment for Adoption of GASB 75 - (754,891) (754,891)
Net Position, Beginning of Year, As Adjusted 6,065,743 63,803,475 69,869,218
Net Position, End of Year $ 5,792,584 $ 64,947,696 $ 70,740,280

See Notes to Basic Financial Statements 31



This Page Has Been Intentionally Left Blank



Notes to Basic Financial Statements



This Page Has Been Intentionally Left Blank



City of Kerrville, Texas
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2018

Note 1: Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies

General Statement

The City of Kerrville, Texas (City), was founded in 1889. The City operates under the council
manager form of government as adopted by a home rule charter approved February 25, 1942. The
City provides a full range of municipal services including public safety (police and fire), highway
and streets, culture and recreation, health and social services, planning and zoning and general
administrative services. In addition, the City provides water and sewer service as a proprietary
function of the City.

The accounting policies of the City conform to generally accepted accounting principles issued by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) which is the recognized financial
accounting standard setting body for governmental entities. The notes to the financial statements
are an integral part of the City’s general purpose financial statements.

Financial Reporting Entity

The City is a home rule municipality governed by an elected mayor and a four-member City
Council that appoints a City Manager. The City’s (primary government) financial statements
include its component units. The accompanying general purpose financial statements comply with
the provisions of the GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by
GASB Statement No. 61, in that the financial statements include all organizations, activities,
functions and component units for which the City (the primary government) is financially
accountable. Financial accountability is defined as the appointment of a voting majority of a
legally separate organization’s governing body and either: (1) the City’s ability to impose its will
over the organization or (2) the potential that the organization will provide a financial benefit to or
impose a financial burden on the City.

The Kerrville Public Utility Board (KPUB) - the electric utility, an entity legally separate from the
City, is governed by a five-member board appointed by the City Council. For financial statement
purposes, KPUB is reported as a discretely presented component unit of the City because the City
appoints its governing body, is potentially obligated to finance any deficits that may occur, and
receives significant franchise fees. Financial statements may be obtained from the Kerrville Public
Utility Board, P.O. Box 294999, Kerrville, Texas 78029.

The Kerrville Economic Improvement Corporation (EIC), an entity legally separate from the City,
is governed by a seven-member board of directors appointed by the City Council. For financial
statement purposes, EIC is reported as a discretely presented component unit of the City because
the City appoints its governing body, and is potentially able to impose its will. EIC collects a half
cent sales tax per dollar of sales to support its activities. Separate financial statements are not
prepared for EIC.

Kerrville Airport Joint Venture — The City and Kerr County operate a municipal airport under a
joint venture agreement. Participants provide financial support and are entitled to an undivided
50% interest in net position. The City reports its interest as “Equity in Joint Venture.”
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2018

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. The effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.

Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues,
are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely, to a significant extent, on fees and
charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally
separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function. Program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase,
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function and (2)
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function. Taxes and other items properly not included among program revenues are
reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current year or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current year.
For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of
the end of the current fiscal year. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred,
as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related
to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal year are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and thus have been recognized as revenues of the current
fiscal year.
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2018

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

e General Fund - is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

e Governmental IP Fund —is a capital project fund that accounts for major capital
improvement projects.

The City reports the following major proprietary fund:

e Water and Sewer Fund — accounts for the provisions of water and sewer service to the
residents of the City. All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this
fund, including, but not limited to, administration, operations, maintenance, financing and
related debt service and billing and collection.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

e Special Revenue Funds — accounts for the collection and disbursement of earmarked monies.

e Debt Service Fund — accounts for the accumulation and use of property and sales tax revenue
to meet the debt service requirements of the City’s general and revenue bonded debt.

e Capital Projects Fund — accounts for the acquisition or construction of governmental capital
assets not recorded in the Government IP Fund.

¢ Internal Service Funds — accounts for automotive maintenance and employee benefit
services provided to other departments or agencies of the City.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are administrative fees and other charges
between the City’s water and sewer function and various other functions of the City on a cost
reimbursement basis. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program
revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, (2) operating grants and contributions and (3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes,
miscellaneous revenue and investment income.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering
goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenues of the Water and Sewer and Golf Course enterprise funds are charges to
customers for sales and services. The Water and Sewer fund also recognizes as operating revenue
the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system.
Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2018

Deposits and Investments

The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

State law and the City’s investment policy restrict both time and demand deposits to those
depositories doing business in the state of Texas and further require full insurance and/or pledging
of collateral. CDs are limited to a stated maturity not exceeding one year. Pledged collateral,
equal to not less than 102% of the covered account balance is required for all deposits and is
limited to obligations of the U.S. government, its agencies or instrumentalities and municipal
obligations rated not less than AA or equivalent by two nationally recognized rating agencies.
Independent safekeeping is required outside the pledging bank’s holding company with monthly
reporting. Securities are monitored and priced at market on a daily basis as a contractual
responsibility of the depository.

State law and the City’s investment policy limit repurchase agreements to those with defined
termination dates executed with a Texas bank or a primary dealer (as defined by the Federal
Reserve). The agreements require an industry standard, written master repurchase agreement and a
minimum of 102% margin on collateral as well as delivery versus payment settlement and
independent safekeeping. Repurchase agreements may not exceed 90 days to stated maturity.

State law and the City’s investment policy require commercial paper be rated A1/P1 or equivalent
by two nationally recognized rating agencies and restricts maturity to a maximum maturity of 185
days.

State law and the City’s investment policy restrict investment in SEC registered mutual funds to
money market mutual funds striving to maintain a $1 net asset value as further defined by state
law. A rating of the mutual fund is not required.

State law requires that local government investment pools be rated AAA, or equivalent, by at least
one nationally recognized rating agency. The City investment policy further restricts investments
to AAA rated, constant dollar local government investment pools.

Receivables and Payables

Activity between the City and component unit(s) that are representative of lending/borrowing
arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “advances to/from”
(i.e., loans due to component unit(s)). All other outstanding balances between funds of the City are
reported as “due to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial
statements as “internal balances.”

All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible amounts.
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Property Tax Calendar

Property taxes are levied on October 1 by the City based on the January 1 property values as
assessed by the Kerr Central Appraisal District. Taxes are due without penalty by January 31 of
the next calendar year.

After January 31, the City has an enforceable lien with respect to both real and personal property.
Under state law, property taxes levied on real property constitute a perpetual lien on the real
property which cannot be forgiven without specific approval of the state legislature. Taxes
applicable to personal property can be deemed uncollectible by the City.

Inventories and Prepaid Expenses

All inventories are valued at cost using the weighted-average cost method. The consumption
method is used to account for governmental fund type inventories. Under the consumption
method, inventories of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather
than when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded
as prepaid expenses in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of Water and Sewer fund revenue bonds are classified as restricted assets on the
statement of net position because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants. Customer
deposits are also classified as restricted.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the
City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000.

Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.
Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.
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Contributions of capital assets to proprietary funds from external sources are recorded as revenue.

Property, plant and equipment of the primary government are depreciated using the straight-line
method over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 30 years
Improvements other than building 40 years
System infrastructure 40 years
Machinery and equipment 10 years
Office equipment 10 years
Vehicles 8 years
Drainage 50 years

In the case of the initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets (i.e., streets and storm water
drains), the City chose to include all such items regardless of their acquisition date or amount. The
City was able to estimate the historical cost for the initial reporting of these assets through back
trending (i.e., estimating the current replacement cost of the infrastructure to be capitalized and
using an appropriate price-level index to deflate the cost to the acquisition year or estimated
acquisition year). As the City constructs or acquires additional capital assets each year, including
infrastructure assets, they are capitalized and reported at historical cost.

The City has adopted the modified approach for its streets system of capital assets. As a result, the
City has made a commitment to preserve and maintain its streets system at certain condition levels
determined by the City. The City Council is responsible for determining the appropriate condition
level at which such assets are to be maintained. No depreciation expense is reported for such
assets, nor are amounts capitalized in connection with improvements that lengthen the lives of such
assets, unless the improvements also increase their service potential. The City maintains an
inventory of the streets system and performs periodic condition assessments to establish that the
predetermined condition level is being maintained. The City makes annual estimates of the
amounts that must be expended to preserve and maintain the streets system at the predetermined
condition level.

The KPUB utility plant computes depreciation using the straight-line method over the estimated
service lives of the various classes of depreciable property. Rates will be changed as needed based
upon period engineering studies. Depreciation as a percentage of average depreciable plant was
5.7% for the year ended September 30, 2018.

Compensated Absences

Vested or accumulated vacation leave is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental
funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations or retirements.

Unearned Revenue

Enterprise funds report unearned revenue in connection with resources that have been received, but
not yet earned. Prepayment for golf course fees within the nonmajor Golf Course Fund are
reported as unearned.
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Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund type in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or proprietary fund type statement of
net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable unamortized
bond premium or discount balance at year end.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is
reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other
financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. lIssuance
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and additions to/deductions from the
TMRS’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
TMRS. For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized in the period that compensation is
reported for the employee, which is when contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and
refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments
are reported at fair value. Information regarding the City’s total pension liability is obtained from
TMRS through a report prepared for the City by TMRS consulting actuary, Gabriel Roeder Smith
& Company.

Allocation of pension related balances to reporting units is determined on the basis of employee
payroll funding.

Defined Benefit Other Postemployment Benefit Plan

The City has a single-employer defined benefit other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plan (Plan).
For purposes of measuring the total OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB and OPEB expense have been determined on the same basis
as they are reported by the Plan. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

Allocation of OPEB related balances to reporting units is determined on the basis of employee
payroll funding.
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Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position and/or balance sheet will sometimes report
a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure/reduction
of net pension liability) until then. The City has the following items that qualify for reporting in
this category.

o Deferred charges on refundings — A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference
in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and
amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.

e Pension and OPEB contributions after measurement date — These contributions are deferred
and reported as a reduction in net pension liability or a reduction in total OPEB liabilities in
the year subsequent to their deferral.

o Difference in expected and actual pension experience — This difference is deferred and
recognized over the estimated average remaining lives of all members determined as of the
beginning of the measurement period.

e Change of assumptions — This difference is deferred and recognized over the estimated
average remaining lives of all members determined as of the beginning of the measurement
period.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position and/or balance sheet will sometimes
report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue or reduction in
pension expense) until that time. The City has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category
in the government-wide financial statements which is the difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension investments. This difference is deferred and amortized to pension expense
over a closed five year period.

In the fund financial statements, resources unavailable for revenue recognition are deferred and
recognized as revenue when available.

Classification of Fund Equity

Fund balances are classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned or unassigned in
governmental funds. Nonspendable fund balance cannot be spent, either because it is not in
spendable form or because of legal or contractual requirements. Restricted fund balances have
constraints for specific purposes which are externally imposed by providers, such as creditors,
grantors or other governments or by enabling legislation of the City Council.
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Committed fund balances can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed
by the City Council through an ordinance or resolution, which are equally binding and represent
the highest level actions of the City Council. Assigned fund balances are constrained by intent to
be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Assignments are made by
the City management based on the City Council’s direction.

Unassigned fund balances include residual positive fund balances within the General Fund that had
not been classified within the other mentioned categories. Unassigned fund balances may also
include negative balances for any governmental fund if expenditures exceed amounts restricted,
committed or assigned for those specific purposes.

The City designates restricted amounts to be spent first if both restricted and unassigned fund
balances are available unless there are legal documents/contracts that prohibit doing this, such as in
grant agreements requiring dollar for dollar spending. Additionally, the City would first use
committed, followed by assigned, and lastly unassigned amounts when expenditures are incurred
for purpose for which amounts in any of those fund balance classifications could be used.

The propriety funds and government-wide financial statements have three classifications of equity:
(1) net investment in capital assets; (2) restricted net position and (3) unrestricted net position. In
the first category, capital assets are netted with related bonded and capital lease debt. Restricted
net position includes debt service, grantor and other government restrictions for proprietary funds
and the same categories as restricted fund balance for governmental activities.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements along with reported amounts of revenues and
expenses/expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

New Financial Reporting Requirements

The GASB has issued the following statements which became effective for fiscal year 2018 and are
applicable to the City.

Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions — GASB 75 replaces the requirements of GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and
Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. GASB 75
requires more extensive note disclosures and required supplementary information (RSI) about the
OPEB liabilities. The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017. The City has implemented this Statement in fiscal
year 2018 and, accordingly, has restated amounts of affected balances within the government-wide
financial statements as of October 1, 2017, of ($793,433) related to Governmental Activities and
($162,510) related to Business-Type Activities.
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Note 2:  Deposits and Investments

At year-end, the carrying amount of the City’s cash on hand and deposits with financial institutions
was $3,711,354 (including certificates of deposits of $493,552). At September 30, 2018, the City
had approximately $718,000 of uninsured and uncollateralized deposits due to a large deposit at the
end of the last business day and the year-end falling on a weekend. Sufficient collateral was
pledged the following week.

e Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits — In the case of time and demand deposits, this is the risk
that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits may not be returned to it. The City
requires all deposits to be covered by Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC)
insurance and/or be collateralized by qualified securities pledged by the City’s depository in
the City’s name and held by the depository’s agent.

Investments as of September 30, 2018, are as follows:

Carrying Days to Rating as of

Investment Type Amount Maturity Year-End
Miscellaneous coupon securities $ 14,818,710 256 AAA -Al
TexPool Prime local government pool 6,904,792 1 AAAM
Texas CLASS local government pool 10,497,796 1 AAAM
LOGIC local government pool 2,158,912 1 AAAM
Certificates of deposit 493,552 365 N/A
Total fair value $ 34,873,762
Portfolio weighted-average maturity 212

Deposits and investments as of September 30, 2018, are classified in the accompanying financial
statements as follows:

Statement of Net Position

Cash and cash equivalents — primary government $ 14,107,917
Restricted cash and cash equivalents — primary government 4,578,736
Investments — primary government 11,566,024
Restricted investments — primary government 3,746,238
Cash and cash equivalents — EIC 4,092,649
_$ 38,001,564

Deposits and investments as of September 30, 2018, consist of the following:

Deposits (excluding certificates of deposits) $ 3,217,802
Investments 34,873,762
_$ 38001564
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The City is a voluntary participant in TexPool. The State Comptroller of Public Accounts
exercises responsibility over TexPool. Oversight includes the ability to significantly influence
operations, designation of management, and accountability for fiscal matters. The State
Comptroller has established an advisory board composed of both participants in TexPool and
others not otherwise associated. TexPool uses amortized cost rather than the market value to report
net position to compute share prices. Accordingly, the fair value of the position in TexPool is the
same as the net asset value of TexPool shares.

The City is invested in Texas Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System (Texas CLASS) Trust.
Texas CLASS was created as an investment pool for its participants pursuant to Section 2256.016
of the Public Funds Investment Act, Texas Government Code, or other laws of the State of Texas
governing the investment of funds of a participant or funds under its control. Texas CLASS is
administered by Cutwater Investor Services Corp. with Wells Fargo Bank Texas, NA as the
Custodian and is supervised by a Board of Trustees who are elected by the participants.

The City is invested in the Texas Local Government Investment Cooperative (LOGIC) Liquid
Asset Portfolio. LOGIC is a public funds investment pool managed by Southwest Securities
Group, Inc. LOGIC investments are not categorized in accordance with GASB Statement No. 3
disclosure requirements since the City has not issued securities, but rather it owns an individual
beneficial interest in the assets of the related investment pools. LOGIC uses amortized cost rather
than market value to report net position to compute share prices. Accordingly, the fair value of the
position in LOGIC is the same as the net asset value of LOGIC shares.

e Concentration of Credit Risk — The City’s investment policy recognizes that over-
concentration of assets by market sector or maturity as a risk to the portfolio. Diversification
is a major object of the investment program. The investment policy has established limits for
concentration by market sector as shown below:

Obligations of the U.S. government 90%
Obligations of U.S. agencies/instrumentalities 90%
Certificates of deposit 90%
Limitation by banking institution 15%
Commercial paper 20%
Limitation by issuer 10%
Money market mutual funds 70%
Limitation by ownership in fund 5%
Constant dollar Texas investment pools 90%
Limitation by ownership in fund 5%
State and municipal obligations 15%

e Interest Rate Risk — In order to limit interest and market rate risk from changes in interest
rates, the City has set a maximum stated maturity date of two years, with a weighted-average
maturity of 180 days for the total portfolio. Longer maturities may be utilized for bond
proceeds, but only if matched to planned expenditures of the funds.
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e Custodial Credit Risk — Investments — For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of
the failure of the counterparty, the City may not be able to recover the value of its investments
or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.

The Public Funds Investment Act and the City’s investment policy do not contain legal or
policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or
investments, other than the following provision for deposits: The Public Funds Investment Act
requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units
by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under
state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged
securities in the collateral pool must equal at least the bank balance less the FDIC insurance at
all times.

Note 3: Receivables

Receivables as of year-end for the government’s individual major funds and nonmajor funds in the
aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Business-type

Governmental Activities Component Units
Other
Governmental Total Water and
General Funds Governmental Sewer KPUB EIC
Taxes receivable $ 460,262 $ 82,038 $ 542,300 $ - $ - $ -
Allowance for uncollectible taxes (149,991) (20,448) (170,439) - - -
310,271 61,590 371,861 - - -
Accounts receivable 2,510,060 - 2,510,060 1,618,243 5,330,849 -
Allowance for uncollectible accounts (1,815,038) - (1,815,038) (247,765) (86,344) -
695,022 - 695,022 1,370,478 5,244,505 -
Other receivables 1,832,740 - 1,832,740 - - -
Allowance for uncollectible accounts (1,572,477) - (1,572,477) - - -
260,263 - 260,263 - - -
Due from other governments 1,403,685 - 1,403,685 - - 561,499
Total $ 2669241 $ 61,590 $ 2730831 $ 1,370,478 $ 5,244,505 $ 561,499
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Note 4. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2018, was as follows:

Balance Balance
September 30, Sales or Other Adjustments/ September 30,
2017 Additions Dispositions Transfers 2018
Gowvernmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land and land improvements $ 7,535,757 $ - $ - $ - $ 7535757
Streets 34,425,208 - - - 34,425,208
Construction in progress 13,118,424 1,005,882 - (12,540,253) 1,584,053
Total capital assets not being depreciated 55,079,389 1,005,882 - (12,540,253) 43,545,018
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings 17,806,204 - - 1,851,543 19,657,747
Improvements other than buildings 25,308,287 123,020 - 10,688,710 36,120,017
Vehicles 7,122,941 541,634 (271,424) - 7,393,151
Machinery and equipment 4,123,372 226,121 (108,323) - 4,241,170
Office equipment 481,858 55,648 (11,880) - 525,626
Total capital assets being depreciated 54,842,662 946,423 (391,627) 12,540,253 67,937,711
Less: accumulated depreciation for
Buildings (5,913,192) (479,319) - - (6,392,511)
Improvements other than buildings (4,357,064) (639,945) - - (4,997,009)
Vehicles (4,696,973) (499,374) 170,498 - (5,025,849)
Machinery and equipment (2,421,364) (323,911) 108,423 - (2,636,852)
Office equipment (225,241) (48,755) 11,880 - (262,116)
Total accumulated depreciation (17,613,834) (1,991,304) 290,801 - (19,314,337)
Capital assets being depreciated, net 37,228,828 (1,044,881) (100,826) 12,540,253 48,623,374
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 92,308,217 $ (38,999) $ (100,826) $ - $ 92,168,392

44



City of Kerrville, Texas
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Business-type Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated
Building
Improvements other than buildings
Vehicles
Machinery and equipment
Office equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated
Less: accumulated depreciation for

Building
Improvements other than buildings
Vehicles
Machinery and equipment
Office equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Capital assets being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

EIC
Land

Total capital assets

September 30, 2018

Balance Balance
September 30, Sales or Other Adjustments/ September 30,
2017 Additions Dispositions Transfers 2018
$ 488,831 $ - $ - $ - $ 488,831

10,591,376 10,620,728 (112,455) (20,415,079) 684,570
11,080,207 10,620,728 (112,455) (20,415,079) 1,173,401
3,435,609 - - 723,792 4,159,401
96,334,377 125,188 - 19,691,287 116,150,852
1,538,436 55,235 (48,428) - 1,545,243
3,461,123 42,545 (19,866) - 3,483,802
118,248 - - - 118,248
104,887,793 222,968 (68,294) 20,415,079 125,457,546
(1,758,130) (97,504) - - (1,855,634)
(34,900,052) (2,179,358) - - (37,079,410)
(1,046,336) (133,247) 48,430 - (1,131,153)
(2,427,469) (226,720) 11,257 - (2,642,932)
(112,491) (735) - - (113,226)
(40,244,478) (2,637,564) 59,687 - (42,822,355)
64,643,315 (2,414,596) (8,607) 20,415,079 82,635,191
$ 75,723,522 $ 8,206,132 $ (121,062) $ - $ 83,808,592
Balance Balance
September 30, Sales or Other Adjustments/ September 30,
2017 Additions Dispositions Transfers 2018
1,138,436 - - - 1,138,436
$ 1,138,436 $ - $ - $ - $ 1,138,436

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

General government
Public safety

Public works

Culture and recreation

Total depreciation expense — governmental activities

Business-type activities
Water and Sewer
Golf course

Total depreciation expense — business-type activities

Internal Service Fund
Garage fund

$ 700,336
634,520
377,089
276,412

5 1988357
$ 2,564,681
72,883

8 2637564
$ 2,947
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KPUB
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Vehicles
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Vehicles
Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

September 30, 2018

Balance Balance
September 30, September 30,
2017 Additions Transfers Retirements 2018
$ 233,398 $ - $ - $ - $ 233,398
2,422,143 8,305,144 (3,589,804) 344,918 6,792,565
2,655,541 8,305,144 (3,589,804) 344,918 7,025,963
5,914,627 2,516,849 566,531 7,864,945
61,963,865 669,194 74,809 62,558,250
2,540,703 381,314 139,715 2,782,302
1,090,909 23,899 4,852 1,109,956
71,510,104 3,591,256 785,907 74,315,453
(3,781,120) (3,061,810) - 911,449 (5,931,481)
(30,151,606) (630,806) - 77,107 (30,705,305)
(1,049,526) (419,018) - 139,715 (1,328,829)

(369,821) (60,538) - 3,402 (426,957)
(35,352,073) (4,172,172) - 1,131,673 (38,392,572)
36,158,031 (4,172,172) 3,591,256 1,917,580 35,922,881

$ 38,813,572 $ 4,132,972 $ 1,452 $ 2,262,498 $ 42,948,844

KPUB uses a composite rate to depreciate its investment in the electric plant. The composite rate
was 5.7% for the year ended September 30, 2018.

Construction Commitments

The City has numerous active construction projects as of September 30, 2018. The projects include
street, water and sewer projects, park and other improvements. These improvements are being paid
with bond proceeds, EIC contributions and internally generated sources.

Governmental IP Fund
River Trail
Street Maintenance
Parking Garage Repairs

Water and Sewer Fund
Reuse Pond

Spent to Remaining Total

Date Commitments Commitments

$ 5,834,051 $ 138,867 $ 5,972,918
471,106 335,443 806,549
620,796 512,347 1,133,143

$ 6,925,953 $ 986,657 $ 7,912,610
19,933,028 1,022,394 20,955,422

$ 19,933,028 $ 1,022,394 $ 20,955,422
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Note 5: Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

Interfund receivables and payables:

Interfund
Receivable
Interfund Payable General Fund

Water and Sewer Fund $ 32,622
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 6,684
Internal Service Funds 3,304

$ 42,610

The interfund receivable and payable listed above was necessary due to timing of payroll
reimbursement by the Water and Sewer Fund, Golf Fund, Grant Fund and Internal Service Fund.

Interfund transfers:

Purpose of
Transfer Fund Transfer In Transfer Out Transfer
General Fund $ 3,187,170 $ 520,945 Budgetary
Governmental IP Fund 225,000 1,200,000 Capital Projects
Debt Service Fund 32,000 82,135 Budgetary
Golf Fund 280,000 - Budgetary
Water and Sewer Fund 19,649 1,940,739 Budgetary

$ 3,743,819 $ 3743819

e Eliminations — Interfund transfers are reported in the governmental activities and business-
type activities fund financial statements. In the government-wide financial statements,
interfund transfers are eliminated within the governmental activities column and within the
business-type column.

e Purpose of Transfers — Interfund transfers between the General Fund, Nonmajor
Governmental Funds and the Governmental IP Fund relate to the funding of capital projects,
the largest of which was $1,200,000 originally reserved for a fire department capital project.
The project amount was repurposed to purchase two fire trucks and moved to the asset
replacement fund. The Water and Sewer Fund provides transfer to the General Fund to
support overall operations. Debt Service Fund transfers relate to landfill post-closure costs.
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Note 6: Long-term Debt

The City issues general obligation bonds, certificates of obligation bonds, contractual obligation
bonds and notes to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities.
General obligation bonds have been issued for both governmental and business-type activities.
These issues are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City.

In December 2017, the City issued $17,215,000 of Series 2017, General Obligation Refunding

Bonds, with interest rates ranging from 2% to 5%. The debt was issued at a premium of
$1,324,740. The debt was issued for the purpose to refund certain maturities of the City’s currently
outstanding indebtedness. The issuance of the bonds will result in a net present value debt service

savings of approximately $1,070,000.
Debt Currently Outstanding:

Certificates of Obligations

Combination Taxand Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2008, 3.33%,
maturing in annual installiments of $185,000 to $225,000 through 2023

Combination Taxand Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2010, 2.00%
to 4.25%, maturing in annual installments of $90,000 to $345,000 through
2030

Combination Taxand Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2011, 2.00%
to 4.125%, maturing in annual installments of $255,000 to $435,000 through
2030

Combination Taxand Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2011A,
2.00% to 3.50%, maturing in annual installments of $175,000 to $255,000
through 2031

Combination Taxand Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2012, 2.00%
to 2.50%, maturing in annual installments of $465,000 to $645,000 through
2032

Combination Taxand Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2013, 1.50%
to 2.75%, maturing in annual installments of $450,000 to $610,000 through
2033

Combination Taxand Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2015, 2% to
3.625%, maturing in annual installments of $360,000 to $585,000 through
2035

Combination Taxand Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2016, 2% to
3.625%, maturing in annual installments of $370,000 to $610,000 through
2035

Governmental

Business-type

Component
Units

2,810,000

2,745,000

7,875,000

$ 1,060,000

330,000

280,000

4,795,000

7,895,000

8,450,000

$ 13,430,000

$ 22,810,000

48



City of Kerrville, Texas
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

September 30, 2018

General Obligations
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2017, 2.00% to 5.00%, maturing
in annual installments of $190,000 to $1,755,000 through 2030

Cailloux Foundation Properties Promissory Note
Cailloux Foundation Properties Promissory Note, interest free, maturing in
annual installments of $250,000 to $279,881 through 2019

State Infrastructure Bank Loan
State Infrastructure Bank Loan, Series 2006, 4.1%, maturing in annual

installments of $188,896 to $196,540 through 2019

Rewvenue Bonds
City of Kerrville, Texas Electric System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series
2013, 0.49% to 4.13%; maturing in annual installments of $375,000 to
$520,000 through 2029

Kerrville Public Utility Board Loan
Kerrville Public Utility Board Loan, 2.4%, maturing in annual installments of
$1,072,428 beginning 2020 through 2026

Component

Governmental Business-type Units

$ 6,060,000 $ 10,465,000 $ -
$ 6,060,000 $ 10,465,000 $ -
$ 279,881 $ - $ -
$ 42,320 $ 34,626 $ -
$ - $ - $ 4,858,000
$ - $ 7,500,000 $ -
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During the year ended September 30, 2018, the following changes occurred in business-type and
governmental activities long-term debt:

Beginning of Within One
Year Additions Deletions End of Year Year

Governmental Activities
General obligation bonds $ 2,523,000 $ 6,750,000 $ 3,213,000 $ 6,060,000 $ 840,000
Certificates of obligation 18,890,000 - 5,460,000 13,430,000 745,000
Cailloux Foundation promissory note 529,881 - 250,000 279,881 279,881
State Infrastructure Bank loan 150,472 - 108,152 42,320 42,320
Unamortized bond premium 333,479 458,915 136,986 655,408 178,565
Net bonds payable 22,426,832 7,208,915 9,168,138 20,467,609 2,085,766
Compensated absences 873,172 700,176 551,290 1,022,058 625,583
Landfill closure and post-closure costs 3,357,569 4,055 - 3,361,624 -

Governmental activity long-term liabilities $ 26,657,573 $ 7,913,146 $ 9,719,428 $ 24,851,291 $ 2,711,349

Business-type Activities

General obligation bonds $ 3,147,000 $ 10,465,000 $ 3,147,000 $ 10,465,000 $ -
Certificates of obligation 33,335,000 - 10,525,000 22,810,000 2,600,000
State Infrastructure Bank loan 123,114 - 88,488 34,626 34,626
Kerrville Public Utility Board note 7,500,000 - - 7,500,000 -
Unamortized bond premium 720,704 865,825 333,274 1,253,255 198,078
Net bonds payable 44,825,818 11,330,825 14,093,762 42,062,881 2,832,704
Compensated absences 168,380 133,214 111,303 190,291 74,694

Business-type activity long-term liabilities ~ $ 44,994,198 $ 11,464,039 $ 14,205,065 $ 42,253,172 $ 2,907,398

Discrete Component Unit — KPUB
Revenue refunding bonds $ 5,237,000 $ - $ 379,000 $ 4,858,000 $ 385,000

$  5237,000 $ - $ 379,000 $ 4,858,000 $ 385,000

For the governmental activities, compensated absences and landfill closure and post-closure costs
are generally liquidated by the General Fund.
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for debt, excluding bond premium, is as follows:

Governmental Activities

Fiscal Years Ending September 30 Principal Interest Total
2019 1,907,201 567,275 2,474,476
2020 1,530,000 531,164 2,061,164
2021 1,570,000 494,416 2,064,416
2022 1,610,000 452,861 2,062,861
2023 1,200,000 417,511 1,617,511
2024 - 2028 6,485,000 1,484,941 7,969,941
2029 - 2033 4,365,000 538,479 4,903,479
2034 - 2035 1,145,000 60,513 1,205,513
Total $ 19,812,201 $ 4,547,160 $ 24,359,361

Business-type Activities

Fscal Years Ending September 30 Principal Interest Total
2019 2,634,626 1,110,958 3,745,584
2020 2,925,000 1,040,203 3,965,203
2021 2,725,000 972,477 3,697,477
2022 2,810,000 899,834 3,709,834
2023 2,891,429 829,054 3,720,483
2024 - 2028 15,917,142 2,891,418 18,808,560
2029 - 2033 9,701,429 854,478 10,555,907
2034 — 2035 1,205,000 54,450 1,259,450
Total $ 40,809,626 $ 8,652,872 $ 49,462,498

KPUB

Fscal Years Ending September 30 Principal Interest Total
2019 385,000 145,543 530,543
2020 392,000 138,448 530,448
2021 401,000 130,055 531,055
2022 411,000 120,325 531,325
2023 422,000 109,197 531,197
2024 — 2028 2,327,000 327,430 2,654,430
2029 520,000 10,738 530,738

Total $ 4,858,000 $ 981,736 $ 5839736
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Note 7: Other Information

Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss relating to general liability, the accidental loss of real
and personal property damage to City assets, errors and omissions and personal risks which relate
to workers’ compensation. The City participates in the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental
Risk Pool. As an insured, the City is not obligated to reimburse the pool for losses. Any losses
reported but unsettled or incurred and not reported, are believed to be insignificant to the City’s
basic financial statements.

The City provides health care benefits on a fully insured basis to eligible employees. The City
contributes 100% of the premium for employee coverage and 60% of the premium for dependent
coverage. All funds are deposited into the internal service fund and paid to the provider out of the
same fund.

Commercial insurance is purchased for the other risks of losses to which the City is exposed.
There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage and settlement amounts have not
exceeded insurance coverage for the current year or the two prior years.

Closure and Post-closure Care Costs

State and federal laws and regulations require that the City place a final cover on its landfill when
closed and perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site for 30 years
after closure. In addition to operating expenses related to current activities of the landfill, an
expense provision and related liability are being recognized based on the future post-closure care
costs that will be incurred near or after the date the landfill no longer accepts waste. The
recognition of the landfill post-closure care cost is based on the amount of the landfill used during
the year. The estimated liability for landfill post-closure care costs of $3,361,624 as of
September 30, 2018, is based on 70% usage (filled) of the landfill. It is estimated that an additional
$1,444,563 will be recognized as post-closure care expenses between the date of the statement of
net position and the date the landfill is expected to be filled to capacity (2046). The City’s
estimated total cost of the landfill post-closure care of $4,806,187 is based on the amount that
would be paid if all equipment, facilities, and services required to close, monitor and maintain the
landfill were acquired as of September 30, 2018. However, the actual cost of closure and post-
closure care may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology or changes in landfill laws and
regulations.

The City has contractually obligated the landfill operator to bear the cost of the landfill closure.
The City monitors the closure costs and meets the financial assurance requirements noted below.
For the governmental activities of the City, landfill closure and post-closure costs are generally
liquidated by the General Fund.

The City’s financial assurance requirements for closure and post-closure care costs are being met
through the financial test specified in TAC 8§37.271 (relating to Local Government Financial Test).
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Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

The City is a party in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently
determinable, it is the opinion of the City’s management that the resolution of these matters will
not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.

The City contracts for garbage disposal with a third-party. Under the terms of the agreement the
City bills and collects the residential billing and remits that amount to the contracting party. The
contractor bills the commercial customers and remits a franchise fee to the City based on total
revenues received from the contract.

Note 8: Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans

Plan Description

The City and KPUB, one of its discretely presented component units, participate as two of 880
plans in the nontraditional, joint contributory, hybrid agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS). TMRS is an agency created
by the State of Texas and administered in accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title 8, Texas
Government Code (TMRS Act) as an agent multiple-employer retirement system for municipal
employees in the State of Texas. The TMRS Act places the general administration and management
of the System with a six-member Board of Trustees. Although the Governor, with the advice and
consent of the Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the State of Texas.
TMRS’ defined benefit pension plan is a tax-qualified plan under Section 401 (a) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The plan provisions as adopted by the City and KPUB are within the options
available in the governing state statutes of TMRS.

TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information (RSI) for TMRS; the report also provides
detailed explanations of the contributions, benefits and actuarial methods and assumptions used by
TMRS. This report may be obtained by writing to TMRS, P. O. Box 149153, Austin, Texas
78714-9153 or by calling 800-924-8677; in addition, the report is available on TMRS’ website at
www. TMRS.com.

All eligible employees of the City and KPUB are required to participate in TMRS.
For the year ended September 30, 2018, the City and KPUB reported the following:

City KPUB
Pension liability $ 3,895,123 $ 1,072,533
Deferred outflows of resources 2,718,042 1,116,243
Deferred inflows of resources 1,882,301 1,521,303
Pension expense 2,720,975 590,282

For the governmental activities of the City, the pension liability is generally liquidated by the
General Fund.
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Benefits Provided:

TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the
governing body of the City and KPUB, within the options available in the state statutes governing
TMRS.

At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee’s contributions, with interest
and the city-financed monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an annuity. Members
may choose to receive their retirement benefit in one of seven actuarially equivalent payment
options. Members may also choose to receive a portion of their benefit as a Partial Lump Sum
Distribution in an amount equal to 12, 24, or 36 monthly payments, which cannot exceed 75% of
the member’s deposits and interest.

A summary of plan provisions for the City and KPUB are as follows:

Employee Deposit Rate: 7.0%

Matching Ratio (City to employee): 2to 1l

Years required for vesting 5 years

Service retirement eligibility 20 years at any age, 5

years at age 60 and above
Updated service credit 100% Repeating, Transfers

Annuity increase to retirees 0% of CPI

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms:

At the December 31, 2017, valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered
by the benefit terms:

City  KPUB
Retirees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 240 35
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 175 30
Active employees 304 56
Total 719 121
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Contributions

Employees for the City and KPUB were required to contribute 7% of their annual gross earnings
during the fiscal year. Employer contributions are actuarially determined. For the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2018, contributions of $1,572,311 and $537,357, were made by the City and
KPUB, respectively, and were equal to the required contributions.

Net Pension Liability

The City’s net pension liability and KPUB’s net pension liability at September 30, 2018, were
measured as of December 31, 2017, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the December 31, 2017, actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation 2.5% per year for the City and KPUB
Overall Payroll Growth 3.5% per year for the City and KPUB
Investment Rate of Return 6.75%, net of pension plan investment expense,

including inflation for the City and KPUB

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members, retirees,
and beneficiaries were based on the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue
Collar Adjustments, with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103%. The
rates are projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality
improvements. For disabled annuitants, the gender-distinct RP2000 Disabled Retiree Mortality
Table is used, with slight adjustments.

Actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2017, valuation were based on the results of
actuarial experience studies. This experience study was for the period December 31, 2010 through
December 31, 2014. Healthy post-retirement mortality rates and annuity purchase rates were
updated based on a Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 through 2011, and
dated December 31, 2013. Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on both
capital appreciation as well as the production of income, in order to satisfy the short-term and long-
term funding needs of TMRS.
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The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by
adding expected inflation.

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class
are summarized in the following table:

Long-term
Expected Real
Target Rate of Return
Asset Class Allocation (Arithmetic)

Domestic equity 17.5% 4.55%
International equity 17.5% 6.35%
Core fixed income 10.0% 1.00%
Non-core fixed income 20.0% 4.15%
Real return 10.0% 4.15%
Real estate 10.0% 4.75%
Absolute return 10.0% 4.00%
Private equity 5.0% 7.75%

Total 100%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will remain at the current
7.00% and employer contributions will be made at the rates specified in statute. Based on that
assumption, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.
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Changes in the City’s Net Pension Liability:

Increase (Decrease)

Plan Net Pension
Total Pension Fduciary Net Liability
Liability (a) Position (b) (a) — (b)
Balances as of October 1, 2017 $ 75,277,376 $ 67,221,929 $ 8,055,447
Changes for the year:
Service cost 2,369,887 - 2,369,887
Interest on total pension liability 5,033,587 - 5,033,587
Effect of difference in expected
and actual experience 413,315 - 413,315
Benefit payments (3,781,320) (3,781,320) -
Administrative expenses - (48,283) 48,283
Member contributions - 1,141,721 (1,141,721)
Net investment income - 9,313,809 (9,313,809)
Employer contributions - 1,572,311 (1,572,311)
Other - (2,445) 2,445
Balances as of September 30, 2018 $ 79,312,845 $ 75,417,722 $ 3,895,123

Changes in KPUB’s Net Pension Liability:

Increase (Decrease)

Plan Net Pension
Total Pension Fduciary Net Liability
Liability (a) Position (b) (a) — (b)
Balances as of October 1, 2017 $  25454,331 $ 22,776,940 $ 2,677,391
Changes for the year:
Service cost 638,277 - 638,277
Interest on total pension liability 1,711,786 - 1,711,786
Effect of difference in expected
and actual experience (22,320) - (22,320)
Benefit payments (827,347) (827,347) -
Administrative expenses - (16,360) 16,360
Member contributions - 512,666 (512,666)
Net investment income - 3,157,178 (3,157,178)
Employer contributions - 279,946 (279,946)
Other - (829) 829
Balances as of September 30, 2018 $ 26,954,727 $ 25,882,194 $ 1,072,533
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Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability (asset) of the City and KPUB, calculated using the

discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using
a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.75%) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.75%) than

the current rate:

1% Decrease in Current 1%Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
(5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)
City’s net pension liability (asset) $ 14,798,589 $ 3,895,123 $ (5,093,836)
KPUB’s net pension liability (asset) $ 4,956,059 $ 1,072,533 $ (2,113,025)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in a separately-
issued TMRS financial report. That report may be obtained on the Internet at www.tmrs.com.

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended September 30, 2018, the City and KPUB recognized pension expense of
$2,720,975 and $590,282, respectively.

At September 30, 2018, the City and KPUB reported deferred outflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

City KPUB
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected $ 976,979 $ - $ 52,427 $ 224,641
and actual experience
Changes of assumptions 416,899 - 43,806
Differences between projected
and actual investment earnings - 1,882,301 640,313 1,296,662
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date through year-end 1,324,164 - 379,697

$ 2,718,042 $ 1,882,301 $ 1,116,243 $ 1,521,303

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions subsequent to the
measurement date of $1,324,164 and $379,697 made by the City and KPUB, respectively, will be
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability for the year ending September 30, 2019.
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Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended
September 30 City KPUB
2018 $ 914,897 $ 11,170
2019 353,914 (91,734)
2020 (819,768) (379,339)
2021 (937,466) (324,854)
Total $ (488,423) $  (784,757)

Note 9: Other Postemployment Benefit Plan

Plan Description

Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) administers a defined benefit group-term life
insurance plan known as the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF). This is a voluntary
program in which participating member cities may elect, by ordinance, to provide group-term life
insurance coverage for their active members, including or not including retirees. The death benefit
for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the employee’s annual
salary (calculated based on the employee’s actual earnings, for the 12-month period preceding the
month of death). The death benefit for retirees is considered an OPEB and is a fixed amount of
$7,500. As the SDBF covers both active and retiree participants, with no segregation of assets, the
SDBEF is considered to be an unfunded OPEB plan.

The member entity contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an
annual actuarial valuation. The rate is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life insurance.
The funding policy for the SDBF is to assure that adequate resources are available to meet all death
benefit payments for the upcoming year. The intent is not to pre-fund retiree term life insurance
during employees’ entire careers.

Benefits Provided:

The plan provides a $7,500 post-retirement death benefit to beneficiaries of service retirees and
disability retirees of employers that have elected participation in the SDBF. The OPEB benefit is a
fixed $7,500 lump-sum benefit and no future increases are assumed in the benefit amount.

The SDBF fund does not meet the requirements of a trust under Paragraph 4b of GASBS No. 75, as
the assets of the SDBF can be used to pay active SDBF benefits which are not part of the OPEB
plan. The contributions for retiree SDBF coverage are assigned to the OPEB plan under GASBS
No. 75 and are used to determine the benefit payments shown in the changes in the total OPEB
liability.
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Benefit terms are established under the TMRS Act. Participation in the retiree SDBF is optional
and the employer may elect to opt out of (or opt into) coverage as of January 1 each year. KPUB’s
contribution rate for the retiree SDBF program is calculated annually on an actuarial basis, and is
equal to the cost of providing a one-year death benefit equal to $7,500.

Contributions:

The member city contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an
annual actuarial valuation. The rate is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life insurance.
The funding policy for the SDBF program is to assure that adequate resources are available to meet
all death benefit payments for the upcoming year. The intent is not to pre-fund retiree term life
insurance during employees’ entire careers.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms:

At the December 31, 2017, valuation and measurement date, the following employees were
covered by the benefit terms:

City KPUB
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 189 31
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 45 19
Active employees 304 56
Total employees 538 106

Total OPEB Liability:

The City’s total OPEB liability and KPUB’s total OPEB liability at September 30, 2018, were
measured as of December 31, 2017, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions:

December 31, 2017

Actuarial Cost Method Individual Entry-Age

Discount Rate 3.31% as of December 31, 2017 (3.81% as of December 31, 2016)
Inflation 2.50%

Overall Payroll Growth 3.50% to 10.50%, including inflation

Administrative Expenses Alladministrative expenses are paid through the Pension Trust

and accounted for under reporting requirements under GASB
Statement No. 68.

Mortality Rates — Service Retirees RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment
with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by
103% and projected on a fully generational basis with scale BB.

Mortality Rates — Disabled Retirees RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment
with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by
103% with a 3 year set-forward for both males and females. The
rates are projected on a fully generational basis with scale BB to
account for future mortality improvements subject to the 3% floor.
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The TMRS SDBF is treated as unfunded OPEB plan because the SDBF trust covers both actives
and retirees and the assets are not segregated for these groups. Under GASBS No. 75 (paragraph
155), the discount rate for an unfunded OPEB plan should be based on 20-year tax-exempt AA or
higher Municipal Bonds. Therefore, a discount rate of 3.31% based on the 20 Year Bond GO Index
published by bondbuyer.com is used as of the measurement date of December 31, 2017. At
transition, GASBS No. 75 also requires that the Total OPEB Liability (TOL) as of the prior fiscal
year end be estimated based on the 20 Year Bond GO Index.

Changes in the City’s Total OPEB Liability:

Total OPEB
Liability

Balance as of October 1, 2017 $ 978,235
Changes for the year:
Service cost 32,621
Interest on total OPEB liability 37,409
Effect of assumption changes

and inputs 87,451
Benefit payments (9,786)
Balance as of September 30, 2018 $ 1,125,930

For the governmental activities of the City, the OPEB liability is generally liquidated by the

General Fund.

Changes in the KPUB’s Total OPEB Liability:

Total OPEB
Liability

Balance as of October 1, 2017 $ 204,932
Changes for the year:
Service cost 5,999
Interest on total OPEB liability 7,837
Effect of assumption changes

and inputs 18,923
Benefit payments (1,200)
Balance as of September 30, 2018 $ 236,491
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Sensitivity Analysis:

The following presents the Total OPEB Liability of the employer, calculated using the discount
rate of 3.31%, as well as what the Total OPEB Liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (2.31%) or 1 percentage point higher (4.31%) than
the current rate. Note that the healthcare cost trend rate does not affect the Total OPEB Liability, so

sensitivity to the healthcare cost trend rate is not shown.

1%Decrease in Current 1%lIncreasein
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
(2.31%) (3.31%) (4.31%)
City’s net OPEB liability (asset) $ 1,348,959 $ 1125930 $ 951,079
KPUB’s net OPEB liability (asset) $ 284,798 $ 236,491 $ 198,517

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to

OPEB:

For the year ended September 30, 2018, the City and KPUB recognized OPEB expense of $85,901

and $17,941, respectively.

At September 30, 2018, the City and KPUB reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred

inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

City KPUB
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources of Resources of Resources
Changes of assumptions $ 71,580 $ - $ 14,818 $
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date through year-end 24,831 843
Total $ 96,411 $ - $ 15,661 $

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date and before fiscal year-end will be recognized as
a reduction of the total OPEB liability in the year ending September 30, 2019.
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Amounts currently reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB benefits will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ended City KPUB
2018 $ 15,871 $ 4,105
2019 15,871 4,105
2020 15,871 4,105
2021 15,871 2,503
2022 8,096 -
Total $ 71,580 $ 14,818

Note 10: Investment in Joint Venture

The City and Kerr County operate a municipal airport under a joint venture agreement.
Participants provide financial support and are entitled to an undivided 50% interest in net position.
The following is condensed financial information for the airport as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2018:

Assets
Rewenues
Cash $ 530,084 Capital grants and contributions $ 100,000
Receivables 4,930 Charges for services 398,351
Prepaid items 6,643
Nondepreciable property Total Revenues 498,351
Land 2,872,627
Depreciable property, net Expenses
Buildings 3,757,956 Airport operations 954,252
Improvements 10,677,924
Vehicle 10,035 Operating loss (455,901)
Machinery and equipment 17,551
General Rewvenues
Total assets 17,877,750 Miscellaneous revenue 2,500
Unrestricted investment earnings 377
2,877
Liabilities and Net Position
Change in Net Position (453,024)
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 11,446 Net Position, Beginning of Year 18,276,943
Wages and salaries payable 6,083
Unearned revenue 20,880 Net Position, End of Year $ 17,823919
Other current liabilities 15,422
Total liabilities 53,831
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 17,336,093
Restricted for capital projects 56,669
Unrestricted 431,157
Total net position $ 17,823919
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Note 11: Disclosures About Fair Value of Assets

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value measurements
must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. There is
a hierarchy of three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1  Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets
or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the

full term of the assets or liabilities

Level 3 Unobservable inputs supported by little or no market activity and are significant to
the fair value of the assets or liabilities

Recurring Measurements

The following table presents the fair value measurements of assets recognized in the accompanying
financial statements measured at fair value on a recurring basis and the level within the fair value
hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall at September 30, 2018:

Investments by fair value lewvel
U.S. agency securities
Commercial paper
U.S. treasury

Total investments by fair value level

Investments measured at net asset value
LOGIC
Texas CLASS

Investments measured at amortized cost
Texpool Prime
Texpool Prime (EIC)
Non-negotiable certificates of deposit

Total investments

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
$ 2,995,322 $ - $ 2,995,322 $
5,859,751 5,859,751
5,963,637 5,963,637
14,818,710 $ - $ 14,818,710 $
$ 2,158,912
10,497,796
12,656,708
$ 2,822,143
4,082,649
493,552
7,398,344
S uerTe
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2018

Certain investments that are measured using the net asset value per share (or its equivalent)
practical expedient have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts
included above approximate net asset value for all related external investment pool balances.

Investments

Where quoted market prices are available in an active market, securities are classified within

Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. If quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are
estimated by using quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics or independent asset
pricing services and pricing models, the inputs of which are market-based or independently sourced
market parameters, including, but not limited to, yield curves, interest rates, volatilities,
prepayments, defaults, cumulative loss projections and cash flows. Such securities are classified in
Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy. In certain cases where Level 1 or Level 2 inputs are not
available, securities are classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy. As of September 30, 2018, no
investments were classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Note 12: Subsequent Event

In December 2018, the City issued $8,000,000 of Series 2018A and $5,000,000 of Series 2018B
Combination Tax and Surplus Revenue Certificates of Obligation. The debt was directly placed
with the Texas Water Development Board through programs offering subsidized interest rates for
qualifying water related projects. The proceeds will be used to fund a new lift station and an
enhanced water filtration system.
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City of Kerrville, Texas

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios — City

Measurement Year

Measurement Year

Texas Municipal Retirement System

Measurement Year

Exhibit B-1

Measurement Year

2014 2015 2016 2017
Total Pension Liability:
Service cost $ 1,951,508 $ 2,199,722 $ 2,302,945 $ 2,369,887
Interest 4,299,140 4,537,125 4,749,013 5,033,587
Difference between expected
and actual experience 224,385 833,034 752,018 413,315
Change of assumptions - 1,401,697 - -
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions (2,893,459) (3,505,260) (3,461,755) (3,781,320)
Net Change in Total Pension Liability 3,581,574 5,466,318 4,342,221 4,035,469
Total Pension Liability — Beginning 61,887,263 65,468,837 70,935,155 75,277,376
Total Pension Liability — Ending (a) 65,468,837 70,935,155 75,277,376 79,312,845
Plan Fiduciary Net Position:
Contributions — employer 1,285,810 1,333,494 1,326,321 1,572,311
Contributions — employee 1,033,371 1,087,221 1,103,361 1,141,721
Net investment income 3,552,041 95,956 4,323,251 9,313,809
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions (2,893,459) (3,505,260) (3,461,755) (3,781,320)
Administrative expense (37,086) (58,447) (48,835) (48,283)
Other (3,049) (2,887) (2,631) (2,445)
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 2,937,628 (1,049,923) 3,239,712 8,195,793
Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Beginning 62,094,512 65,032,140 63,982,217 67,221,929
Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Ending (b) 65,032,140 63,982,217 67,221,929 75,417,722
City’s Net Pension Liability — Ending (a) - (b) $ 436,697 $ 6,952,938 $ 8,055,447 $ 3,895,123
Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of total pension liability 99.3% 90.2% 89.3% 95.1%
Covered payroll $ 14,762,442 $ 15,523,799 $ 15,752,020 $ 16,310,305
City’s net pension liability as a percentage
of covered payroll 3.0% 44.8% 51.1% 23.9%

Other Information:

The discount rate changed from 7.00% to 6.75% for the 2015 valuation; there were no other
changes in assumptions.

The information in this schedule has been determined as of the measurement date (December 31)
of the City’s net pension liability and is intended to show information for 10 years. However, until
a full 10-year trend is compiled in accordance with the provision of GASB 68, only periods for
which such information is available are presented.
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Schedule of Contributions — City

Texas Municipal Retirement System

Actuarially determined contribution

Contribution in relation of the

actuarially determined contribution
Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

Covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll

Notes to Schedule:

Valuation Date:

Exhibit B-2
Fscal Year Fscal Year Fscal Year Fscal Year
2015 2016 2017 2018
1,325,004 1,376,486 1,326,321 1,572,311
1,325,004 1,376,486 1,326,321 1,572,311
$ $ $

15,367,386 15,968,863 16,148,368 16,993,172
8.6% 8.6% 8.2% 9.3%

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31* each year and become effective

in January, 12 months and a day later.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method
Remaining Amortization Period
Asset Valuation Method
Inflation

Salary Increases

Investment Rate of Return
Retirement Age

Mortality

Other Information:

Entry Age Normal
Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed

30 years

10 Year smoothed market; 15% soft corridor
2.5%

3.50% to 10.50% including inflation

6.75%

Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the City's plan
of benefits. Last updated for the 2015 valuation pursuant to an
experience study of the period 2010 — 2014.

RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment
with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by
103% and projected on a fully generational basis with scale BB.
There were no benefit changes during the year.

The information in this schedule has been determined as of the City’s most recent fiscal year-end and is
intended to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled in accordance
with the provision of GASB 68, only periods for which such information is available are presented.

67



Other Information:

City of Kerrville, Texas
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios - City

Total OPEB Liability:

Service cost
Interest

Change in assumptions

Benefit payments

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability
Total OPEB Liability — Beginning

Total OPEB Liability - Ending

Cowered Payroll

Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage

of Cowvered Payroll

Texas Municipal Retirement System

Measurement Year
2017

$ 32,621
37,409
87,451

(9,786)

147,695

978,235

S 1imon
16,310,305

6.90%

Exhibit B-3

The information in this schedule has been determined as of the City’s most recent fiscal year-end and is
intended to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled in accordance
with the provision of GASB 75, only periods for which such information is available are presented.
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios — KPUB

Last Four Fiscal Years
Exhibit B-4

Measurement Year Measurement Year Measurement Year Measurement Year

2014 2015 2016 2017
Total Pension Liabhility:
Service cost $ 553,679 $ 673,011 $ 647,310 $ 638,277
Interest 1,474,035 1,588,966 1,643,216 1,711,786
Difference between expected
and actual experience 190,503 119,729 (365,600) (22,320)
Change of assumptions - 139,038 - -
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions (526,824) (745,186) (981,761) (827,347)
Net Change in Total Pension Liability 1,691,393 1,775,558 943,165 1,500,396
Total Pension Liability — Beginning 21,044,215 22,735,608 24,511,166 25,454,331
Total Pension Liability — Ending (a) 22,735,608 24,511,166 25,454,331 26,954,727
Plan Fiduciary Net Position:
Contributions — employer 437,344 513,580 473,838 512,666
Contributions — employee 270,204 304,924 281,090 279,946
Net investment income 1,153,226 31,695 1,457,035 3,157,178
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions (526,824) (745,186) (981,761) (827,347)
Administrative expense (12,040) (19,305) (16,459) (16,360)
Other (990) (953) (887) (829)
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 1,320,920 84,755 1,212,856 3,105,254
Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Beginning 20,158,409 21,479,329 21,564,084 22,776,940
Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Ending (b) 21,479,329 21,564,084 22,776,940 25,882,194
KPUB’s Net Pension Liability — Ending (a) - (b) $ 1,256,279 $ 2,947,082 $ 2,677,391 $ 1,072,533
Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of total pension liability 94.5% 88.0% 89.5% 96.0%
Covered payroll $ 3,860,050 $ 4,356,061 $ 4,015,570 $ 3,999,227
KPUB?’s net pension liability as a percentage
of covered payroll 32.5% 67.7% 66.7% 26.8%

Other Information:

The discount rate changed from 7.00% to 6.75% for the 2015 valuation; there were no other changes in
assumptions.

The information in this schedule has been determined as of the measurement date (December 31) of
KPUB?’s net pension liability and is intended to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-
year trend is compiled in accordance with the provision of GASB 68, only periods for which such
information is available are presented.
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Schedule of Contributions — KPUB
Texas Municipal Retirement System
Last Four Fiscal Years

Exhibit B-5
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2015 2016 2017 2018
Actuarially determined contribution $ 486,427 $ 478,030 $ 496,124 $ 537,357
Contribution in relation of the
actuarially determined contribution 486,427 478,030 496,124 537,357
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ - $ - $ - $
Covered payroll 4,165,019 4,052,120 4,020,268 3,919,181
Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll 11.7% 11.8% 12.3% 13.7%

Notes to Schedule:

Valuation Date:

Actuarial determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31% each year and become effective
in January, 12 months and a day later.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed

Remaining Amortization Period 30 years

Asset Valuation Method 10 Year smoothed market; 15% soft corridor

Inflation 2.5%

Salary Increases 3.50% to 10.50% including inflation

Investment Rate of Return 6.75%

Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to KPUB’s plan

of benefits. Last updated for the 2015 valuation pursuant to an
experience study of the period 2010 — 2014.

Mortality RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment
with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by
103% and projected on a fully generational basis with scale BB.
There were no benefit changes during the year.

Other Information:

The information in this schedule has been determined as of KPUB’s most recent fiscal year-end and is
intended to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled in accordance
with the provision of GASB 68, only periods for which such information is available are presented.
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios — KPUB
Texas Municipal Retirement System

Exhibit B-6

Measurement Year

2017

Total OPEB Liability:

Service cost $ 5,999

Interest 7,837

Change in assumptions 18,923

Benefit payments (1,200)
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability 31,559
Total OPEB Liability — Beginning 204,932
Total OPEB Liability — Ending $ 236,491
Cowered Payroll 3,999,227
Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage 5.91%

of Cowered Payroll

Other Information:

The information in this schedule has been determined as of KPUB’s most recent fiscal year-end and is
intended to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled in accordance
with the provision of GASB 75, only periods for which such information is available are presented.
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual (General Fund)
Year Ended September 30, 2018

Variance With

Fnal Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Fnal Actual (Negative)
Rewenues
Taxes, penalties and interest $ 18,258,160 $ 18,258,160 $ 18,300,673 $ 42,513
Intergovernmental 1,381,387 1,381,387 1,372,133 (9,254)
Licenses and permits 476,000 476,000 581,014 105,014
Charges for services 3,870,518 3,870,518 4,158,789 288,271
Fines and forfeitures 627,800 627,800 612,061 (15,739)
Grants 22,000 76,064 123,353 47,289
Investment income 76,250 76,250 246,697 170,447
Miscellaneous 275,061 275,061 295,976 20,915
Total revenues 24,987,176 25,041,240 25,690,696 649,456
Expenditures
General government
City council 9,514 18,943 18,755 188
City secretary 212,412 212,412 202,783 9,629
City attorney 272,912 258,912 258,363 549
Municipal court 439,555 439,555 435,229 4,326
City administration 680,773 730,640 730,539 101
Human resources 373,159 367,159 357,408 9,751
Finance 428,699 428,699 425,947 2,752
Information systems 1,083,673 1,096,673 1,064,177 32,496
Solid waste 192,680 173,584 167,838 5,746
General operations 1,497,232 1,530,309 1,525,668 4,641
Total general government 5,190,609 5,256,886 5,186,707 70,179
Public safety
Police 5,805,699 5,768,599 5,617,132 151,467
Fire 4,620,412 4,826,259 4,826,235 24
Fire marshal 214,736 221,151 220,724 427
Emergency medical services 2,584,469 2,436,270 2,436,063 207
Total public safety 13,225,316 13,252,279 13,100,154 152,125
Public works
Planning 159,106 147,605 135,193 12,412
Building services 487,861 487,861 441,678 46,183
Engineering 386,365 386,365 355,163 31,202
Streets 3,107,022 3,106,117 3,098,128 7,989
Code compliance 161,795 148,876 130,946 17,930
Total public works 4,302,149 4,276,824 4,161,108 115,716
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Exhibit B-7

Fnal Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Fnal Actual (Negative)
Culture and recreation
Kerrville-Schreiner Park $ 465,246 $ 449,020 $ 446,903 $ 2,117
Tennis center 13,020 11,107 10,736 371
Aquatics 121,721 174,615 174,574 41
Parks maintenance 1,297,255 1,259,005 1,290,161 (31,156)
Recreation 184,803 196,330 196,154 176
Library 688,309 688,309 654,905 33,404
Main Street 8,085 8,085 7,548 537
Sports complex 548,281 660,781 654,198 6,583
Total culture and recreation 3,326,720 3,447,252 3,435,179 12,073
Capital outlay 1,388,250 1,341,938 865,542 476,396
Total expenditures 27,433,044 27,575,179 26,748,690 826,489
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (2,445,868) (2,533,939) (1,057,994) 1,475,945
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 3,147,874 3,147,874 3,187,170 39,296
Transfers out (112,000) (481,649) (520,945) (39,296)
Total other financing sources 3,035,874 2,666,225 2,666,225 -
Net Changes in Fund Balance 590,006 132,286 1,608,231 1,475,945
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 13,440,490 13,440,490 13,440,490 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 14,030,496 $ 13,572,776 $ 15,048,721 $ 1,475,945
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
September 30, 2018

Budgetary Information

The City follows the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:

Prior to adoption of a formal budget, the City Manager must file by July 31 with the City Clerk a
proposed operating budget for the year commencing the following October 1. The operating
budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

A public hearing is conducted to obtain taxpayers’ comments.
Prior to October 1 the budget is adopted and legally enacted through passage of an ordinance.

The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between accounts within a fund as
long as the request results in a $0 net impact to the fund. The City Council must authorize all
changes to the budget that result in a change to the net position of a fund. Budgeted amounts in
this report include transfers and revisions to the original appropriations ordinance; most department
budgets were modified during the year.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year. The
City uses the encumbrance basis which is comprised of GAAP basis transactions modified by
encumbrances made for legal obligations incurred as of year-end. Annual budgets are not adopted
for capital projects funds which use project length budgets for projects which encompass two or
more fiscal years.

Budgets have been adopted for the General Fund, certain Special Revenue Funds (Library
Memorial, Hotel Reserve, Hotel/Motel Tax, History Center, PEG Fund) and the Debt Service
Fund.

Annual budgeted expenditures are adopted at the department level within funds. As described
above, the City Manager is authorized to make transfers within a fund. Accordingly, the level at
which expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations is the fund level.

Appropriations for annually budgeted funds lapse at year-end.

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, the General Fund had expenditures in excess of

appropriations in General Government of $11,918 from the final adopted budget to actual by total
functional class.
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Modified Approach for Capital Assets — Street System
September 30, 2018

Exhibit B-8

Modified Approach for Capital Assets — Street System

The City implemented the modified approach for its street system in connection with
implementation of GASB Statement No. 34 during the year ended September 30, 2009. Three-year
and five-year historical information, respectively, for pavement condition and maintenance
comparisons will be presented on a prospective basis.

Pavement Condition Index of Street Systems

Classification 2018 2017 2016
Secondary arterial 87 88 87
Collector 80 80 80
Industrial 86 87 88
Residential 80 80 80
Overall system 80 80 79

Comparison of Needed-to-Actual Maintenance/Preservation

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Overall system

Needed

Actual

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
2,547,431 689,729 790,069 945,027 529,600

The condition of road pavement is measured using the Asphalt Institute Pavement Rating System
(AIPRS), which is based on a weighted-average of 11 visual deficiency factors found in pavement
surfaces. AIPRS uses a measurement scale that is based on a Condition Index ranging from O for
failed pavement to 100 for a pavement in perfect condition. The Condition Index is used to
classify roads in very good condition (92 — 100), good condition (81 — 91), fair condition (70 — 80),
poor condition (61 — 69) and very poor condition (0 — 50). It is the City’s policy (as set forth in
Resolution No. 038-2004, dated March 23, 2004) to maintain an overall weighted-average
Condition Index of 75. Complete condition assessments are determined every three years.
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Combining Statements and Budgetary Comparison
Schedules as Supplementary Information



Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Taxes receivable

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue

Fund Balances
Restricted

Committed

Total fund balances

City of Kerrville, Texas
Combining Balance Sheet — Nonmajor Governmental Funds

September 30, 2018

Special Revenue Funds

Library Hotel/Motel Hotel Reserve
Memorial Tax Fund History Center Grant

$ 246,080 $ 666,805 $ 223,324 $ 113,552 1,777
185,639 503,029 168,473 85,662 1,340

- 7 - - -

431,719 1,169,841 391,797 199,214 3,117

- - - 68 -

- - - 68 -

- 1,169,841 391,797 - 3,117

431,719 - - 199,146 -

$ 431,719 $ 1,169,841 $ 391,797 $ 199,146 3,117
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Exhibit C-1

Capital Debt Service
Special Revenue Funds Projects Fund Fund
Total
Municipal Parkland Debt Service Nonmajor

Police PEG Court Dedication Fund Funds
52,902 $ 21,429 $ 45,398 $ 87,909 $ 652,739 $ 2,111,915
39,909 16,166 34,248 66,317 492,417 1,593,200
- 14,000 - - 47,583 61,590
92,811 51,595 79,646 154,226 1,192,739 3,766,705
31,833 - 625 - - 32,526
31,833 - 625 - - 32,526
- - - - 48,272 48,272
60,978 51,595 79,021 - 1,144,467 2,900,816
- - - 154,226 - 785,091
60,978 $ 51,595 $ 79,021 $ 154,226 $ 1,144,467 $ 3,685,907
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City of Kerrville, Texas

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances — Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Special Revenue Funds

Library Hotel/Motel Hotel Reserve
Memorial Tax Fund History Center Grant
Rewenues
Taxes and penalties $ - $ 1,333,802 $ - $ - $ -
License and permits - - - - -
Charges for services - - - 114 -
Grants 107,346 - - - 28,304
Investment income 5,947 14,907 5,826 2,896 -
Miscellaneous 774 - - 19,315 -
Total revenues 114,067 1,348,709 5,826 22,325 28,304
Expenditures
Current
Culture and recreation 6,232 1,090,707 - 7,312 -
General government - - - - -
Capital outlay 15,839 - - - 28,304
Debt Service
Principal - - - - -
Interest - - - - -
Total expenditures 22,071 1,090,707 - 7,312 28,304
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 91,996 258,002 5,826 15,013 -
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of long-term debt - - - - -
Premium on issuance of debt - - - - -
Payment to the refunded bond escrow agent - - - - -
Transfers in - - - - -
Transfers out - - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - - -
Net Change in Fund Balances 91,996 258,002 5,826 15,013 -
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 339,723 911,839 385,971 184,133 3,117
Fund Balances, End of Year $ 431,719 $ 1,169,841 $ 391,797 $ 199,146 $ 3,117
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Exhibit C-2

Capital Debt Service
Special Revenue Funds Projects Fund Fund
Total
Municipal Parkland Debt Service Nonmajor
Police PEG Court Dedication Fund Funds

- $ 58,567 $ - $ - $ 1,459,417 $ 2,851,786

- - - 46,096 - 46,096
24,778 - 29,831 - - 54,723
- - - - - 135,650
1,178 401 1,391 2,111 27,186 61,843
6,936 - - - 1,129,913 1,156,938
32,892 58,968 31,222 48,207 2,616,516 4,307,036
5,965 - - - - 1,110,216
- 49,909 4,442 - - 54,351

- - 29,069 - - 73,212

- - - - 2,018,177 2,018,177

- - - - 617,818 617,818
5,965 49,909 33,511 - 2,635,995 3,873,774
26,927 9,059 (2,289) 48,207 (19,479) 433,262
- - - - 6,750,000 6,750,000

- - - - 458,915 458,915

- - - - (7,133,297) (7,133,297)

- - - - 32,000 32,000

- - - - (82,135) (82,135)

- - - - 25,483 25,483
26,927 9,059 (2,289) 48,207 6,004 458,745
34,051 42,536 81,310 106,019 1,138,463 3,227,162
60,978 $ 51,595 $ 79,021 $ 154,226 $ 1,144,467 $ 3,685,907




City of Kerrville, Texas
Library Memorial
Special Revenue Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Year Ended September 30, 2018
Exhibit C-3

Variance With

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Fnal Actual (Negative)
Rewenues
Grants $ 26,500 $ 26,500 $ 107,346 $ 80,846
Investment income 1,500 1,500 5,947 4,447
Miscellaneous 500 500 774 274
Total revenues 28,500 28,500 114,067 85,567
Expenditures
Culture and recreation 25,000 25,000 6,232 18,768
Capital outlay 16,650 16,650 15,839 811
Total expenditures 41,650 41,650 22,071 19,579
Net Change in Fund Balance (13,150) (13,150) 91,996 105,146
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 339,723 339,723 339,723 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 326,573 $ 326,573 $ 431,719 $ 105,146
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Hotel/Motel Tax
Special Revenue Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Year Ended September 30, 2018
Exhibit C-4

Variance With

Budgeted Amounts Fnal Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Rewenues
Hotel/motel taxes $ 1,200,000 $ 1,200,000 $ 1,333,802 $ 133,802
Investment income 14,907 14,907 14,907 -
Total revenues 1,214,907 1,214,907 1,348,709 133,802
Expenditures
Culture and recreation 25,000 25,000 1,090,707 (1,065,707)
Capital Outlay 16,650 16,650 - 16,650
Total expenditures 41,650 41,650 1,090,707 (1,049,057)
Net Change in Fund Balance 1,173,257 1,173,257 258,002 (915,255)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 911,839 911,839 911,839 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 2,085,096 $ 2,085,096 $ 1,169,841 $ (915,255)
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Hotel Reserve Fund
Special Revenue Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Year Ended September 30, 2018
Exhibit C-5

Variance With

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Fnal Actual (Negative)

Rewenues
Investment income $ 1,500 $ 1,500 $ 5,826 $ 4,326
Total revenues 1,500 1,500 5,826 4,326
Net Change in Fund Balance 1,500 1,500 5,826 4,326
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 385,971 385,971 385,971 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 387,471 $ 387,471 $ 391,797 $ 4,326
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City of Kerrville, Texas
History Center
Special Revenue Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year Ended September 30, 2018

Exhibit C-6

Variance With

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Rewvenues
Charges for services $ 350 $ 350 $ 114 $ (236)
Investment income 300 300 2,896 2,596
Miscellaneous 32,368 32,368 19,315 (13,053)
Total revenues 33,018 33,018 22,325 (10,693)
Expenditures
Cultural and recreation 14,523 14,523 7,312 7,211
Total expenditures 14,523 14,523 7,312 7,211
Net Change in Fund Balance 18,495 18,495 15,013 (3,482)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 184,133 184,133 184,133 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 202,628 $ 202,628 $ 199,146 $ (3,482)
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City of Kerrville, Texas
PEG Fund
Special Revenue Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Year Ended September 30, 2018
Exhibit C-7

Variance With

Budgeted Amounts Fnal Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Rewenues
Taxes $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ 58,567 $ 8,567
Investment income - - 401 401
Total revenues 50,000 50,000 58,968 8,968
Expenditures
CGeneral government 30,000 24,220 49,909 (25,689)
Total expenditures 30,000 24,220 49,909 (25,689)
Net Change in Fund Balance 20,000 25,780 9,059 (16,721)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 42,536 42,536 42,536 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 62,536 $ 68,316 $ 51,595 $ (16,721)
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Debt Service
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Year Ended September 30, 2018
Exhibit C-8

Variance With

Budgeted Amounts Fnal Budget
Positive
Original Fnal Actual (Negative)
Rewvenues
Taxes and penalties $ 1,450,682 $ 1,450,682 $ 1459417 $ 8,735
Investment income 9,000 9,000 27,186 18,186
Miscellaneous 1,118,653 1,118,653 1,129,913 11,260
Total revenues 2,578,335 2,578,335 2,616,516 38,181
Expenditures
Debt Service
Principal 2,588,177 2,018,177 2,018,177 -
Interest 797,526 538,191 617,818 (79,627)
Total expenditures 3,385,703 2,556,368 2,635,995 (79,627)
Other Financing Uses
Issuance of long-term debt - - 6,750,000 6,750,000
Premiumon issuance of debt - - 458,915 458,915
Payment to the refunded bond escrow agent - - (7,133,297) (7,133,297)
Transfers fromother funds 32,000 32,000 32,000 -
Transfers to other funds (82,135) (82,135) (82,135) -
Net Change in Fund Balance (857,503) (28,168) 6,004 34,172
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 1,138,463 1,138,463 1,138,463 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 280,960 $ 1,110,295 $ 1,144,467 $ 34,172
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Combining Statement of Net Position

Internal Service Funds
September 30, 2018

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Inventories

Total current assets
Capital Assets
Buildings
Vehicles
Machinery and equipment
Accumulated depreciation
Net capital assets
Total assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows - pension
Deferred outflows - OPEB
Total deferred outflows of resources
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows - pension

Total deferred outflows of resources
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted

Total net position

Employee Total Internal

Garage Benefit Trust Service Funds
38,665 $ 181,895 $ 220,560
29,169 137,219 166,388
21,176 - 21,176
89,010 319,114 408,124
159,000 - 159,000
34,130 - 34,130
40,388 - 40,388
(226,736) - (226,736)
6,782 - 6,782
95,792 319,114 414,906
27,152 - 27,152
963 - 963
28,115 - 28,115
13,930 169 14,099
3,304 - 3,304
17,234 169 17,403
15,690 - 15,690
38,951 - 38,951
11,258 - 11,258
65,899 - 65,899
83,133 169 83,302
18,823 - 18,823
18,823 - 18,823
6,782 - 6,782
15,169 318,945 334,114
21,951 $ 318,945 $ 340,896

Exhibit C-9
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position
Internal Service Funds
Year Ended September 30, 2018

Exhibit C-10

Employee Total Internal
Garage Benefit Trust Service Funds
Rewenues

Charges for services $ 370,569 $ 2,828,210 $ 3,198,779
Total revenues 370,569 2,828,210 3,198,779

Operating Expenses
Personnel services 304,144 - 304,144
Repairs and maintenance 22,397 - 22,397
Supplies and materials 28,624 - 28,624
Utilities 5,170 - 5,170
Depreciation 2,947 - 2,947
General administration 3,599 - 3,599
Premiums and other charges - 3,051,411 3,051,411
Total operating expenses 366,881 3,051,411 3,418,292
Change in Net Position 3,688 (223,201) (219,513)
Net Position, Beginning of Year, As Previously Reported 27,822 542,146 569,968
Adjustment for Adoption of GASB 75 (9,559) - (9,559)
Net Position, Beginning of Year, As Adjusted 18,263 542,146 560,409
Net Position, End of Year $ 21,951 $ 318,945 $ 340,896
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds
September 30, 2018

Exhibit C-11

Employee Total Internal
Garage Benefit Trust Service Funds
Operating Activities
Cash received from customers $ 370,569 $ 2828210 $ 3,198,779
Cash payments to employees (294,857) - (294,857)
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (35,732) (3,051,569) (3,087,301)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 39,980 (223,359) (183,379)
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (8,609) - (8,609)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (8,609) - (8,609)
Investing Activities
Sales of investments - 96,044 96,044
Purchases of investments (13,490) - (13,490)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (13,490) 96,044 82,554
Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents 17,881 (127,315) (109,434)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 20,784 309,210 329,994
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 38,665 $ 181,895 $ 220,560
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided by
(Usedin) Operating Activities
Operating income (loss) $ 3,688 $ (223,201) $ (219,513)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Depreciation 2,947 - 2,947
Changes in assets and deferred outflows
(Increase) decrease in inventories 16,854 - 16,854
(Increase) decrease in deferred pension outflows 33,214 - 33,214
(Increase) decrease in deferred OPEB outflows (740) - (740)
Changes in liabilities and deferred inflows
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 7,204 (158) 7,046
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences (1,883) - (1,883)
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability (41,603) - (41,603)
Increase (decrease) in total OPEB liability 1,476 - 1,476
Increase (decrease) in deferred pension inflows 18,823 - 18,823
Total adjustments 36,292 (158) 36,134
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 39,980 $ (223,359) $ (183,379)
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Balance Sheet
Economic Improvement Corporation
September 30, 2018

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from other governments

Total assets
Fund Balances
Restricted for capital projects
Unassigned

Total fund balance
Total liabilities and fund balance
Reconciliation of EIC Fund Balance Sheet to Discretely Presented

Component Unit Statement of Net Position
Total fund balances — EIC balance sheet

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Discretely Presented

Component Unit Statement of Net Position are Different Because

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not reported in the funds

EIC net position

Exhibit C-12

4,092,649
561,499

4,654,148

2,100,001

2,554,147
4,654,148

4,654,148

4,654,148

1,138,436

5,792,584
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance
Economic Improvement Corporation
Year Ended September 30, 2018

Exhibit C-13
Rewenues
Sales and other taxes 3,449,171
Investment income 76,844
Total revenues 3,526,015
Expenditures
General government 3,799,174
Total expenditures 3,799,174
Net Change in Fund Balance (273,159)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 4,927,307
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 4,654,148
Reconciliation of EIC Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance to Discretely Presented Component
Unit Statement of Activities
EIC change in fund balance $ (273,159)
Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Discretely Presented
Component Unit Statement Activities are not different in the current year.
EIC change in net position $ (273,159)
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Statistical Section

This part of the City of Kerrville’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as
a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures and required
supplementary information says about the City’s overall financial health. The tables herein, are
unaudited.

Table of Contents
Page
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These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City’s financial
performance and well-being have changed over time.

VA= U TSI OF= T o T o] | SR 99

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader assess the factors affecting the City’s
ability to generate its property and sales taxes.

DEDt CapaCity ..ocooeeee e 106

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City’s
current levels of outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information............c..oooooii 111

The schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the City’s financial activities take place and to help make
comparisons over time with other governments
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The schedules contain information about the City’s operations and resources to help the reader
understand how the City’s financial information relates to the services the City provides and the
activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Net Position by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

Table D-1
Fiscal Year
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Gowernmental Activities
Net investment in capital
assets $ 50,261 $ 45,568 $ 49,627 $ 57,920 $ 61,342 $ 60,765 $ 61,339 $ 64,579 $ 69,695 $ 71,382
Restricted 2,207 5712 6,251 1509 1434 1,386 1324 1,165 1139 1144
Unrestricted 2,756 7,616 10,097 15355 15,684 18,595 22,953 25,343 27,133 24,490
Total governmental
activities net position $ 55,224 $ 58,896 $ 65,975 $ 74,784 $ 78,460 $ 80,746 $ 85,616 $ 91,087 $ 97,967 $ 97,016
Business-type Activities
Net investment in capital
assets $ 39,572 $ 37,551 $ 38,078 $ 38,404 $ 38,699 $ 37,157 $ 39,106 $ 41,630 $ 37,218 $ 45,057
Restricted - - - 2,898 4,105 3,789 3451 1675 1,805 1,805
Unrestricted 4,809 10,245 8,641 4,739 5,064 8,143 7,773 6,619 11,349 5,550
Total business-type
activities net position $ 44,381 $ 47,796 $ 46,719 $ 46,041 $ 47,868 $ 49,089 $ 50,330 $ 49,924 $ 50,372 $ 52,412
Primary Government
Net investment in capital
assets $ 89,833 $ 83,119 $ 87,705 $ 96,324 $ 100,041 $ 97,922 $ 100,445 $ 106,209 $ 106,913 $ 116,439
Restricted 2,207 5712 6,251 4,407 5,539 5175 4,775 2,840 2,944 2,949
Unrestricted 7,565 17,861 18,738 20,094 20,748 26,738 30,726 31,962 38,482 30,040
Total primary government
net position $ 99,605 $ 106,692 $ 112,694 $ 120,825 $ 126,328 $ 129,835 $ 135,946 $ 141,011 $ 148,339 $ 149,428

Note: 2013 net position has been adjusted due to implementation of GASB Statements 65.
2015 net position has been adjusted due to implementation of GASB Statements 68.
2018 net position has been adjusted due to implementation of GASB Statements 75.
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Expenses, Program Revenues and Net (Expense) Revenue
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

Fiscal Year
2009 2010 2011 2012
Expenses
Governmental Activities
General government $ 4,927 $ 4594  $ 4022 3% 4,077
Public safety 12,001 11,880 12,632 11,312
Culture and recreation 3,656 2,707 3,461 3,082
Public works 4,277 3,635 3,104 3,004
Business programs 189 183 177 167
Interest on long-term debt 372 655 717 645
Total governmental
activities expenses 25,422 23,654 24,113 22,287
Business-type Activities
Water and sewer services 8,601 7,582 8,198 8,737
Kerrville-Schreiner Park 582 542 1 -
Golf course 996 990 952 1,041
Total business-type activities expenses 10,179 9,114 9,151 9,778
Total primary government expenses $ 35,601 $ 32,768 $ 33264 % 32,065
Program Revenues
Gowvernmental Activities
Charges for services
General government $ 1,599 $ 5,200 $ 2,638 $ 2,126
Public safety 2,448 2,589 2,225 1,327
Cultural and recreation 214 134 75 583
Public works 45 - 435 470
Operating grants and contributions 1,564 1,473 1,461 303
Capital grants and contributions 6,883 351 2,959 5,553
Total governmental
activities program revenues 12,753 9,747 9,793 10,362
Business-type Activities
Charges for services
Water and sewer services 8,758 8,943 10,536 10,009
Emergency medical services - - - -
Kerrville-Schreiner Park 371 344 - -
Golf course 937 784 903 1,031
Operating grants and contributions - 4 - -
Capital grants and contributions 5,935 2,723 - -
Total business-type
activities program revenues 16,001 12,798 11,439 11,040
Total primary government
programrevenues $ 28,754 $ 22,545 $ 21,232 $ 21,402
Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental activities $ (12,669) $ (13907) $ (143200 $ (11,925)
Business-type activities 5,822 3,684 2,288 1,262
Total primary government net expense $ 6847) % (10223) % (12032) $ (10,663)

Note: Kerrville-Schreiner Park is reported as a governmental activity beginning in fiscal year 2011.
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Fiscal Year
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
4,667 5,159 6272  $ 6,107 5,805 6,988
11,631 12,365 13,169 12,933 14,240 14,243
3,371 3,066 3,405 3,701 4,543 5,112
3,327 3,159 3,490 3,404 4,002 5,617
566 564 519 818 722 606
23,562 24,313 26,855 26,963 29,312 32,566
8,442 8,984 8,241 9,753 8,997 9,579
934 908 863 926 1,090 1,046
9,376 9,892 9,104 10,679 10,087 10,625
32,938 34,205 35,959 $ 37,642 39,399 43,191
1,054 100 24 $ 1 1 1
2,442 3,391 4,340 3,672 4,353 4,233
410 425 465 520 599 613
359 519 1,169 1,241 1,537 1,528
719 72 141 759 348 273
2,000 971 772 2,626 2,595 1,314
6,984 5478 6,911 8,819 9,433 7,962
11,072 11,080 11,118 11,329 11,885 11,885
877 884 784 743 864 855
508 10 - 19 1,500 1,500
12,457 11,974 11,902 12,091 14,249 14,240
19,441 17,452 18,813 $ 20,910 23,682 22,202
(16,578) (18,835) (19944) $ (18,144) (19,879) (24,604)
3,081 2,082 2,798 1412 4,162 3,615
(13,497) (16,753) (17,146) $ (16,732) (15,717) (20,989)

Table D-2
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City of Kerrville, Texas

General Revenues and Total Change in Net Position

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

(Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental activities
Business-type activities

Total primary government net expense

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position

Governmental activities
Taxes

Property taxes levied for general purposes
Property taxes levied for debt service

Sales and use taxes

Hotel occupancy taxes

Franchise taxes

Alcoholic beverage taxes
Unrestricted investment earnings
Miscellaneous income
Gain/(loss) on sale of assets
Transfers

Total governmental activities
Business-type Activities
Unrestricted investment earnings
Miscellaneous income
Gain/(loss) on sale of assets
Transfers

Total business-type activities

Total primary government
Change in Net Position
Governmental activities

Business-type activities

Total primary government

Fscal Year

2009 2010 2011 2012
$ (12,669) $ (13,907) $ (143200 $ (11,925)
5,822 3,684 2,288 1,262
(6,847) (10,223) (12,032) (10,663)
8,130 8,255 8,314 8,439
1,006 1,301 1,242 1,216
4,926 4,537 4,773 5,120
882 873 846 854
1,930 1,764 1,836 1,826
67 60 58 53
168 78 52 56
115 229 1,427 1,257
13 (19 - (235)
390 447 4,259 2,149
17,627 17,525 22,807 20,735
138 72 9 23
205 226 69 186
2 - - -
(390) (447) (4,259) (2,149)
(45) (149) (4,181) (1,940)
$ 17,582 $ 17,376 $ 18,626 $ 18,795
$ 4,958 $ 3,618 $ 8,487 $ 8,810
5,777 3,535 (1,893) (678)
$ 10,735 $ 7,153 3$ 6,594 $ 8,132
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Table D-3

FHscal Year
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

(16,578) (1883%) $ (19944) $ (18,144) $ (19879) $ (24,604)
3,081 2,082 2,798 1,412 4,162 3,615
(13,497) (16,753) (17,146) (16,732) (15,717) (20,989)
8,427 8,459 8,765 8,963 9,321 9,531
1,262 1,293 1,343 1,390 1,448 1,459
5,554 5,787 6,201 6,427 6,722 6,900
958 1,046 1,081 1,107 1,219 1,334
1,716 1,776 1,742 1,580 1,734 1,950
55 68 74 74 72 87

44 58 57 130 244 391
1,322 1,509 2,789 2,033 2,064 1,153
1,250 1,125 1,802 1,910 3,934 1,641
20,588 21,121 23,854 23,614 26,758 24,446
50 66 49 92 222 229

333 197 - - - -
(1,250) (1,125) (1,802) (1,910) (3,934) (1,641)
(867) (862) (1,753) (1,818) (3,712) (1,412)
19,721 20,259 $ 22,101 $ 21,796 $ 23,046 $ 23,034
4,010 2,286 $ 3,910 $ 5,470 $ 6,879 $ (158)
2,214 1,220 1,045 (406) 450 2,203
6,224 3,506 $ 4,955 $ 5,064 $ 7,329 $ 2,045
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

Table D-4
Fiscal Year
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

General fund

Reserved $ 2,335 $ 1,353

Unreserved 3,755 3,157

Post—GASB 54

Nonspendable $ 3B % 33 35

Restricted 1,667 2,340 2,657

Committed 715 666 580

Unassigned 3,719 5,701 6,294
Total general fund $ 6,090 $ 4,510 $ 6,136 $ 8,740 9,566
All other governmental funds

Reserved $ 1,390 $ 1,494

Unreserved, reported in

Special revenue funds 706 875
Capital projects funds 5,970 4,670
Post—GASB 54

Restricted $ 1,901 $ 9,266 8,923

Committed 5,093 762 1,638
Total all other governmental funds $ 8,066 $ 7,039 $ - $ 10,028 10,561

Fiscal Year
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

General fund

Nonspendable $ 17 8 2 % 18 % 19 12

Restricted 2,476 3,079 3,912 3,361 3,501

Committed 633 311 428 1,633 3,117

Assigned 41 42 10 -

Unassigned 5,969 6,786 7,880 8,417 8,419
Total general fund $ 9095 $ 10239 $ 12280  $ 13,440 15,049
All other governmental funds

Restricted $ 5,946 $ 11,593 $ 9,835 $ 2,640 2,901

Committed 3,289 4,040 4,450 7,232 4,986

Unassigned - (3) - - -
Total all other governmental funds $ 9,235 $ 15,630 $ 14,285 $ 9,872 7,887

Note: The City implemented GASB Statement No. 54 which amended fund balance classifications in 2011.
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

Fiscal Year
2009 2010 2011 2012
Rewvenues
Taxes and penalties $ 16,987 16,790 $ 17,026 17,558
Licenses and permits 428 346 366 328
Intergovernmental 1,243 1,289 2,364 1,535
Charges for services 1,964 1,850 2,629 2,549
Grants 409 258 484 786
Fines and forfeitures 506 507 656 467
Investment income 168 78 52 56
Miscellaneous 1,307 1,345 1,270 1,211
Total revenues 23,012 22,463 24,847 24,490
Expenditures
General government 4,576 4,304 3,704 3,716
Public safety 11,042 11,645 11,591 10,666
Culture and recreation 3,336 2,685 3,071 2,815
Public works 4,562 2,745 2,724 2,806
Business programs 189 183 177 167
Capital outlay 432 2,503 841 6,536
Debt service
Principal 456 1,119 582 725
Interest 371 653 719 619
Other charges 1 1 - 155
Total expenditures 24,965 25,838 23,409 28,205
Excess (deficiencies) of revenues
over expenditures (1,953) (3,375) 1,438 (3,715)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds fromdebt issuance 4,760 - 1,983 6,965
Bond premium/discount 18 - 151 138
Proceeds fromsale of assets 13 - - -
Payment to refunded bond
escrow agent - - (2,090) -
Transfers in 1,817 1,530 2,070 2,856
Transfers out (1,427) (1,082) (1,164) (606)
Total other financing
sources (uses) 5,181 448 950 9,353
Net change in fund balances $ 3,228 (2927) % 2,388 5,638
Debt Service as a Percentage
of Noncapital Expenditures 3.5% 7.5% 5.9% 7.4%
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Fiscal Year
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

17,981 $ 18,526 19,113 $ 19,500 20,430 21,152
359 519 551 480 549 627
1,120 1,004 1,523 1,348 3,827 2,651
2,564 2,261 3,488 3,425 4,044 4,214
719 1,005 552 781 321 259
433 355 351 549 631 612
44 58 57 130 243 391
1,405 1,479 1,838 1,923 2,338 1,453
24,625 25,207 27,473 28,136 32,383 31,359
4,360 4,534 5,656 4,367 5,186 7,080
11,138 12,001 12,678 12,303 12,651 13,100
3,163 3,155 3,383 3,476 3,837 4,545
2,992 3,007 3,162 3,017 3,373 4,161
1,519 4,497 4,939 3,645 11,969 1,929
754 779 1,393 1,736 1,833 2,018
590 565 520 818 722 618
24,516 28,538 31,731 29,362 39,571 33,451
109 (3,331) (4,258) (1,226) (7,188) (2,092)

- 284 9,746 - - 6,750

- - 249 - - 458
- - - - - (7,133)
2,523 3,582 2,897 3,349 7,170 3,444
(1,273) (2,332 (1,094) (1,428) (3,236) (1,803)
1,250 1,534 11,798 1,921 3,934 1,716
1,359 $ (1,797) 7,540 $ 695 (3,254) (376)
5.9% 5.7% 7.3% 9.9% 9.9% 8.3%

Table D-5
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Tax Revenues by Source, Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

Table D-6
Property Sales & Use Occupancy Franchise Mixed
Fiscal Years Tax Tax Tax Tax Beverage Tax Total
2009 9,097 4,926 883 2,014 67 16,987
2010 9,495 4,537 872 1,826 61 16,791
2011 9,512 4,772 846 1,826 58 17,014
2012 9,642 5,120 838 1,846 53 17,499
2013 9,698 5,554 958 1,716 54 17,980
2014 9,752 5,786 1,046 1,776 68 18,428
2015 10,108 6,201 1,081 1,742 74 19,206
2016 10,305 6,427 1,107 1,632 74 19,545
2017 10,738 6,722 1,219 1,734 72 20,484
2018 10,824 6,899 1,334 1,951 87 21,094
Percent Change
2009 - 2018 26.0% 35.4% 24.8% -14.1% -0.8% 23.7%
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

Table D-7
Assessed
Less: Tax Total Taxable Estimated Value as a
Assessed Exempt Real Assessed Total Direct Actual Taxable Percentage or
Fscal Years Value Property Value Tax Rate Value Actual Value

2009 $ 1,847,126 $ 594,562 $ 1,252,564 0.5500 $ 1,252,564 100%
2010 1,872,261 601,551 1,270,710 0.5625 1,270,710 100%
2011 1,882,517 622,484 1,260,033 0.5625 1,260,033 100%
2012 1,883,208 613,787 1,269,421 0.5625 1,269,421 100%
2013 1,898,458 618,795 1,279,663 0.5625 1,279,663 100%
2014 1,896,723 621,753 1,274,970 0.5625 1,274,970 100%
2015 2,024,552 661,361 1,363,191 0.5625 1,363,191 100%
2016 2,019,808 664,840 1,354,968 0.5625 1,354,968 100%
2017 2,079,313 673,968 1,405,346 0.5625 1,405,346 100%
2018 2,202,697 716,902 1,485,795 0.5514 1,485,795 100%

Source: Kerr Central Appraisal District
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

City of Kerrville Direct Tax Rate

Overlapping Tax Rates

Table D-8

Total Direct &

General Guadalupe Overlapping
FHscal Years Government Debt Service Total School District Kerr County River Authority Rates
2009 0.4891 0.0609 0.5500 1.1800 0.4293 0.0329 2.1922
2010 0.4851 0.0774 0.5625 1.1800 0.4443 0.0329 22197
2011 0.4890 0.0735 0.5625 1.1800 0.4443 0.0324 22192
2012 0.4890 0.0735 0.5625 1.1800 0.4443 0.0324 22192
2013 0.4890 0.0735 0.5625 1.1800 0.4443 0.0324 22192
2014 0.4890 0.0735 0.5625 1.1800 0.4443 0.0318 2.2186
2015 0.4890 0.0735 0.5625 1.1800 0.4850 0.0318 2.2593
2016 0.4890 0.0735 0.5625 1.1800 0.4850 0.0318 2.2593
2017 0.4890 0.0735 0.5625 1.1800 0.5000 0.0318 2.2743
2018 0.4779 0.0735 0.5514 1.1800 0.5000 0.0309 2.2623

Source: Kerr Central Appraisal District

Overlapping rates are those of local and county governments that apply to property owners within the City. Not all overlapping rates apply to all City property
owners (e.g., the rates for special districts apply only to the proportion of the government’s property owners whose property is located within the geographic
boundaries of the special district).
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Principal Property Tax Payers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Table D-9

2018 2009
Percentage of Percentage of
Total City Total City
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed

Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value
James Avery Craftsman $ 36,348,454 1 1.65%
Mooney International Corporation 18,018,072 2 0.82% 6,267,943 7 0.37%
Wal-Mart Stores Inc 8,561,493 3 0.39% 8,018,426 4 0.48%
Atmos Energy/M id-Tex Division 8,527,929 4 0.39%
S-H Forty-Nine Properties LLC 8,199,000 5 0.37%
CC Butt Grocery Company 7,794632 6 0.35%
Emerald Cottages of Kerrville, LLC 7,418,032 7 0.34%
1859-Historic Hotels, LTD 7,250,000 8 0.33%
Gal-Tex Hospitality 6,806,879 9 0.31%
Home Depot, USA Inc. 6,322,572 10 0.29% 8,021,774 3 0.48%
Windstream 29,923,101 1 1.78%
Sunwest M anagement Inc. 9,342,004 2 0.55%
Wal-Mart Real Estate 7,784,640 5 0.46%
Lowe's Home Centers, Inc. 6,656,554 6 0.39%
Lowe's 5734271 8 0.34%
Comanche Trace Ranch & Golf 5413566 9 0.32%
Home Depot, USA Inc. 4,567,748 10 0.26%

115,247,063 5.21% 91,730,027 5.44%
All Other 2,087,449,937 94.79% 1,593,743,973 94.56%
Total $ 2,202,697,000 100.00% $ 1,685,474,000 100.00%

Source: Kerr Central Appraisal District
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

Collected Within Year of the Levy

Table D-10

Total Collections to Date

Delinquent
Collections in
Taxes Levied for Current Percentage Subsequent Combined Percentage
Fscal Years the Fiscal Year Year Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy
2009 9,040 8,861 98.02% 5 8,866 98.08%
2010 9,398 9,275 98.69% - 9,275 98.69%
2011 9,439 9,298 98.51% 14 9,312 98.65%
2012 9,537 9,404 98.61% 22 9,426 98.84%
2013 9,679 9,417 97.29% 93 9,510 98.25%
2014 9,688 9,545 98.52% 11 9,556 98.64%
2015 10,024 9,840 98.16% 12 9,852 98.28%
2016 10,320 10,132 98.18% 45 10,177 98.61%
2017 10,653 10,491 98.48% 1 10,492 98.49%
2018 10,951 10,774 98.38% 49 10,823 98.83%

Source: Kerrville Central Appraisal District
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City of Kerrville, Texas

Taxable Sales by Category
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
Type 2009 2010 2011 2012
Accommodation/food services $ 73,976,846 $ 74,777,208 $ 75,367,568 $ 77,902,407
Admin/support/waste mgmt/remediation srvcs 12,584,798 12,487,071 20,060,075 18,874,150
Agriculture/forestry/fishing/hunting 155,040 40,197 33,643 352,751
Arts/entertainment/recreation 6,410,637 10,245,245 10,203,919 5,331,787
Construction 82,928,490 60,295,196 78,350,310 72,304,961
Educational services 22,448,430 13,677,155 27,269,909 31,052,368
Finance/insurance 636 192,706 6,275 12,973
Health care/social assistance 3,372,232 3,915,694 3,614,412 3,540,104
Information 30,481,547 24,866,344 23,979,339 23,287,473
Manufacturing 57,339,275 48,940,992 39,636,780 45,929,975
Mining/quarrying/oil and gas extraction 7,150,181 398,584 - -
Other services (except public administration) 42,876,628 44,416,436 44,651,159 45,168,666
Professional/scientific/technical services 17,559,824 14,700,029 17,100,198 17,224,688
Public administration 122,436,391 31,580,361 38,957,201 44,214,112
Real estate/rental/leasing 1,901,858 2,490,669 2,848,689 8,313,596
Retail trade 567,285,481 636,717,056 672,668,692 680,086,182
Transportation/warehousing 2,645,480 3,054,389 2,877,438 3,122,381
Wholesale trade 58,580,998 55,808,281 48,756,748 52,800,978

Total
Direct sales taxrate

Source: Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts
*** Third and fourth quarters not available

$ 1,110,134,772 $ 1,038,603,613

$ 1,106,382,355

$ 1,129,519,552

1.50% 1.50%

1.50%

1.50%
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Table D-11

Hscal Year

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 ***2018
$ 80,993,418 $ 86,829,574 $ 90,808,253 $ 99,768,744 $ 103,430,428 50,545,460
21,314,998 22,289,923 20,506,412 21,059,533 21,426,494 7,417,543
714,641 563,751 899,048 843,386 1,026,297 501,226
4,692,190 4,631,153 5,151,280 4,867,701 5,007,627 2,522,718
92,022,514 98,568,268 101,540,976 156,396,169 133,145,615 57,700,657
30,859,006 32,115,711 33,054,086 35,228,505 36,301,968 17,041,763
58,606 89,760 83,638 97,335 217,055 209,305
13,049,140 4,821,994 4,313,333 4,022,867 3,713,659 2,307,455
23,351,651 25,079,857 26,097,466 25,910,010 24,105,256 11,912,256
45,808,283 52,060,982 61,045,814 62,392,882 58,197,045 37,855,643
44,899,714 51,428,069 53,411,249 54,146,862 40,167,168 20,352,596
17,823,513 18,519,033 20,182,472 18,449,324 20,889,638 11,403,152
41,666,600 42,307,481 43,510,601 38,010,491 38,842,343 21,066,506
4,201,799 12,231,231 7,666,292 3,873,704 11,637,255 6,120,511
730,374,049 838,913,172 799,333,138 868,146,147 840,629,505 419,083,963
3,269,255 3,835,865 2,386,422 2,346,229 1,717,323 853,879
53,131,891 46,402,764 47,227,827 43,165,678 40,878,287 24,828,199
$ 1,208,231,268 $ 1,340,688,588 $ 1,317,218,307 $ 1,438,725,567 $ 1,381,332,963 691,722,832
1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50%
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

Table D-12
Governmental Activities
General Bank Loans &
Obligation Certificates of Promissory

Fiscal Years Bonds Obligation Note Capital Leases
2009 2,634 9,889 1,445 -
2010 2,623 9,424 802 26
2011 4,566 6,878 716 -
2012 4,539 13,230 631 -
2013 4,163 12,940 542 -
2014 3,933 12,757 735 -
2015 3,519 21,260 1,384 -
2016 3,092 20,261 1,034 -
2017 2,557 19,189 680 -
2018 6,443 13,702 322 -

Business-type Activities
General Percentage of
Obligation Certificates of Water & Bank Loans Total Primary Personal

Fscal Years Bonds Obligation Sewer Bonds and Notes Government Income Per Capita
2009 3,286 10,918 580 1,165 29,917 6.48% 1,308
2010 3,272 14,411 - 648 31,206 6.49% 1,396
2011 5,694 17,022 - 585 35,461 7.22% 1,587
2012 5,661 22,195 - 516 46,772 8.70% 2,086
2013 5,192 31,060 - 444 54,341 9.40% 2,364
2014 4,911 29,933 - 368 52,637 8.88% 2,234
2015 4,390 28,286 - 290 59,129 9.82% 2,484
2016 3,853 36,119 - 7,708 72,067 11.96% 2,989
2017 3,193 34,010 - 7,623 67,252 11.63% 2,768
2018 11,239 23,290 - 7,535 62,530 9.97% 2,522

Note: Premiums on bonds payable is presented starting with fiscal year 2015.
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City of Kerrville, Texas

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

Table D-13
General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Less: Amounts Percentage of
General Available In Actual Taxable
Obligation Debt Service Value of
Fiscal Years Bonds Fund Total Property Per Capita

2009 5,920 1,480 4,440 0.35% 194
2010 5,895 1,698 4,197 0.33% 188
2011 10,260 2,632 7,628 0.61% 341
2012 10,200 4,144 6,056 0.48% 270
2013 9,355 5,443 3,912 0.31% 170
2014 8,844 5,162 3,682 0.29% 156
2015 7,909 4,770 3,139 0.23% 132
2016 6,945 2,513 4,432 0.33% 184
2017 5,750 2,536 3,214 0.23% 132
2018 17,682 2,074 15,607 1.05% 629
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City of Kerrville, Texas

Direct and Overlapping

Governmental Activities Debt

Table D-14
Estimated
Share of
Estimated Direct and
Debt Percentage Overlapping
Governmental Unit Outstanding Applicable Debt
Debt Repaid with Property Taxes
Kerrville ISD $ 14,450,000 66.54% $ 9,615,030
Kerr County 26,230,000 43.51% 11,412,673
Subtotal, Owerlapping Debt 21,027,703
City of Kerrville Direct Debt 20,467,609 100% 20,467,609
Total Direct and Owerlapping Debt $ 41,495,312
Awerage Debt Per Capita $ 1,673

Sources: Municipal Advisory Council of Texas
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Total Taxable Assessed Value
Annual payment

Debt limit
Total net debt applicable to limit

Legal debt margin

Total taxable assessed value
Annual payment

Debt limit
Total net debt applicable to limit

Legal debt margin

City of Kerrville, Texas
Legal Debt Margin Information
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

Table D-15
Fiscal Year
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
$ 1,252,564 1,270,710 $ 1,260,033 1,269,421 1,279,663
8,350 8,471 8,400 8,463 8,531
125,256 127,071 126,003 126,942 127,966
2,634 4,605 4,566 4,539 2,826
122,622 122,466 121,437 122,403 125,140
Fiscal Year
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
$ 1,274,970 1,363,191 $ 1,354,968 1,405,346 1,485,795
8,500 9,088 9,033 9,369 9,905
127,497 136,319 135,497 140,535 148,580
2,826 2,826 5,783 7,470 16,538
124,671 133,493 129,714 133,065 132,042

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for the Current Fscal Year

Assessed value
Exempt real property

Debt limit (10% of assessed value)

Debt applicable to limit
General obligation bonds
Less: Amount set aside for

repayment of general
obligation debt

Total net debt applicable to limit

Legal debt margin

Note:

$ 2,202,697

(716,902)

1,485,795

148,580

17,682

1,144

16,538

S 100

The Constitution of Texas in Article 11, Section 5, limits the maximumamount that a home rule

city can taxto $2.50 per $100 of valuation.

The Attorney General of Texas has created a rule for the guidance of home rule cities which states
that bonds outstanding under this constitutional provision shall be on the basis of no greater

than $1.50 per $100 of assessed valuation.

Calculations are based on a 20-year payment termand at an annual interest rate of 4%.
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Pledged-Revenue Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

Table D-16
Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds
Less
Utility Service Operating Net Available Debt Service
Fiscal Years Charges Expenses* Revenue Principal Interest Coverage
2009 8,757 6,849 1,908 555 32 3.25
2010 8,943 5,468 3,475 580 5 5.94
2011 10,536 6,459 4,077 - - N/A
2012 10,009 5,843 4,166 - - N/A
2013 11,072 5,311 5,761 - - N/A
2014 11,080 5,512 5,568 - - N/A
2015 10,904 5,204 5,700 - - N/A
2016 11,157 6,277 4,880 - - N/A
2017 11,656 5,753 5,903 - - N/A
2018 11,743 5,987 5,756 - - N/A

* Total operating expense excluding depreciation
Note: Referto Table D-12 for total business-type debt
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Population
Personal income (000s)
Per capita personal income
Median age
Education level in years of schooling
Percentage with high school
diploma or greater

School enrollment

Unemployment rate

Population
Personal income (000s)
Per capita personal income
Median age
Education level in years of schooling
Percentage with high school
diploma or greater

School enrollment

Unemployment rate

City of Kerrville, Texas

Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table D-17
Fscal Year
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
22,927 22,347 22,347 22,347 22,983
$ 462,965 481,160 $ 490,848 492,940 578,275
$ 20,193 20,193 $ 24,871 23,965 25,161
45.0 45.3 445 46.0 457
81.2% 81.2% 85.1% 85.6% 87.5%
5,976 6,177 5,200 4,923 5,031
5.6% 6.1% 6.3% 6.9% 5.6%
Fiscal Year
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
23,558 23,808 24,111 24,292 24,796
$ 592,968 602,414 $ 602,699 578,394 627,501
$ 25171 25,303 $ 24,997 23,810 25,307
45.7 46.5 46.0 46.5 47.3
85.1% 85.4% 88.6% 85.7% 86.1%
5,038 5,029 5,018 5,004 4,951
48% 3.8% 3.9% 3.2% 3.3%

Sources: US Census, Texas Workforce Commission, Kerrville Independent School District, Kerr Economic Development Corporation
and City of Kerrville estimates.
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Principal Employers — Kerr County
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Table D-18

2018 2009
Percentage of Percentage of
Total City Total City
Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment

Peterson Health 983 1 4.72% 851 1 3.85%

Kerrville ISD 700 2 3.36% 741 2 3.35%

Kerrville State Hospital 538 3 2.59% 53 3 2.42%

James Avery Craftsman 472 4 2.27% 460 6 2.08%

H.E.B. Food & Drug Stores 430 5 2.07% 400 7 1.81%

VA Hospital 400 6 1.92% 365 4 1.65%

Walmart a7 7 1.67% 332 5 1.50%

City of Kerrville 317 8 1.52% 304 8 1.37%

Kerr County 308 9 1.48% 29 9 1.35%
HEB Foundation 200 10 0.96%

Sava Senior Center 281 10 1.27%

4,695 22.56% 4,568 20.65%

All others 16,115 77.44% 21,766 79.35%

Total employed 20,810 100.00% 26,334 100.00%

Source: Kerr Economic Development Corporation
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City of Kerrville, Texas
Budgeted Full-time Equivalent Employees by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
2009 2010 2011 2012
General Fund
City secretary 2 2 2 2
City attorney 1 1 2 2
City administration 3 4 4 4
Human resources 4 4 4 4
Finance 6 7 6 5
Information technology 3 4 4 5
Purchasing 1 1 - -
Municipal court 5 5 4 5
Kerrville-Schreiner Park 8 8 6 6
Police 71 72 71 71
Fire 53 53 49 49
Fire marshal 2 2 1 2
Emergency Medical Services 21 24 27 27
Solid waste 5 5 5 5
Planning 3 3 3 2
Building services 5 5 5 5
Code compliance 4 4 3 2
Environment health 2 - -
Business programs 2 2 2 2
Parks and recreation 2 - - -
Aquatics 1 1 1 -
Parks maintenance 16 16 14 12
Recreation 4 4 2 1
Sports Complex - - - -
Engineering 8 16 21 21
Streets 8 - - -
Library 11 11 10 10
Total general fund 251 254 246 242
Water and Sewer Fund
Utility Billing 7 7 8 8
Utility administration 4 4 4 4
Water production 10 11 11 11
Utility construction 9 9 9 9
Water reclamation 13 14 14 14
Utility information system 3 1
Utility laboratory 4 4 4 4
Total water and sewer fund 50 50 50 50
Golf Course Fund
Golf course maintenance 8 8 8 8
Pro shop 3 3 6 3
Total golf course fund 11 11 14 11
Garage 4 4 4 4
Grand total 316 319 314 307

Source: City Budget Book
Note: Kerrville-Schreiner Park was moved to general fund in fiscal year 2011.
Solid Waste was moved to general fund in fiscal year 2015.
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Table D-19

Hscal Year

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

72
49

71

71

70

48

68

71
49

49

49

49

26

27

27

28

27

27

20

19

19

18

13

12

21

18

18

18

18

16
11

10

254

250

245

245

238

242

13

12

11

11

11

11

15

15

14

14

14

17

48

48

49

49

52

53

10

10

10

10

11

11

317

312

308

308

305

310

114



City of Kerrville, Texas
Operating Indicators by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table D-20
Fiscal Year
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Function/Program

Police

Calls for service 24,886 15,277 15,308 15,937 16,126 14,820 16,220 17,040 17,164 14,534

Avg. response time per call (minutes) 46 46 8.0 8.0 9.0 6.2 83 74 6.2 6.5

Clearance rate 48% 57% 67% 62% 54% 55% 54% 58% 52% 58%
Fire

Number of calls answered 7,701 7,823 7,986 7,989 8,118 7,669 8,629 8,914 9,712 9,369

Reports processed 8,007 7,837 7,986 7,989 8,118 7,669 8,629 8,914 9,712 9,369

Inspections 428 326 471 568 458 393 429 491 593 802
Highway and Streets

Street maintenance — man hours 18,930 7,192 1,391 2,000 1,749 6,224 4,161 4,128 4,789 6,785

Pothole repairs 1,450 1,549 1,459 1,800 1,323 2,109 2,273 2,250 2,208 1,234

Traffic control (signs) — man hours 1,900 2,022 1,625 1,722 1,804 1,722 1,777 2,185 2,110 2,111
Solid Waste

Annual tonnages at landfill 55,840 51,484 7,939 8,000 7,500 8,279 8,242 9,259 8,932 9,839

Annual tonnages at transfer station* - - 46,086 46,767 48,402 50,175 55,528 66,162 72,773 68,460

Annual tonnages - recycling program* 2,376 2,353 1,908 1,700 1,200 1,383 669 1,508 1,595 1,643
Culture and Recreation

Park maintenance — man hours 27,391 25,175 19,148 20,785 17,675 25,033 27,622 29,450 29,198 33,781

Golf course - rounds of golf played 36,643 32,464 33,270 36,262 32,509 29,489 27111 26,252 25,979 23,468

Swimming pool attendance 13,461 10,753 9,071 7,613 9,719 15,290 17,118 10,158 13,024 13,867
Kerrville-Schreiner Park

Entrance permits processed 6,396 5674 4,183 5,407 7,263 12,507 13,369 14,333 15,749 16,783

Reservations processed 4,254 3,087 3,628 3,340 3421 11,954 13,482 12,892 13,772 14,515
Water

Water meters read 114,654 114,916 115,295 115,777 116,563 117,459 119,126 120,053 120,836 121,081

Work orders processed 12,011 11,477 10,281 10,221 10,672 10,737 10,748 11,191 12,013 11,256

Water main breaks 58 118 71 53 42 21 28 19 - -

Water main break calls** - - - - - - - - 100 62

Total water consumption

(thousands of gallons) 1,288,848 1,096,605 1,368,522 1,289,982 1,302,333 1,243,039 1,072,229 1,206,145 1,347,170 1,281,620

Cost per thousand gallons $ 116 $ 125 $ 103 $ 110 $ 107 $ 122 $ 155 $ 130 $ 124 $ 153
Wastewater

Average daily sewage treatment

(thousands of gallons) 2,287 2,400 2,016 2,148 2,199 2,132 2,044 2,484 2,054 2,010

* Transfer station began operation in 2011. Revised recycling programbegan in 2015.
** |n 2017, the metric was changed to show how many calls for main breaks the public works department resolved.
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Function/Program
Public Safety
Police stations
Fire stations
Highway and Streets
Streets (lane miles)
Area in square miles
Culture and Recreation
Parks acreage
Swimming pools
Picnic areas and playgrounds
Municipal auditoriums
Golf course
Tennis center
Water
Water main (miles)
Average daily consumption
(millions of gallons)
Sewer
Sanitary sewers (miles)
Storm sewers (miles)
Maximum treatment capacity
(millions of gallons)

Sources: Various city departments

City of Kerrville, Texas
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table D-21
Fiscal Year
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
282 282 282 282 282 282 282 282 282 282
211 211 211 211 211 21.27 218 22.2 222 224

937 937 937 937 937 937 937 937 1,041 1,041
2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
21 21 22 23 23 23 23 23 23 23
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
234 234 238 241 246 249 253 253 255 257
3.45 2.73 3.24 3.82 3.88 3.166 3.67 2.85 3.01 3.86
195 194 202 194 214 209 227 227 227 227
7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 8
45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45
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CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

FY2018 AUDIT PRESENTATION

PRESENTED BY: KEVIN KEMP, CPA, PARTNER BKD

CPAs & Advisors



CPAs & Advisors



AUDIT RESULTS — UNMODIFIED “CLEAN" OPINIONS

» Independent Auditor’s Report on Basic Financial
Statements

» Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards




AUDIT SCOPE AND RESULTS

» Significant Accounting Policies
m The City’s significant accounting policies are
described in Note 1 of the audited financial
statements.
» Management Judgments and Accounting
Estimates
m Net pension liability
m Other postemployment benefits liability
m Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable
m Landfill post-closure care liabilities
m Depreciation

» All audit adjustments made were outsourced to
BKD
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CAFR OVERVIEW

» Introductory Section (Unaudited)

B Letter of Transmittal

m Certificate of Achievement in Financial Reporting
» Financial Section

m Independent Auditor’s Report

B Management’s Discussion and Analysis

B Basic Financial Statements
I Government-Wide Financial Statements
i Fund Financial Statements

® Notes to Basic Financial Statements
B Required Supplementary Information
m Combining Fund Statement and Schedules

» Statistical Section (Unaudited)




REPORTING ENTITY

Audited by BKD

» City of Kerrville

» Discretely Presented
Component Unit

B Economic Improvement
Corporation

Audited by Other Auditors

» Joint Venture

m Kerrville-Kerr County
Airport Board

» Discretely Presented
Component Unit

m Kerrville Public Utility
Board




GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES — REVENUES

Other Taxes, 53,372,
11% '

Investment and Misc
~__Income, $1,544,5%

__Charges for Services,

56,375,21%
Salesand Use Taxes,
56,899, 22%
: Grants and
~ Contributions,
$1,587,5%

Property Taxes, $10,990,36%




GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES — PROGRAM
EXPENSES BY FUNCTION

Public Safety, $14,243,44%

Cultural and Recreation,
$5,112,16%

~——__ Public Works, $5,617,17%

Genera | Governmen t, $6988
,21%

" Intereston Long-Term Debt,
$606,2%




BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES — CHARGES FOR
SERVICES

(IN THOUSANDS)

Golf Course, 5855, 7%

Water and Sewer, 511,885,
o 93%




BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES — PROGRAM
EXPENSES BY FUNCTION

Golf Course 51,046 (IN THOUSANDS)
10%

Water and Sewer $9,579
90%




PRIMARY GOVERNMENT DEBT PER CAPITA

FY18
FY17
FY16

Fiscal Year

Total Primary
Total Primary Government Debt per
Government Debt Population Capita
S 62,530,490 24,796 S 2,522
S 67,252,650 24,292 § 2,769
5 72,061,269 24,111 S 2,989

80000000

70000000

60000000

50000000

40000000

30000000

20000000

10000000

0

M Fiscal Year EFY18 mFY17 HFY16



GENERAL FUND — FUND BALANCE

Unassigned Fund Balance General Fund

» Ending unassigned fund
$8,500 balance for the General

$8,400 Fund was $8.4M

R » Total fund balance

z:izz increased $1.6 million or
000 12.0% from FY2017

$7,900 » Unassigned fund balance
57,800 l Is 30.9% of budgeted

$7,700 FY2018 General Fund
FY2016 FY2017  FY2018 expenditures, including
PEEE SBan s transfers out

*In thousands

57,600
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WATER & SEWER FUND — NET POSITION

Unrestricted Net Position Water & Sewer Fund

*In thousands

58,000

57,000

56,000

$5,000

54,000

53,000

52,000

51,000

5-

FY2016

Seriesl 57,722

» Ending unrestricted fund
balance for the Water &
Sewer Fund was $5.6M

» 549% of FY2018 Water
and Sewer Fund
expenses, including
transfers out

» Total net position of $51.3
million; $2.0 million
Increase from prior year

FY2017 FY2018
56,669 55,649

CPAs & Advisors



PENSION - TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT
SYSTEM — PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

FY2016 FY2017 FY2018

Net Pension Liability $6.95M  $8.1M  $3.9M
Plan fiduciary net position as a
% of the total pension lability 902% 89.3%  95.1%

Sensitivity of NPL FY 2018

Current
1% Decrease Assumpfion 1% Increase
(5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)

$14 8M $3 9M $(5.0)M
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ACCOUNTING UPDATES - GASB STATEMENT
87, LEASES

Summary Potential Impact

» GASB 87 provides a new » Lessees will recognize an
framework for accounting Intangible asset and a
for leases under the corresponding liability.
principle that leases are » Lessors will recognize a lease
financings. receivable and related deferred

»w No lonaer will leases be Inflow of resources. Lessors
J will not derecognize the

classified between capital underlying asset.

and operating. » Contracts that contain lease

» GASB 87 Is effective for the and nonlease components will
City’s 2021 fiscal year. need to be separated so each
Earlier application is component is accounted for
encouraged. accordingly.

CPAs & Advisors




ACCOUNTING UPDATES - GASB PROPOSES
CHANGES TO CAPITALIZED INTEREST
REQUIREMENTS

Current Standards Proposed Changes
» Governments currently » Recognition all interest cost as
are required to capitalize an expense or expenditure in

the period incurred.

» Proposed effective date is for
periods beginning after

Interest cost incurred
during the period of

construction in business- December 15, 2018 (City FY
type activities and 2020). No requirement to
enterprise funds. revalue assets to which

interest was capitalized in the
» Governments are not P

o past.
.allowed to Ca_pltallze » GASB expects to issue a final
Interest costin standard in the summer of
governmental activities. 2018.

CPAs & Advisors



QUESTIONS?



Kevin Kemp, CPA // Partner
kkemp@bkd.com // 972.702.8262

THANK YOU!




TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

SUBJECT: Chapter 380 Economic Development Agreement between the City of
Kerrville, Texas, and D&V Development, LLC., for the development of a
Marriott Springhill Suites in the downtown area located near Water Street
and Spring Street.

AGENDA DATE OF: February 26,2019 DATE SUBMITTED: Feb 17,2019

SUBMITTED BY: EA Hoppe

EXHIBITS: 20190226 _Agreement_DV Development LLC_022219 Draft.pdf
20190226 _Consideration_Marriott-Spring Hill Suites Incentives Comparison Chart.pdf

Expenditure Remaining Budget Amount Budgeted: Account Number:
Required: Balance in

Account:
$150,000 N/A N/A N/A

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO: D&V Development, Inc.

Kerrville 2050 Item? Yes
Key Priority Area E - Economic Development

Guiding Principle E3. Continue to focus on quality of life attributes and
enhancements as a high priority, balancing growth with community
and individual well-being and the need to preserve a
healthy/beautiful environment unique to Kerrville

Action Item E3.4 - Incentivize the redevelopment of underutilized riverside
properties
SUMMARY STATEMENT:

This Springhill Suites by Marriott project is located on Water Street at Spring Street and
represents an 84-room, $11-12 million construction investment in Kerrville’s downtown
area. The project has the potential to help catalyze downtown by increasing consumer
traffic and tourism downtown, as well as increase the property, sales, and hotel occupancy
tax base.

The developer for the project, D&V Development, LLC., has asked for development
incentives in the form of a Chapter 380 Agreement to rebate hotel occupancy tax (HOT)


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/314177/20190226_Agreement_DV_Development_LLC_022219_Draft.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/313356/20190226_Consideration_Marriott-Spring_Hill_Suites_Incentives_Comparison_Chart.pdf

generated specifically from the project in the amount of $150,000. This funding would be
provided on a reimbursement basis to assist with the construction of an onsite overlook of
the Guadalupe River, adding a feature to the property that is in alignment with Kerrville
2050 (Downtown investment and Engagement with the River).

A summary of the Agreement is as follows:
Developer will:

. Design, engineer, and construct an 80+ room Marriott Springhill Suites located on
currently vacant property located in Downtown area.

. Construct an “overlook” amenity to the Guadalupe River that will be accessible to
both hotel patrons and the public, as generally described in the submitted design
elements.

City will:

. Provide $150,000 in Hotel Occupancy Tax (HOT) funding via a Chapter 380
Development Agreement.

. Funding will be provided in one lump-sum reimbursement after $150,000 in HOT
has been collected specifically from this hotel location.

. Maximum term for collection of the $150,000 will be 5 years from the opening of the
facility (100% of what they generate on this project, up to 5 years or $150,000, whichever
occurs first).

A comparison of two different economic development tools (Tax Increment Reinvestment
Zone funding versus Hotel Occupancy Tax Funding) has been included as reference
material, per Council deliberation and direction provided at the February 12, 2019 City
Council meeting.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Authorize the City Manager to finalize and execute the agreement.
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CHAPTER 380 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS, AND
D&V DEVELOPMENT, LLC

This Chapter 380 Economic Development Agreement (“Agreement”) is made
and entered into as of February __, 2019 (the “Effective Date”), by and between the
City of Kerrville, a Texas home-rule municipal corporation (“City”), and D&V
Development, LLC, a Texas limited liability company (“Developer”) (City and
Developer each being a “Party,” and collectively “the Parties”) for the purposes and
considerations stated below.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Government Code permits a city
to make loans or grants of public funds for the purpose of promoting economic
development and stimulating business and commercial activity within a city; and

WHEREAS, City desires to encourage the development of a high quality hotel
within its downtown area in order to expand the ad valorem and sales tax base, create
jobs, and provide needed services for the citizens of Kerrville and the surrounding
area; and

WHEREAS, Developer proposes to build a new hotel on an approximately
2.543 acre parcel of land more particularly described on the attached Exhibit A (the
“Property”); and

WHEREAS, in accordance with City’s Chapter 380 Economic Development
Program, as adopted by City Council pursuant to Resolution No. 18-2014, Developer
applied for a grant from the City of Kerrville, Texas, in the form of a rebate from
Developer’s payment of hotel occupancy tax revenue for up to a five year period; and

WHEREAS, City is authorized by the provisions of Article I1I, Section 52-a of
the Texas Constitution and Section 380.001 of the Texas Local Government Code to
provide grants of public money to promote local economic development and to
stimulate business and commercial activity within City’s corporate limits; and

WHEREAS, City desires to incentivize Developer to build or cause to be built
the hotel and associated improvements by granting hotel occupancy tax revenue to
Developer under certain conditions and with certain performance requirements
further described herein; and

Chapter 380 Economic Development Grant Agreement
Between City of Kerrville and D&V Development, LLC Page 1 0f 10
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WHEREAS, the hotel and related improvements will work toward achieving
the goals and vision set forth by the community through the Kerrville 2050,
specifically as such relate to engaging the Guadalupe River; and

WHEREAS, City has previously established a Chapter 380 economic
development program (the “Program”) to encourage economic development within
City’s corporate limit and finds and determines that this Agreement will effectuate
the purposes of the Program and that Developer’s performance of its obligations
herein will provide local economic development and stimulate business and
commercial activity within the City and is consistent with the General Statement of
Purpose and Policy as stated within the Program; and,;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual
agreements, covenants, and payments herein and other valuable consideration, the
receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1
Recitals/Definitions

1.01 Recitals. The recitals to this Agreement are incorporated herein for all
purposes.

1.02 Definitions. As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the
meanings indicated:

The terms “Agreement”, “City”, “Developer”, “Effective Date”, “Grant”, “Parties”,
“Party”, “Program”, “Property”, and “Term” shall have the meanings provided herein.

“Certificate of Occupancy” means the document issued by the City certifying a
building’s compliance with applicable building codes and other laws, and indicating
1t to be in a condition suitable for occupation.

“Commencement of Construction” means that: (1) the construction plans for the
Improvements have been prepared and all approvals thereof required by applicable
governmental authorities have been obtained; (i1) all necessary permits permitting
construction of the Improvements have been issued by all applicable governmental
authorities; and (i11) mobilization and grading or excavation of the Property has
begun.

“Completion of Construction” means that the City has issued the Certificate of
Occupancy for the Hotel.

Chapter 380 Economic Development Grant Agreement
Between City of Kerrville and D&V Development, LLC Page 2 of 10
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“Event of Bankruptcy or Insolvency” means the dissolution or termination of a Party’s
existence as a going business, insolvency, appointment of receiver for any part of such
Party’s property and such appointment is not terminated within ninety (90) days
after such appointment is initially made, any general assignment for the benefit of
creditors, or the commencement of any proceeding under any bankruptcy or
insolvency laws by or against such Party and such proceeding is not dismissed within
ninety (90) days after the filing thereof.

“Force Majeure” means any contingency or cause beyond the reasonable control of a
Party including, without limitation, acts of God or the public enemy, war, riot, civil
commotion, insurrection, government or de facto governmental action (unless caused
by the intentionally wrongful acts or omissions of the Party), fires, explosions, floods,
strikes, slowdowns or work stoppages.

“Hotel” means the hotel to be built on the Property by Developer and franchised by
Marriott as a Marriot Springhill Suites, to consist of at least eighty (80) rooms.

“HOT Revenue” means the amount collected by the City as a result of the hotel
occupancy taxes imposed by the City on the Hotel pursuant to Chapter 351 of the
Texas Tax Code, as amended.

“Impositions” means all taxes, assessments, use and occupancy taxes, charges,
excises, license and permit fees, and other charges by public or governmental
authority, general and special, ordinary and extraordinary, foreseen and unforeseen,
which are or may be assessed, charged, levied, or imposed by any public or
governmental authority on the Developer or any property or any business owned by
the Developer within the City.

“Improvements” means the Hotel and the infrastructure, driveways, parking,
landscaping, and other improvements reasonably required to be constructed on the
Property, to include convention center facilities (i.e., meeting space); and an outdoor
patio-type area at back of the Property, with the intent of overlooking the river and
accessible by both hotel guests and the public, which is further specified and depicted
on the attached Exhibit B.

“Opening Date” means the date after which a Certificate of Occupancy has been
received by Developer for the Hotel and the Hotel is fully functional and open to
accommodate hotel patrons and guests.

Chapter 380 Economic Development Grant Agreement
Between City of Kerrville and D&V Development, LLC Page 3 of 10
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“Qualified Expenditure” means an expenditure which (i) promotes tourism and the
convention and hotel industry, and (i1) is authorized by Section 351.101 of the Texas
Tax Code, as amended.

ARTICLE 2

Term

The term of this Agreement (“Term”) will commence on the Effective Date and will
continue until the City has fulfilled the payment obligations under Article 4, if
applicable, unless sooner terminated as provided herein.

ARTICLE 3
Developer Obligations

3.01 Construction of Improvements. Developer shall design, engineer, and
construct, or cause to be designed, engineered, and constructed, the Improvements.
Developer must (1) receive all necessary permits permitting construction of the
Improvements from all applicable governmental authorities no later than October 1,
2020; (@11) subject to the events of Force Majeure, cause Commencement of
Construction of the Improvements to occur on or before January 1, 2021; and (ii1)
subject to events of Force Majeure, achieve Completion of Construction on or before
December 31, 2021.

3.02 Compliance with Laws. Developer agrees to construct the Improvements in
accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, codes, and regulations.

3.03 Impositions. Developer shall make timely payment of all Impositions during
the Term of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 4
City Obligations

Subject to Developer’s performance of its obligations as required by this
Agreement, and subject to the provisions of this section, Developer is entitled to be
reimbursed for Qualified Expenditures in accordance with this section. City shall
pay Developer a one-time grant in the amount equal to one hundred percent (100%)
of the HOT Revenue charged, collected, and remitted to City for the period beginning
on the Opening Date and continuing thereafter for five (5) years or, until HOT
Revenue reaches One Hundred Fifty Thousand and No Dollars ($150,000.00) (the
“Grant”). In any case, the Grant will not exceed One Hundred Fifty Thousand and
No Dollars ($150,000.00) and will be paid at the conclusion of the five-year period or
when the maximum amount of the Grant is reached. The City will pay Developer on

Chapter 380 Economic Development Grant Agreement
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or before thirty (30) days following the date that City receives sufficient
documentation from Developer that it has made Qualified Expenditures up to One
Hundred Fifty Thousand and No Dollars ($150,000.00), in a form acceptable to the
City Manager. City is not obligated to reimburse Developer for an expenditure that,
in the City Manager’s sole discretion, is not a Qualified Expenditure. In no event will
any payment under this section exceed the time period specified herein. City is
obligated to make the payments under this section from the HOT Revenue collected
from the Hotel and City is not obligated to make such payments from any other funds
or revenues of City.

ARTICLE 5
Termination

This Agreement may be terminated upon any one or more of the following:

(a) Immediately upon written notice by City, if Developer fails to meet any of
1ts obligations under Section 3.01.

(b) Immediately upon written notice by City, if Developer suffers an Event of
Bankruptcy or Insolvency.

(¢) Immediately upon written notice by City, if any Impositions owed by
Developer become delinquent provided, however, the Developer retains the
right to timely and properly protest and contest any such Imposition.

(d) Upon written notice by any Party, if the other Party defaults or breaches
any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement other than Section 3.01 and
such default or breach is not cured within thirty (30) days after written notice
thereof.

ARTICLE 6
Miscellaneous

6.01 Binding Agreement. The terms and conditions of this Agreement are binding
upon the successors and assigns of the Parties. This Agreement may not be assigned
Developer without the express written consent of the other Parties.

6.02 Limitation on Liability. Itis understood and agreed between the Parties that
Developer, in satisfying the conditions of this Agreement, is deemed to have acted
independently, and City assumes no responsibilities or liabilities to third parties in
connection with these actions. DEVELOPER SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD

Chapter 380 Economic Development Grant Agreement
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HARMLESS CITY FROM ALL SUCH CLAIMS, SUITS, AND CAUSES OF
ACTIONS, LIABILITIES, AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING REASONABLE
ATTORNEY’S FEES, OF ANY NATURE WHATSOEVER BY A THIRD PARTY
ARISING OUT OF DEVELOPER’S PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT.

6.03 No Joint Venture. It is acknowledged and agreed by the Parties that the terms
hereof are not intended to and shall not be deemed to create a partnership or joint
venture among the Parties.

6.04 Authorization. Each Party represents that it has full capacity and authority
to grant all rights and assume all obligations that are granted and assumed under
this Agreement.

6.05 Notice. Any notice required or permitted to be delivered hereunder is deemed
received three (3) days thereafter if sent by United States Mail, postage prepaid,
certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the Party at the address set
forth below or on the day actually received if sent by courier or otherwise hand
delivered.

If intended for City, to: Attn: City Manager
City of Kerrville, TX
City Hall, 701 Main Street
Kerrville, Texas 78028

If intended for Developer, to:  Attn:
D&V Development, LLC
5325 Katy Freeway, Suite 1
Houston, Texas 77007-2287

6.06 Entire Agreement. This Agreement is the entire Agreement between the
Parties with respect to the subject matter covered in this Agreement. There is no
other collateral oral or written Agreement between the Parties that in any manner
relates to the subject matter of this Agreement, except as provided in any exhibits
attached hereto.

6.07 Governing Law. The Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of
Texas, and exclusive venue for any action concerning this Agreement shall be in a
State District Court in Kerr County, Texas.

6.08 Amendment. This Agreement may only be amended by the mutual written
agreement of the Parties.

Chapter 380 Economic Development Grant Agreement
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6.09 Legal Construction. In the event any one or more of the provisions contained
in this Agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable
In any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect other
provisions, and it is the intention of the Parties to this Agreement that in lieu of each
provision that is found to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, a provision shall be
added to this Agreement which is legal, valid, and enforceable and is as similar in
terms as possible to the provision found to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable.

6.10 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts. Each of the
counterparts shall be deemed an original instrument, but all of the counterparts shall
constitute one and the same instrument.

6.11 Exhibit(s). Any exhibit(s) to this Agreement is incorporated herein by reference
for all purposes wherever reference is made to the same.

6.12 Survival of Covenants. Any of the representations, warranties, covenants,
and obligations of the Parties, as well as any rights and benefits of the Parties,
pertaining to a period of time following the termination of this Agreement shall
survive termination.

6.13 Limitation of Damages. The Parties agree that no Party will be liable to the
other under this Agreement for consequential damages (including lost profits) or
exemplary damages.

6.14 Legislative or Judicial Changes. In the event of any legislative or judicial
interpretation that limits or restricts City’s authority to pay the Grant or otherwise
extracts or imposes any penalty or other restriction upon the payment of same, the
obligation of City to make the Grant will immediately cease as of the effective date of
such limitation or restriction and be of no further force, effect, or consequence in
which event City shall be under no further obligation to Developer as of the effective
date of such limitation or restriction.

6.15 Right of Offset. City may at its option, offset any amounts due and payable
under this Agreement against any debt (including taxes) lawfully due and owing to
City from Developer, regardless of whether the amount due arises pursuant to the
terms of this Agreement or otherwise, and regardless of whether or not the debt has
been reduced to judgment by a court.

6.16 Recording. The Parties agree that City may record this Agreement in the Real
Property Records of Kerr County, Texas.

Chapter 380 Economic Development Grant Agreement
Between City of Kerrville and D&V Development, LLC Page 7 of 10
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6.17. Undocumented Workers. During the term of this Agreement, Developer
agrees not to knowingly employ any undocumented workers and if convicted of a
violation under 8 U.S.C. Section 1324a (f), Developer shall repay the amount of the
Grant and any other funds received by Developer from City as of the date of such
violation within one hundred twenty (120) days after the date Developer is notified
by City of such violation, plus interest at the rate of four percent (4%) compounded
annually from the date of violation until paid. Developer is not liable for a violation
of this section by a subsidiary, affiliate, or franchisee of Developer or by a person with
whom Developer contracts.

CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS D&V DEVELOPMENT, LLC

Mark L. McDaniel, City Manager ,

ATTEST:

Shelley McElhannon, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Michael C. Hayes, City Attorney

T:\Legal\Economic Development\380\Spring St Hote\D&V DEVELOPMENT, LLC_022219 DRAFT.docx

Chapter 380 Economic Development Grant Agreement
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EXHIBIT A
The Property

EXHIBIT A Pending Agreement Finalization

Chapter 380 Economic Development Grant Agreement
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EXHIBIT B

Overlook

Chapter 380 Economic Development Grant Agreement
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HOT Rebate vs. TIRZ Comparison
Springhill Suites by Marriott
Proposed Opening February 2020

Payment Date HOT Rebate TIRZ
January 2021 150,000

June 2022 44,112
June 2023 44,112
June 2024 44,112
June 2025 17,664
TOTAL 150,000 150,000

Assumptions:

1. Room revenue of $2,663,269 annually.
Assuming an even spread between months,
$150,000 in HOT tax would be paid in 10 months
and remitted to the City by December 2020.
Rebate would be paid in January 2021.

2. Assumed valuation of $8 million and a property
tax rate of $0.5514.

3. Valuation set January 1, 2021
Taxes on that valuation due January 31, 2022
Transfer to TIRZ in May 2022
First rebate payment in June 2022



TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

SUBJECT: Information regarding the Kerrville Homeless Population.

AGENDA DATE OF: February 26,2019 DATE SUBMITTED: Feb 19,2019

SUBMITTED BY: Shelley McElhannon

EXHIBITS:
Expenditure Remaining Budget Amount Budgeted: Account Number:
Required: Balance in
Account:
$0 $0 $0 N/A

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO: N/A

Kerrville 2050 ltem? No

Key Priority Area N/A
Guiding Principle N/A
Action ltem N/A

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

Councilmember Sigerman will provide a collection of data over three months, and insight
from community leaders who interact with Kerrville's homeless population.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Information and discussion only.




TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

SUBJECT: Selective Enforcement of Codes and Ordinances.

AGENDA DATE OF: February 26,2019 DATE SUBMITTED: Feb 19,2019

SUBMITTED BY: Shelley McElhannon

EXHIBITS:
Expenditure Remaining Budget Amount Budgeted: Account Number:
Required: Balance in
Account:
$0 $0 $0 N/A

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO: N/A

Kerrville 2050 ltem? No

Key Priority Area N/A
Guiding Principle N/A
Action ltem N/A

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

Councilmember Voelkel desires to discuss concerns about possible inconsistent
enforcement of existing codes and ordinances.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Information and discussion only.




TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

SUBJECT: Financial update for the month ended January 31, 2019.

AGENDA DATE OF: February 26,2019 DATE SUBMITTED: Feb 19,2019

SUBMITTED BY: Amy Dozier

EXHIBITS: 20190226 Presentation_January 2019 financial summary v2.pdf
20190226 Presentation_January 2019 financial presentation v2.pdf

Expenditure Remaining Budget Amount Budgeted: Account Number:
Required: Balance in

Account:
$0 $0 $0 N/A

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO: N/A

Kerrville 2050 Item? No

Key Priority Area N/A
Guiding Principle N/A
Action Iltem N/A

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

General Fund

Year to date through January 31, 2019, the General Fund has recorded revenue of $11.9
million compared to expense of $8.8 million. ltems to note for January include:

1. Property tax collections are lower than FY2018 and budget due to a timing
difference in FY2019 compared to previous years. As of February 15, 2019, year to date
property tax collections are ahead of FY2018. The overall property tax collection rate has
been very stable for many years, so this appears to be a timing issue only.

2. January 2019 sales tax decreased by 0.8% compared to January 2018. December
2018 sales tax included a prepayment by a large retailer and a prior period payment from
a utility. After adjusting for the one-time activity, sales tax is up 5.1%, led by increases in
manufacturing, food service and retail.


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/314146/20190226_Presentation_January_2019_financial_summary_v2.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/314147/20190226_Presentation__January_2019_financial_presentation_v2.pdf

Water Fund

Year to date through January 31, 2019, the Water Fund received revenues of $3.6 million
compared to expenditures of $4.0 million. Notable activity includes:

1. Water and reuse sales are lower than budget and FY2018 due to record rainfall
amounts in October 2018. Water sales are very volatile and highly weather dependent, so
it is possible that dry conditions later in the year could offset extremely wet conditions this
fall. However, we are proactively monitoring expenditures in order to offset some of the lost
revenue.

2. Water Fund Other Revenue is lower in FY2019 because FY2018 includes a
one-time $415 thousand transfer related to the December 2017 debt refinancing.

3. Water expenditures are lower than FY2018 because $272 thousand was
transferred to the Capital Projects Fund for the Legion Lift Station project in October 2017.
This transfer did not recur in FY2019. In addition, expenditures are better than budget due
to lower than anticipated chemical and maintenance costs.

Development Services Fund

Year to date through January 31, 2019, the Development Services Fund received
revenues of $381 thousand compared to expenditures of $641 thousand. Revenue
includes transfers in from the General Fund and Water Fund of $236 thousand and permit
and fee revenue of $145 thousand. FY2019 expenditures include a transfer of $379
thousand to a projects fund for the code rewrite and Development Services software
projects.

The Development Services Fund was broken out of the General Fund in FY2019. For
presentation and comparison purposes, FY2018 financial information is shown in the
Development Services Fund rather than the General Fund.

Golf Fund

Year to date through January 31, 2019, the Golf Fund received revenues of $222 thousand
compared to expenditures of $295 thousand. FY2019 revenue is lower than budget and
FY2018 primarily due to record rainfall in October and continuing bad weather days in
December.

Hotel Occupancy Fund

Year to date through January 31, 2019, the Hotel Occupancy Fund received revenues of
$392 thousand compared to expenditures of $581 thousand. Expenditures include 2
quarterly payments to the Convention and Visitors Bureau.



RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Information only; no action required.



City of Kerrville
Financial Summary

For the Month Ended January 31, 2019

Year to Date Year to Date Better / Year to Date Change
FY2019 FY2019 (Worse) FY2018 from  Variance
Fund Actual Budget than Budget Actual FY2018 Explanation
General Fund
Revenues
Property Tax S 6,641,091 $ 7,969,225 S (1,328,134) S 6,846,117 S (205,025) note A
Sales Tax 2,256,049 2,210,858 45,191 2,163,770 92,279  note B
Other Revenue 2,960,606 3,139,966 (179,359) 3,012,903 (52,297)
Total Revenue 11,857,747 13,320,049 (1,462,302) 12,022,790 (165,043)
Expenditures 8,787,786 8,867,072 79,287 8,720,227 67,559
Net 3,069,961 4,452,977 (1,383,016) 3,302,563 (232,602)
Water Fund
Revenues
Water Sales 1,529,182 1,907,634 (378,453) 1,843,902 (314,720) noteC
Sewer Sales 1,768,293 1,818,276 (49,983) 1,747,361 20,933
Reuse Sales 10,262 38,522 (28,260) 21,987 (11,725) noteC
Other Revenue 249,468 175,004 74,464 707,254 (457,786) noteD
Total Revenue 3,557,206 3,939,437 (382,231) 4,320,504 (763,298)
Expenditures 3,990,136 4,433,314 443,178 4,309,107 (318,970) noteE
Net (432,930) (493,876) 60,946 11,397 (444,328)
Development Services Fund note F
Revenues
Permits & Fees 145,102 170,000 (24,898) 173,863 (28,761)
Transfer In 236,229 236,229 - - 236,229
Total Revenue 381,331 406,229 (24,898) 173,863 207,469
Expenditures 640,898 658,896 17,998 240,152 400,747 note G
Net (259,567) (252,667) (6,900) (66,289) (193,278)
Golf Fund
Revenues 221,524 284,881 (63,357) 262,220 (40,696) noteH
Expenditures 294,566 315,523 20,956 292,024 2,543
Net (73,043) (30,642) (42,401) (29,804) (43,239)
Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund
Revenues 391,517 359,713 31,804 364,842 26,675
Expenditures 580,998 341,044 (239,954) 272,050 308,948 notel
Net (189,481) S 18,669 S (208,150) S 92,792 S (282,273)



Notes:

A.

Property Tax - Property tax collections are lower than budget and FY2018 due to a timing difference
in FY2019 compared to previous years. As of February 15, 2019, year to date property tax collections
are ahead of FY2018. The overall property tax collection rate has been very stable for many years,

so this appears to be a timing issue only.

Sales Tax - January 2019 sales tax decreased 0.8% compared to January 2018. December 2018 sales
tax included a prepayment by a large retailer and a prior period payment from a utility. After
adjusting for the one-time activity, sales tax is up 5.1% led by increases in manufacturing, food
service and retail.

Water Sales - Water (including reuse) sales are lower than budget and FY2018 due to record rainfall
amounts in October 2018. Water sales are very volatile and highly weather dependent, but

we are proactively monitoring expenditures to offset some of the lost revenue.

Water Fund Other Revenue - FY2019 revenue is lower than FY2018 revenue because FY2018 includes
a one-time $415K transfer related to the December 2017 debt refinancing.

Water Expenditures - FY2019 expenditures are lower than FY2018 because $272K was transferred

to the Capital Projects Fund for the Legion Lift Station project in October 2017. FY2019 expenditures
better than budget due to lower than anticipated chemical and maintenance costs.

Development Services Fund - The Development Services Fund was broken out of the General Fund

in FY2019. For presentation purposes, FY2018 information is shown in the Development Services Fund.
Development Services Fund Expenditures - FY2019 includes a transfer of $379K to a projects fund for the
code rewrite and Development Services software projects.

Golf Fund Revenue - FY2019 revenue is lower than budget and FY2018 revenue due to record rainfall
in October and continued bad weather days in December.

Hotel Occupancy Fund Expenditures - The quarterly payment to CVB was paid on January 31st. The
budget and previous year reflect the payment hitting in February.
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General Fund Summary

Year to Date Yearto Date Better/ Yearto Date Change
FY2019 FY2019 (Worse) FY2018 from
Fund Actual Budget than Budget Actual FY2018
General Fund
Revenues
Property Tax S 6,641,001 S 7,969,225 S(1,328,134) S 6,846,117 S (205,025)
Sales Tax 2,256,049 2,210,858 45,191 2,163,770 92,279
Other Revenue 2,960,606 3,139,966 (179,359) 3,012,903 (52,297)
Total Revenue 11,857,747 13,320,049 (1,462,302) 12,022,790 (165,043)
Expenditures 8,787,786 8,867,072 79,287 8,720,227 67,559

Net 3,069,961 4,452,977  (1,383,016) 3,302,563 (232,602)




General Fund Revenues

General Fund Revenues
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General Fund Expenditures

General Fund Expenditures
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\X/ater Fund Summary

Year to Date Yearto Date Better/ Yearto Date Change
FY2019 FY2019 (Worse) FY2018 from
Fund Actual Budget than Budget Actual FY2018
Water Fund
Revenues
Water Sales 1,529,182 1,907,634 (378,453) 1,843,902 (314,720)
Sewer Sales 1,768,293 1,818,276 (49,983) 1,747,361 20,933
Reuse Sales 10,262 38,522 (28,260) 21,987 (11,725)
Other Revenue 249,468 175,004 74,464 707,254 (457,786)
Total Revenue 3,557,206 3,939,437 (382,231) 4,320,504 (763,298)
Expenditures 3,990,136 4,433,314 443,178 4,309,107 (318,970)
Net (432,930) (493,876) 60,946 11,397 (444,328)
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Water Fund Expenditures
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Other Funds Summary

Year to Date Yearto Date Better/ Yearto Date Change
FY2019 FY2019 (Worse) FY2018 from
Fund Actual Budget than Budget Actual FY2018
Development Services Fund
Revenues
Permits & Fees 145,102 170,000 (24,898) 173,863 (28,761)
Transfer In 236,229 236,229 - - 236,229
Total Revenue 381,331 406,229 (24,898) 173,863 207,469
Expenditures 640,898 658,896 17,998 240,152 400,747
Net (259,567) (252,667) (6,900) (66,289) (193,278)
Golf Fund
Revenues 221,524 284,881 (63,357) 262,220 (40,696)
Expenditures 294,566 315,523 20,956 292,024 2,543
Net (73,043) (30,642) (42,401) (29,804) (43,239)
Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund
Revenues 391,517 359,713 31,804 364,842 26,675
Expenditures 580,998 341,044 (239,954) 272,050 308,948

Net S (189,481) S

18,669 $ (208,150) $

92,792 $ (282,273)



TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

SUBJECT: Monthly Community Improvement Project (CIP) Report.

AGENDA DATE OF: February 26,2019 DATE SUBMITTED: Feb 19,2019

SUBMITTED BY: EA Hoppe

EXHIBITS: 20190226_City Council CIP Project Update.pdf

Expenditure Remaining Budget Amount Budgeted: Account Number:
Required: Balance in

Account:
$0 $0 $0 N/A

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO: N/A

Kerrville 2050 ltem? No

Key Priority Area N/A
Guiding Principle N/A
Action ltem N/A

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

This item will be presented monthly to provide updates on the City's Community
Improvement Projects.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Information only. No action required.



https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/313357/20190226__City_Council_CIP_Project_Update.pdf

Monthly CIP Project Status Report

| Design Construction
Estimated Estimated
Project Name Description Firm Contract Amount| Completion Contractor | Budget Amount Completion Comments
Ch i
1 |Crack Seal Project Year 3 Crack Seal Streets IDS Engineering $6,800.00 Complete Infra::"t?:t):re $106,852.00 Mar-2019 Awarded 8/14. Construction anticpated to be completed by March 2019.
2 |Parking Garage Maintenance/Repairs Maintenancel and cosmefic.repairs necessary to I}A&S. $36,000.00 Complete scs $695,531.72 Dec-2018 Cor]stlruction c}ontract award 6/12. Repairs complete. City crews performing additional
prolong the life of the existing garage structure. Engineering painting and signage.
Parking Garage Enhancements/ Water Addre_s.s physical an_d functional.necessites of the peter Lewis $13,000 for EIC funded concept design. Peter Le.wis presented design concepts at Coun(fil meétin_g
3 street Streetscape amenities surrounding the parking garage Architects Conceptual Fall 2017 TBD TBD on 7/11/17. PLA scope for construction document development for CC consideration in
P structure along Sidney Baker and Water Street Update March 2019.
Interior concept plan to compliment exterior concept provide by Peter Lewis Architects.|
Examine concepts for interior of building for future Scott Schellh leted | llocation study. Next step is dit i
4 |A.C. Schreiner House (529 Water Street) ° P g Scott Schellhase | $25,000.00 2018 8D 8D cott schetihase completed general space afiocation stucy. Next step is discussion
renovation regarding deal points with possible major tenants. Meetings with prospective tenant
are ongoing.
~30,000 LF of distribution lines from pump station . . " . .
M Partial EIC funded. Construct Il lete. Cit: I fund d
5 |Reuse Distribution Mains to Comanche Trace, Riverhill, Schreiner Univ., & | Freese & Nichols| $926,500.00 | Complete QroMex | ¢ 100,000.00 |  Jan-2019  |P3rtial EIC funded. Construction generally complete. City exploring funding sources an
Construction solutions for intermediate and long term replacement of flood damaged utility lines.
Sports Complex
Removal of flood damaged utility bridee and lines City Council awarded base and alternate bid at 01/22 meeting. Contractor currently
6 |Aerial Pipe Bridge Removal . 8 . Y 8 N/A N/A N/A J3 Company $285,900.00 Mar-2019 mobilized and beginning removal of infrastructure. City seeking reimbursement via
near low water crossing adjacent to Loop 534 .
State Disaster Recovery Funds.
I ADA 3 f istil ts, . . . - .
. mprove . access I’?SUF ?Ce fe)ﬂs ing courts, Schrickel, Rollins, Total project budget of $1.75 million. Phase 1 construction scope adopted by CC on
7 |Tennis Center Improvements address drainage, parking, lighting, and N $161,500.00 Summer 2018| JK Bernhard | $1,453,939.00 Dec-2019 . L N
o > - and Associates 7/10. Contract awarded and construction anticipated to begin March 2019.
landscaping issues, & evaluate existing facilities
. . . . Approximately 1+ mile trail extension from G 5 . . .
River Trail Extension to Schreiner Hewitt EIC funding agreement approved in Jan. 2019. Design contract awarded 01/22.
- Street to Schreiner University and adjacent . ) $102,980.00 TBD 8D 18D TBD L € 26 . PP . € ¢
University X Engineering Preliminary design commencing.
neighborhood
Assessment of the Olympic Pool complex to o . . .
Si d t t ting held 11/29. C Itant devel t estimat
9 [Aquatics Center Feasibility Study include public/stakeholder meetings and MarmonMok $85,000.00 Dec-2018 N/A N/A N/A econ Cl.)mmunl ¥ |n;?u mee |ng. e. / f)nsu ant developing cost estimates
. and phasing plans. Third community input meeting to be scheduled.
recommendations for enhancement
Analyze options for building size, location, and use Brinkley Sargent Operational needs assessment and stakeholder meetings complete. Consultant
10|Public Safety Complex Feasibility Study withybud Zts g ! ! Wiginton $99,260.00 Dec-2018 N/A N/A N/A reviewing needs assessment and conceptual layouts, in addition to site assessments
& Architects and phasing options.
8.5 MGD lift station, ~4,000 LF of f in, and . Keyst Fundi licati d by T Water Devel t Board. Contract ded
11|Legion Lift Station and Force Main Tt station, 4, otforce main, and ¢ ose & Nichols|  $734,000.00 | Nov-2018 YSTONE | 45 493,663.00 | Early2020 | o e aPpiication approved by Texas Water bevelopment Board. tontract awarde
~1,000 LF of gravity main Construction early Jan. 19. Construction anticipated to begin in March.
Keysts Clarifi i t h tract ded 7/24. G | installati tract
12|WTP Clarifier Rehab Replace hardware in existing clarifier Freese & Nichols $132,600.00 Complete €ys on}e $796,000.00 Jun-2019 aririer equipmen pur? ase contrac ‘awar ed 7/ eneralinstafiation contrac
Construction awarded at 11/13 meeting. Construction commencement late February 2019.
Alternative solutions to meet TCEQ and EPA SD°W$E|Cth ([I)on.tract exect:;ed ﬁprlleOlZ Demglr: co:quLect:for hG/-:C ttjp:wrl:hosen I?y tCloundl.
ecial esign proceeding based upon results of ench Test. Funding application
13|WTP THM Control Facility compliance followed by design of chosen Freese & Nichols| $312,000.00 0ct-2018 PECAY 1 ¢4 100,000.00 |  Early 2020 En P! e P ) € app
- . Contractors, approved by Texas Water Development Board. Construction contract to be awarded
disinfection process
Inc. Feb. 26th.
City issued RFP for devell t of Cit: d
Request for Proposals for public/private Ty Issue ordeve opme.n ortity owne .
14 y . property on Loop 534 for a mixed use development TBD TBD TBD N/A N/A N/A RFP has expired.
workforce housing project . . R
to include workforce/attainable housing.
15|Long Range Water Supply Plan P!anning for}lOO years of future water sources for Lloyd Gosselink $99,700.00 Spring 2019 N/A N/A N/A Datzfl Cf:llectiun, modeling and stakeholder interviews conducted in 2018. Developing
City of Kerrville preliminary report.
16{Landfill Permitting, Phase 3 Prepa.re applica.ti.on for ma.jur amendm-ent to TCEQ LNV $500,000.00 Feb-2019 N/A N/A N/A Ap?lication deemed administratively complete by TCEQ. TCEQ completing technical
permit for municipal landfill for expansion review.
L tract ted. Joint luti d by CC A t 14th. Contract
17|KPUB Solar Farm 2 Mega Watt solar farm at City Farm property KPUB/RES N/A N/A KPUB/RES N/A Dec-2018 €ase con ra‘c t?xecu e( oint resolution passed by Ugus ontractor
completed site installation Dec. 2018.
18|Schreiner/Clay Roundabout FOHCEPT P'a” to COHSIU'UCt roundabout at the 65 Engineering $28,175.00 Dec-2018 8D 8D Design evaluation complete. Survey work completed. Discussing layout with impacted
intersection of Schreiner Street and Clay Street property owners.
19|Hotel /Conference Center Legislétive effort with 2019 State Legislature for CitY CoL.mciI fand Coun.ty Co.mn.wissioner's Court adopted resolutions of support.
tax reimbursement May-2019 Legislative bill to be filed within a couple of weeks.

As of 2/21/2019




TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

SUBJECT: Appointments to the Food Service Advisory Board.

AGENDA DATE OF: February 26,2019 DATE SUBMITTED: Jan 30,2019

SUBMITTED BY: Shelley McElhannon

EXHIBITS: 20190226 _Appointment_Food Service Advisory Board.pdf
20190226_Press Release_Food Service Advisory Board Vacancies Applications.pdf

Expenditure Remaining Budget Amount Budgeted: Account Number:
Required: Balance in

Account:
$0 $0 $0 N/A

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO: N/A

Kerrville 2050 Item? No

Key Priority Area N/A
Guiding Principle N/A
Action Iltem N/A

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

Four (4) regular members, who's appointments expired 12/2018, has applied for
reappointment.

A Food Service Advisory Board vacancies press release was issued 1/30/2019, and no
other applications have been received.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Appoint members to the Food Service Advisory Board.



https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/310979/20190226_Appointment_Food_Service_Advisory_Board.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/311157/20190226_Press_Release_Food_Service_Advisory_Board_Vacancies_Applications.pdf

FOOD SERVICE ADVISORY BOARD

Orig. Re-Appt. EXxp.
Telephone Appt. Date Date

AAMODT, “GARY”, JR. 257-3533 (0O) 08-11-15 12-12-17 12-01-19
Chairperson 896-7979 (H)
160 Kerrville South Dr. 370-4416 (C)

RUSCH, MONTY 370-3259 (H) 03-28-17 12-01-18
316 Patriot St. 258-7721 (W)
Vice-Chairperson

EGELSTON, MONICA 377-6903 (H) 03-28-17 12-01-18
1358 Junction Hwy. #15  895-3354 (W)
Ingram, TX 78025

FIEDLER, ANGELA 377-8116 (H) 03-28-17 12-01-18
205 Avenue F 257-6568 (W)
Waring, TX 78074

MOLINA, RUBEN 896-3313 (0O) 01-12-16 12-12-17 12-01-19
325 George Ct. 377-2768 (H)

ORTEGA, MARTINO 210-286-6855 (H) 12-12-17 12-01-19
2100 Memorial Blvd. 792-7297 (W)

WHITE, SETH 387-1976 (H) 03-28-17 12-01-18
1418 Jackson Rd. 257-6901 (W)

CITY STAFF:
Daryle Poe 258-1173

Health Specialist

Drew Paxton

258-1178 (O)

Ex. Director of Dev. Svcs. 896-0517 (F)

Quialifications:

Powers and Duties:

Shall be composed of local certified food managers from the food service or food
processing industry, any member of the local restaurant association who owns or
conducts business in the city of Kerrville or any citizen of Kerr County qualified by
training and/or experience to advise on the application of the food code.

To hear appeals and make recommendations to the health official for variances from
provisions of the code; to provide assistance to the health official concerning
interpretations of the code; to advise the city manager, at his request, regarding the
suspension or revocation of food permits; and to consider and make
recommendations to city council regarding any matters relating to the food service
program.



Term of Office:
Quorum:

Number of Members:
Meeting Time & Place:

Absences:

Established by:

Revised:

Two Years; no member shall serve more than two consecutive terms.
Four

Seven

As needed, in the Development Services office.

Any member who misses three consecutive regular meetings shall thus cause
his/her seat on the board to become vacant. The council shall then appoint a new
member to fill the vacancy.

Ordinance 1989-30; amended by Ordinance 1994-11
Code of Ordinances: Chapter 58 - Article 1l - Section 58-34

September 13, 2018



City of Kerrville

701 Main Street
Kerrville, Texas 78028
(830) 257-8000
www.kerrvilletx.gov

PRESS RELEASE

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

Contact: Stuart Cunyus, Public Information Officer
(830) 258-1116

stuart.cunyus@Kkerrvilletx.gov

Applications Being Taken for Board Openings

Kerrville, Texas (Jan. 30, 2019) — The City of Kerrville is currently taking applications for board
openings on the Food Service Advisory Board.

The City Secretary's office accepts applications for all city boards throughout the year.
Persons interested should submit the Board Application specific to the board for which they
are applying. Applications are available online on the city's website at
https://www.kerrvilletx.gov/957/Boards-Commissions, or by dropping by the City Secretary’s
office in City Hall.

Completed applications should be emailed to the City Secretary's office at
Cheryl.Brown@kerrvilletx.gov .

For more information, contact City Secretary Shelley McElhannon at (830) 258-1117 or
Deputy City Secretary Cheryl Brown at (830) 258-1118, or visit the city’s website at
www.kerrvilletx.gov .

Hit#


http://www.kerrvilletx.gov/
mailto:stuart.cunyus@kerrvilletx.gov
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